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Second Motion Checklist

IN THE MATTER OF AMALGAMATION

BETWEEN

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (PETITIONER COMPANY 1/ TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

AND

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (PETITIONER COMPANY 2/ TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

(UNDER SECTION 230-232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013)

Sr. No. Particulars Section/ Antelopus Energy Private Limited Selan Exploration Technology Limited
Rule Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor Company Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee Company
1. Date of first motion order. Whether the First Motion Order- August 12, 2024 First Motion Order- August 12, 2024

Meetings are dispensed with or

convened?

(Annexure P-15)
(pg 336-359)

Details of Meetings-

Secured Creditors- Dispensed
(As NIL Secured Creditors)

Unsecured Creditors- Dispensed
(Consent Affidavits of 99.96% in value)

Preference Shareholder- Dispensed
(Consent Affidavit of 100% in value)

Equity Shareholders- Meeting Convened

(Annexure P-15)
(pg 336-359)

Details of Meetings-

Secured Creditors- Dispensed
(As NIL Secured Creditors)

Unsecured Creditors- Dispensed
(Consent Affidavits of 90.99% in value)

Equity Shareholders- Meeting Convened

& %
Class A-1 Equity Shareholders- Meeting Convened
If meetings are convened
(i) | Whether notice of meeting published in Yes Yes
not less than 10 days of the fixed date of Annexure P-18 Annexure P-18

hearing? Proof of publication (Newspaper
cuttings)

Date of Notice- August 31, 2024

(Equity Shareholder- pg 395-396
Class Al Equity Shareholder — pg 428-429)

Date of Notice- August 31, 2024
(Equity Shareholder pg 463-464)




Second Motion Checklist

(ii) | Whether Report of Result of meetings by Yes Yes
the Chairperson filed within the time Date of e filing- October 08, 2024 Date of e filing- October 08, 2024
period prescribed by the Tribunal? (in Annexure P-18 Annexure P-18
Form CAA 4)
(Equity Shareholders- pg 384-415 pg- 449-481B
Class Al Equity Shareholders- pg 416-448)
(iii) | Whether the scheme has been approved Yes Yes
by the Shareholders/creditors (as the case Annexure P-18 Annexure P-18
may be) In the meeting? (Please mention Equity Shareholders- pg 3 91 para 12 Equity Shareholders- pg 457 para 12)
the relevant Page no of reports) Class Al Equity Shareholders- pg 423 para 11)
(iv) | Whether petition filed within 7 days of Yes
report of Chairperson (in Form no. Date of e- filing of second motion petition is October 15 , 2024
CAA-5)?
2. Whether any objection has been filed by No No
| any shareholder/creditor?
3. Copy of Scheme of Amalgamation RULE 3 Annexure P-1 (pg 57-88)
(iii)
4. Copy of Minutes of Board Meeting of the Annexure P-2 Annexure P-5
applicant companies approving the (pg 89-92) (pg 180-184)
scheme.
5. Whether Accounting Treatment in the | Section Yes Yes
scheme is as per Section 133. 133 of Annexure P-10 Annexure P-11
Compani (pg 311) (pg 312-315)
es _Act
2013
6. Legal proceedings pending / An Affidavit No Legal Proceedings are pending No Legal Proceedings are pending except as
to the effect that no legal proceedings are : - ‘mentioned in clause 2.37 of the secdnd motion petitiofi
pending. Annexure P-21
(pg 493-497) Annexure P-22
(pg 498-502)
7. Proposed Share Exchange Ratio/ Section Annexure P-8
Valuation 230 (pg 286-303)
(2)(c)
8. "Appointed Date" as mentioned in the April 01, 2023

Scheme




Second Motion Checklist

10. | Affidavit with regard to the sectoral | RULE 8 Annexure P-19 Annexure P-20
regulators of the companies. (pg 482-486) (pg 487-492)

11. | Affidavit for non-application  of Annexure P-14 (Colly) Annexure P-14 (Colly)
provisions Competition Commission act, (pg 324-329) (pg 330-335)
2002?

12. | Statutory Authorities to whom notices are 1.RD (Northern Region), MCA, B-2 Wing, 2™ Floor,

required to be issued

Paryavaran Bhawan, CGO Complex, New Delhi- 110003
2.0L, MCA, Corporate Bhawan, 2™ floor, Plot no. 4B,
Sector 27B, Madhya Marg, Chandigarh-160019

3.IT Department, Circle 1(1), Ward (Range) 53,
Gurugram, Haryana,

4. ROC, Delhi & Haryana, 4" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,
Nehru Place, New Delhi -110019

5. RBI, Regional Office Chandigarh- Central Vista,
Sector 17, Chandigarh-160017

1. Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, GOI,
Shastri Bhavan, New Delhi- 110001

2.RD (Northern Region), MCA, B-2 Wing, 2" Floor,
Paryavaran Bhawan, CGO Complex, New Delhi-
110003

3.0L, MCA, Corporate Bhawan, 2" floor, Plot no. 4B,
Sector 27B, Madhya Marg, Chandigarh-160019

4.IT Department, Circle 22(2), Ward (Range) 37,
Delhi

5. ROC, Delhi & Haryana, 4™ Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,
Nehru Place, New Delhi -110019

6. RBI, Regional Office Chandigarh- Central Vista,
Sector 17, Chandigarh-160017

7. SEBI, Stock Exchanges

After issuing notices

13.

Affidavit of Service (Newspaper Publication and notices)

RULE 12

Will be complied with, as directed by this Hon’ble NCLT

14.

7

Whether notice of hearing published in not less than 10
days of the fixed date of hearing? Proof of publication
(Newspaper cuttings)

Rule 16

Will be complied with, as directed by this Hon’ble NCLT

&

@

15.

Affidavit stating whether any objection has received from
the public pursuant to the newspaper publications has been
filed?

Section 230

(2)(©)

NA NA

16.

Whether reports by the Statutory Authorities/ sectoral
regulators received and attached with the petition.

NA NA

&
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17. Post amalgamation capital structure of the Petitioner Companies will be as under:

Sr. No. | Company CIN PAN Date Of Authorised Share Issued, Paid Up
Incorporation capital and Subscribed
Share Capital
1. Antelopus Energy Private Limited U74999HR2018PTC0760 | AARCA3453 | September 25,2018 | Will be merged with Selan Exploration
(Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor 12 F Technology Limited
Company)
2. Selan Exploration Technology L74899HR1985PLC11319 | AAACS0342 | October 15, 1990 82,50,00,000 35,16,23,580
Limited 6 Q

(Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee
Company)

L]
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH-II
COMPANY PETITION (CAA) NO. __ /CHD/HRY/2024
CONNECTED WITH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) No. 30/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

IN THE MATTER OF:

Antelopus Energy Private Limited & Anr.

... (Petitioner Companies)
MEMO OF PARTIES

1. ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED, a company
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate
Identification Number U74999HR2018PTC076012 and having its
registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th floor, JMD

For AN : Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018, Haryana,
or ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIWTED For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

%Dlrector Comppany Secretary



through its authorized signatory, Name- Mr. Siva Kumar Pothepalli,
Mobile No.- 9582170375, E-mail Id-
Sivakumar.pothepalli@antelopusenergy.com.

Income Tax PAN (AARCA3453F), Assessing Officer Circle 1(1),
Ward (Range) 53, Gurugram

... Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor Company

2. SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED, a
company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 having
Corporate Identification Number L74899HR1985PLC113196 and
having its registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor,
JMD Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon- 122018, Haryana
through its authorized signatory, Name- Ms. Yogita, Mobile No.-
9582545040, E-mail 1d- yogita@selanoil.com.

Income Tax PAN- (AAACS0342Q), Assessing Officer Circle 22(2),
Ward (Range) 37, Delhi
... Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee Company
PLACE: Noida

DATE: October 14, 2024 Filed byw
o

Adv. Atul V Sood

)

Adv. Suman Kumar Jha

N\Adv. Afnaan Siddiqui

(Advocate for Petitioner Companies)
lan Exploration Technology Ltd. .
For Selan Exp . Corp Legex (Advocates & Solicitors)

\
Cg%tary 912, Wave Silver Tower, Sector-18,

Noida-201301
Mob. No.: 9716406207

Email Id: afnaan@corplegex.com
For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED @corpleg

Director



BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH-II
COMPANY PETITION (CAA) NO. __/CHD/HRY/2024
CONNECTED WITH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) No. 30/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
AND
IN THE MATTER OF:

Antelopus Energy Private Limited & Anr.

... (Petitioner Companies)

BRIEF SYNOPSIS

The present Joint Second Motion Petition under Section 230 to 232 read
with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Compromise, Arrangements & Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is being
filed by the Petitioner Companies through their authorized signatories,

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.



to seek sanction of this Hon’ble Tribunal for Composite Scheme of
Arrangement between Antelopus Energy Private Limited (Petitioner
Company 1/ Transferor Company ) and Selan Exploration Technology
Limited (Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee Company) and their

respective Shareholders and Creditors (“Scheme”).

That Hon’ble NCLT heard the Joint First Motion Application on July
26, 2024, and passed an order dated August 12, 2024, directing to
convene the meetings though video conferencing with the facility of
remote e-voting on October 05, 2024, of Equity Shareholders and Class
Al Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2. Further, the meetings of
secured creditors of the Petitioner Companies were dispensed as there
were NIL secured creditors in both the Petitioner Companies. The
meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Petitioner Companies were
also dispensed on account of consent affidavits received by more than
90% of the majority of Unsecured Creditors in both the Petitioner

Companies.

By an order dated September 29, 2024, the Hon’ble NCLT was pleased
to dispense with the requirement of convening the meeting of the
Preference shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 as 100% consent

had been received.

The Petitioner Companies complied with all the requirements with
respect to the dispatch and publication of notice of meeting and service
of notice to the statutory authorities/ sectoral regulators and other
directions as mentioned in the Order dated August 12, 2024. In this
respect the Petitioner Companies filed an Affidavit of Compliance on

September 23, 2024 before this Hon’ble Tribunal.

Pursuant to this, the meeting of Equity Shareholders and Class Al
Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 was convened through video
conferencing with the facility of e-voting on Saturday, October 05, 2024

at 10.30 AM, 11.30 AM & 12.30 PM respectivelg'. _
For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

%m W



Apart from facility of voting through e-voting system during the
respective meetings, the shareholders had the facility and option of
voting on the Scheme by casting their votes through remote e-voting

during the period which commenced from Monday, September 30,
2024, at 9:00 A.M IST and ended on Friday, October 4, 2024, at 5.00
P.M. IST.

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders of both the Petitioner
Companies in terms of Section 230(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Additionally, the Scheme was approved by the public equity
shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 in terms of Para (I)(A)(10)(b)
of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93
dated June 20, 2023.

Thereafter, on receipt of the report of the Scrutinizer, the Chairman filed
his report to the Hon’ble NCLT with his findings and analysis on the
meeting on October 08, 2024.

Hence, this Joint Second Motion Petition.

PLACE: Noida
DATE: October 14, 2024

Filed by- N(ré/
Ayt

Adv. Atul V Sood/

g} -
Adv. Suman Kumar Jha/

M
dv."Afnaan Siddiqui

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd, (Advocate for Petitioner Companies)

W ‘ Corp Legex (Advocates & Solicitors)
CO}@% 912, Wave Silver Tower, Sector-18,
Noida-201301

| Mob. No.: 9716406207
For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIVITED Email Id: afnaan@corplegex.com

Witecw
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IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 352 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

Antelopus Energy Private Limited & Anr.

... (Petitioner Companies)

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

Cor%

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Wdﬂ



LIST OF DATES AND EVENTS

Date Events
Petitioner Company 1

September 25, | Petitioner Company 1 was incorporated on

2018 September 25, 2018, under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 under the name of “Antelopus
Energy Private Limited”.

November 22, | Board of Directors of the Petitioner Company 1

2023 approved the Scheme.

Petitioner Company 2

July 05, 1985 | Petitioner Company 2 was incorporated as a private
limited company on July 05, 1985, under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 under the
name of “Selan Exploration Technology Private
Limited”.

October 15, Petitioner Company 2 was converted into a Public

1990 Company on October 15, 1990, and altered its name
to “Selan Exploration Technology Limited” from
“Selan Exploration Technology Private Limited”

July 10,2023 | Petitioner Company 2 shifted its registered office
from the state of Delhi to Haryana on July 10, 2023.

January 09, Such Registered Office of the Petitioner Company 2

2023 was approved by the Regional Director on January
09, 2023.

November 22, | Board of Directors of the Petitioner Company 2

2023 approved the Scheme.

December 05, | Petitioner Company 2 filed the Scheme along with

2023 the requisite documents with BSE in terms of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

December 05, | Petitioner Company 2 filed the Scheme along with

2023 the requisite documents with NSE in terms of the

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

For ANTELOPUS ENERG,Y PRIVATE LIMITED



SEBI and Disclosures

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(Listing Obligations

June 27,2024 | Receipt of No-Objection/ Observation letter with no
adverse observation from the BSE Limited (“BSE”),
the Stock Exchange where the equity shares of
Petitioner Company 2 are listed

June 27,2024 | Receipt of No-Objection/ Observation letter with no

adverse observation from the National Stock
Exchange of India Ltd. (“NSE”), the Stock Exchange
where the equity shares of Petitioner Company 2 are

listed

Petitioner Company 1 and Petitioner Company 2

November 22,
2023

Valuation Report issued by Bansi S. Mehta Valuers
LLP, Registered Valuer.

November 22,
2023

Fairness Opinion Report issued by IIFL Securities
Limited, a SEBI Registered Category 1 Merchant
Banker.

July 26, 2024

First Motion Application was heard by the Hon’ble
NCLT.

August 12,
2024

This Hon’ble Tribunal was pleased to dispense with
the requirement of convening the meeting of the
Secured and Unsecured Creditors of the Petitioner
Companies and the Hon’ble Tribunal directed to
convene the meeting of shareholders of the Petitioner
Companies through video conferencing on October

05, 2024.

August 31,
2024

The Petitioner Company 1 dispatched notices of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders and Class Al
Equity Shareholders along with the documents as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the

Rules made thereunder.

August 31,
2024

The Petitioner Company 2 dispatched notices of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders along with the
documents as required under the Companies Act,

2013 and the Rules made thereunder.

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Director

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

Co%

[2



August 31,
2024

Notice of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders and
Class Al Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner
Company 1 was published in the “BUSINESS
STANDARD” (English-Delhi NCR Edition) and
“JANSATTA” (Hindi-Delhi NCR Edition).

August 31,
2024

Notice of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
the Petitioner Company 2 was published in the
“BUSINESS STANDARD” (English-Delhi NCR
Edition) and “JANSATTA” (Hindi-Delhi NCR
Edition).

August 31,
2024

Petitioner Company 2 published the notice of the

meeting of Equity Shareholders on its website.

September 03
- 04,2024

The Petitioner Company 1 served the notices of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders to the statutory

authorities.

September 03
- 04,2024

The Petitioner Company 2 served the notices of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders to the statutory

authorities.

September 04,
2024

A joint clarificatory application was filed with
Hon’ble Tribunal, requesting the Hon’ble Tribunal to
include the direction for dispensation of the meeting
of the Preference Shareholders of the Petitioner

Company 1 in its Analysis & Findings.

September 23,
2024

An affidavit of Compliance as per Section 230 (2)
was filed with the Hon’ble Tribunal.

September 29,
2024

Hon’ble Tribunal passed an order directing the
dispensation of the requirement of the meeting of
Preference Shareholders of the Petitioner Company

1.

September 30,
2024

Commencement of remote e-voting facility for
Equity Shareholders and Class Al Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity

Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2.

October 04,
2024

Conclusion of remote e-voting facility for Equity

Shareholders and Class Al Equity Shareholders of

For ANTELOPUS ENERG,Y PRIVATE LIMITED

Diractor

Eor Selan Exploration Techno1pgy Ltd.

pany Secretary

15



the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity Shareholders of
the Petitioner Company 2.

October 05,
2024

Meeting of Equity Shareholders and Class A1 Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 were
conducted through video conferencing with the

facility of e-voting.

October 08,
2024

The learned Chairperson filed a report on the meeting
of the Equity Shareholders and Class Al Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 along with
the Scrutinizer Report as filed before this Hon’ble

Tribunal.

Present

Hence, the present Company Petition for sanction of
the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between the

Petitioner Companies.

PLACE: Noida

DATE: October 14, 2024

]\\»J UFim-

Adv. Atul V Sood/

Uﬂlﬂ”/‘ .
Adv. Suman Kumar Jha/

\_———

Adv. Afnhaan Siddiqui

(Advocate for Petitioner Companies)
Corp Legex (Advocates & Solicitors)
912, Wave Silver Tower, Sector-18,

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd. Noida-201301

' Mob. No.: 9716406207
Com ecretary

Email Id: afnaan@corplegex.com

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Director



BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH-TI
COMPANY PETITION (CAA) NO. __ /CHD/HRY/2024
CONNECTED WITH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) No. 30/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

IN THE MATTER OF:

Antelopus Energy Private Limited & Anr.

... (Petitioner Companies)

JOINT SECOND MOTION PETITION ON BEHALF OF THE
PETITIONER COMPANIES UNDER SECTION 230 TO 232 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ WITH SECTION 66 AND
SECTION 52 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2023 READ WITH RULE 15 OF THE
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND

For Selan Exploration Techino ogy Ltd. Fer ANTELOPUS £NERGY PRIVA 1E



AMALGAMATIONS) RULES 2016, FOR SANCTION OF THE

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN THE

PETITIONER COMPANIES

1.2

For Selan Exploration Technol

MOST RESPECTFULLY SHOWETH:

The present Joint Second Motion Petition is filed under Sections
230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 66 and
Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 (%2013 Act”) and read
with Rule 15 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (2016 Rules”) and other
applicable provisions, before this Hon’ble Tribunal to obtain the
sanction and approval of this Hon’ble Tribunal for the Composite
Scheme of Arrangement between Antelopus Energy Private

Limited (“Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor Company”) and

Selan Exploration Technology Limited (“Petitioner Company 2/

Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“Scheme”).

A copy of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Antelopus Energy Private Limited and Selan Exploration
Technology Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors is annexed hereto and marked as under ANNEXURE P-
1.

That the present Joint Second Motion Petition under Sections 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the 2013 Act and the Rule 15 0f2016 Rules, is being
filed by the Petitioner Companies through their authorized
signatories seeking appropriate orders and directions from this

Hon’ble Tribunal for sanctioning of the Scheme.

FACTS OF THE CASE:
That Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“Transferor

Company” or “Petitioner Company 1) is a private limited
company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 on September 25, 2018, having Corporate

Identification Number U74999HR2018PTC076012.
o For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Comgzany Secretary Director

| 6
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III.

For ANTELOPUS ENERGtY PRIVATE LIMITED

The registered office of the Petitioner Company 1 is
situated at Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, JMD Megapolis
Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018, Haryana.

The Petitioner Company 1 is primarily engaged in the
business of exploration and production of oil and gas and
is focused on monetizing discovered and stranded

resources in the Indian subcontinent.

The Petitioner Company 1 operates 4 (Four) contract areas
i.e., 2 (Two) offshore contract areas, one each on the West
Coast and the East Coast of India, and 2 (Two) onshore
contract areas, one each on the State of Assam and the State
of Andhra Pradesh. The onshore contract area in the State
of Andhra Pradesh is awaiting the grant of a Petroleum
Mining Lease by the Government of Andhra Pradesh. The
proven and possible reserves as certified by a third-party
international independent reserves auditor for the 3 (Three)
contract areas (other than the resources for the onshore
contract area in Andhra Pradesh which are yet to be
certified by an independent third-party reserve agency) is
approximately 55,000,000 (Fifty-Five Million) barrels of
oil equivalent. These reserves are computed in accordance
with the SPE — PRMS (Society of Petroleum Engineers —
Petroleum Resource Management Systems). The expertise
of the Petitioner Company 1 lies in value creation through
reservoir management, leveraging technology deployment,
operational efficiency, and speed of execution, with safety

and sustainability as their core values.

Presently, the entire equity share capital and Class Al
equity share capital of the Petitioner Company 1 is held by
Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited, an exempted
company incorporated with limited liability under the laws

of Cayman Islands, having its registered office at Walkers

Corporate Limited, Cayman Corporate Centre, 190 Elgin
For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

%
C fiy Secretary



Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands (“Blackbuck™) and its nominee(s). The
0.001% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(“RPS”) are held by Mr. Suniti Kumar Bhat, Ms. Payal
Upadhyay and Mr. Siva Kumar Pothepalli.

2.2 That the Board of Directors of the Petitioner Company 1 has
considered and approved the Scheme subject to the sanction of
this Hon’ble Tribunal vide its meeting held on November 22,
2023.
The Copy of the Board Resolution passed by the Board of
Directors of Petitioner Company 1 dated November 22, 2023,
approving the Scheme is annexed hereto and marked as
ANNEXURE P-2.

2.3 The main objects of the Petitioner Company 1 are provided in
Clause III(a) of its Memorandum of Association (“MoA”). Also,
Clause ITI(b)(9) of the MoA of the Petitioner Company 1 provides
power to the Petitioner Company 1 to amalgamate with any other
company or companies having all or any of their objects similar
to the objects of the Petitioner Company 1, which is reproduced

below:

“Subject to the Provisions of the Companies Act 2013, to
amalgamate with any other company of which all or any of their
objects companies having similar to the objects of the Company

in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.”

A copy of the Master Data, Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Petitioner Company 1 are annexed hereto and

marked as ANNEXURE P-3 (Colly).

2.4 That the Authorized, Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of the
Petitioner Company 1 as on March 31, 2024, based on the audited

financial statements as on such date, is as under:

mvinm Tornralecy Lid,

For Selan Explnr™’ MITED

. £qr ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE L
%%w %tecﬂn
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2.5

For Selan Exploration Te

PARTICULARS | - AMOUNT
(IN INR)

Authorized share capital

5,01,32,889 Equity Shares of INR 10 each | 50,13,28,890 .
8,67,111 Class A1 Equity Shares of INR 10 | 86,71,110 |

each
15,00,000 RPS of INR10each | 1,50,00,000
'TOTAL - 152,50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

' 8,67,111 Class A1 Equity Shares of INR 10 | 86,71,110 {
each | ‘
14,75,933 RPSof INR 10each | 1,47,59,330 |

TOTAL  48,03,46,070

|

Subsequent to March 31, 2024, there has been no change in the
share capital of the Petitioner Company 1 as on the date of filing

of this application with this Hon’ble Tribunal.

A copy of the audited financial statements of the Petitioner
Company 1 for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 are
annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE A-4.

That Selan Exploration Technology Limited (“Transferee
Company” or “Petitioner Company 2”) is a listed company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on
July 05, 1985, having Corporate Identification Number
L74899HR1985PLC113196.

L. Petitioner Company 2 was initially incorporated as private
limited company, thereafter the company has been
converted into a public company on October 15, 1990, and
altered its name to “Selan Exploration Technology
Limited” from “Selan Exploration Technology Private
Limited”.

chnology Ltd For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

}%MW %ector
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2.

Eor Selan Exploratio

2.0

II.  The registered office of the Petitioner Company 2 is
presently situated at Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, JMD
Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018,
Haryana. The registered office was shifted from the state
of Delhi to Haryana on July 10, 2023, and has been
approved by Regional Director on January 09, 2023.

III.  The equity shares of the Petitioner Company 2 are listed on
the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (“NSE”) and the
BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Petitioner Company 2 is
primarily engaged in the business of exploration and

production of oil and gas.

IV. The Petitioner Company 2 is engaged in Oil and Gas
Exploration and Production (E&P) since 1992 and has
deep expertise and a strong track record of operating oil
and gas fields by virtue of its operations in Bakrol, Karjisan

and Lohar in the Cambay basin.

V. As on March 31, 2024, Blackbuck holds 30.46% equity
shares of the Petitioner Company 2, and the balance

69.54% equity shares are held by the public shareholders.

6 That the Board of Directors of the Petitioner Company 2 has
approved the Scheme subject to the sanction of this Hon’ble

Tribunal, vide its meeting held on November 22, 2023.

A copy of the Board Resolution passed by the Board of Directors
of the Petitioner Company 2 dated November 22, 2023, is
annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-5.

7 The main objects of the Petitioner Company 2 are provided in
Clause III(a) of its MoA. Also, Clause III(b)(xxx) of the MoA of
the Petitioner Company 2 provides powers to the Petitioner

Company 2 to amalgamate with any other company or companies

n Technology Lid. Eor ANTELOPUS ENERGY FRIVATE LIMITED

Co y Secretary %ﬂ



2.8

2.9

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

0;% %Mr
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having all or any of their objects similar to the objects of the

Petitioner Company 2, which is reproduced below:

“Subject to the provisions of the Act, to amalgamate with any
other company of which all or any of their objects companies
having similar to the objects of the Company in any manner

whether with or without the liquidation.”

A copy of the Master Data, Certificate of Incorporation and
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Petitioner

Company 2 are annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-6
(Colly).

That the Authorized, Issued and Paid-up Share Capital of the
Petitioner Company 2 as on March 31, 2024, based on the audited

financial statements as on such date, is as under:

PARTICULARS | AMOUNT(IN |
| INR) !
Authorized Share Capital
2,90,00,000 Equity Shares of INR10 29,00,00,000
each
| 1,00,000 Preference Shares of INR | 1,00,00,000
100 each
‘TOTAL 30,00,00, 000”»»
Issued, Subscribed and Pald-up Share Caﬁl}él : o
1,52,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 i ~15,20,00,000
each ;

© 15,20,00, 000 |

The Petitioner Company 2 at its board meeting held on November
22,2023, has approved the issuance of equity shares and/ or other
eligible securities or any combination thereof, for an aggregate
amount of up to INR 250,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred
Fifty Crores Only) by way of a qualified institutional placement

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED



2.10

2.11

or through any other permissible mode and/or combination
thereof as may be considered appropriate under applicable law in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Chapter VI and other applicable provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2018 (“SEBI ICDR”).

The Petitioner Company 2 has obtained necessary approvals from
the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 on January 27, 2024 and Chapter VI and
other applicable provisions of the SEBI ICDR in relation to the
aforementioned issuance of equity shares and/ or other eligible
securities. The proposed issuance may be undertaken by the

Petitioner Company 2 during or after the pendency of the Scheme.

Subsequent to March 31, 2024, there has been no change in the
share capital of Petitioner Company 2 as on the date of filing of

this application with this Hon’ble Tribunal.

A copy of the audited financial statements of the Petitioner
Company 2 for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, are
annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-7.

Upon this Scheme being effective, the shares of the Petitioner
Company 2 are to be issued to the shareholders of the Petitioner

Company 1 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of Valuation Report and Fairness Opinion are annexed

hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-8 and ANNEXURE P-9,

respectively.

That S.R. Batlilboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, the
Statutory Auditors of the Petitioner Company 1 and V. Sankar
Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
the Petitioner Company 2 have submitted their certificate

confirming that the accounting treatment, proposed under the

Eor ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

% For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.
rector ] (%
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2.12

2.13

2.14

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PR!.TE LIMITED

Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under 2013 Act. The certificate issued by Statutory
Auditors of the Petitioner Company 1 and Petitioner Company 2
are annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-10 and
ANNEXURE P-11, respectively.

That Petitioner Company 2 in terms of the provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 filed the Scheme along with the requisite documents with
NSE and BSE. Further, the Petitioner Company 2 had chosen
BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange.

In terms of the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and other
applicable provisions, if any, BSE has given their no-objection /
observation letter for the proposed Scheme on June 27, 2024
(“BSE Observation Letter”) and NSE has given their no-
objection / observation letter for the proposed Scheme on June 27,

2024 (“NSE Observation Letter”).

BSE in its Observation Letter has provided below mentioned

comments on the Scheme:

a. "The proposed composite scheme of Amalgamation and
arrangement shall be in compliance with the provisions of
Regulation 11 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015."

b. "The Company shall disclose all details of ongoing
adjudication & recovery proceedings, prosecution
initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any,
against the Company, its promoters and directors, before

Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking approval

of the scheme."

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

ecretary
%, cé%
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C. "Company shall ensure that additional information, if any,
submitted by the Company after filing the scheme with the
stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter is
displayed on the websites of the listed company and the

stock exchanges."

d. "Entities involved in the proposed scheme shall not make
any changes to the draft scheme subsequent to filing the
draft scheme with SEBI by the Stock Exchanges(s), except

those mandated by the regulators/ authorities/ tribunals.”

e. "Company shall ensure compliance with SEBI circulars
issued from time to time. The entities involved in the
Scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the
SEBI Master Circular dated June 20,2023 and also ensure
that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are

transferred to the Transferee Company.”

f "Company is advised that the information pertaining to all
the unlisted companies involved, if any, in the scheme shall
be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus
as provided in Part E of the schedule VI of the ICDR
Regulations 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice
or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed, which

is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.”

h. "The Companies are advised to disclose the following as a
part of explanatory statement or notice or proposal
accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by
the company to the shareholders while seeking approval
u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013, so that the
public shareholders can make an informed trading
decision.

(i)  Need for Merger, Rationale of the scheme, Synergies

of business of the entities involved in the scheme,

loratinn Techrnlogy Lid.
For Selan Exp For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

\% y Secretary
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Impact of the scheme on the shareholders and cost
benefit analysis of the scheme.

(i) Need and rationale for adjusting retained earnings
against the securities premium account.

(iii) Value of Assets and Liabilities of AEPL that are
being transferred to SETL and Post merger Balance
sheet of SETL.

(iv) Detailed reasons as to how the scheme will be
beneficial to shareholders of SETL.

(v) Impact of the scheme on revenue generating
capacity of SETL.

(vi)  Revised post scheme shareholding pattern of SETL.

(vii) Reasons for not considering the impact of QIP and
ESOPs in the share swap ratio.

1. "Company shall ensure that the details of the proposed
scheme under comsideration as provided to the stock
exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent
to shareholders."

j. "Company shall ensure that the proposed equity shares to
be issued in terms of the "Scheme" shall mandatorily be in
demat form only."

k. "Company is advised that the "Scheme" shall be acted
upon subject to the Petitioner complying with the relevant
clauses mentioned in the scheme document."

1. "Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme
except those mandated by the regulators/ authorities /
tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of
SEBL"

m.  "Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock
Exchanges shall be incorporated in the petition to be filed
before Hon'ble NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring
the observations to the notice of Hon'ble NCLT."

n. "Company is advised to comply with all applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and

\DTNETE ‘JM‘TED FOT Selan Exploratlcn Tﬁ’_:"\"‘"‘"fly Ltd.

/%tor c%
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2.15

2.16

glan Exploration Tec

regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the
consent from the creditors for the proposed scheme."

0. "It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company
before Hon'ble NCLT after processing and communication
of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send
notice for representation as mandated under section
230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its

comments I observations/ representations.”

That in addition to the above-mentioned comments, NSE in its
Observation Letter has provide the following additional comment

on the Scheme:

g “The Company shall ensure that the financials in the
scheme including financials considered for valuation
report are not for period more than 6 months old.”

p. “The listed entity involved in the scheme shall disclose the
No-objection letter of the Stock Exchange(s) on its website

within 24 hours of receiving the same.”

Further, NSE while giving its approval / no objections to the

proposed Scheme specifically mentioned that the Petitioner
Company 2 is not required to send notice under Section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to NSE again for its
comments/observations/representations. The relevant extracts of

the NSE Observation Letter is reproduced below:

“It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company
before Hon’ble NCLT after processing and communication of
comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies
Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again

for its comments / observations / representations.”
hnology Lid.
\ For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Secretary

Director
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2.17 That the rationale for entering into the Scheme are as follows:

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

Co

The Copies of the Observation letter of BSE dated June 27, 2024,
& NSE dated June 27, 2024, for the proposed Scheme are

annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-12 (Colly).

e.

The Amalgamation is based on leveraging the
complementary strengths of the Transferor Company
and Transferee Company. The Amalgamation would
create meaningful value for various stakeholders
including shareholders, employees and customers as
the combined entity would benefit from the Transferee
company’s expertise and a strong track record in oil
and gas exploration and production operations and
strengths and expertise of the Transferor Company in
reservoir management, leveraging technology
deployment, operational efficiency and speed of

execution, with safety and sustainability;

Diversifying Transferee Company’s portfolio across
multiple sedimentary basins, both onshore and

offshore, thereby providing access to increased
proven oil and gas resource base and ability to

enhance production;

Enhance value for stakeholders through pooling of
resources and sharing technical capabilities resulting

in creation of a leading energy company in India;

Unison in availing opportunities presented to both
entities  individually  resulting in  efficient
management, greater economies of scale and building

a stronger resource base for future growth;

Simplification of the shareholding structure and

strengthening the operational strategy;

ga% %mr
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f Elimination of multiple entities, resulting in focused
management team, reduction in overheads and

compliance costs

The Scheme further provides for the adjustment of the debit
balance of the Retained Earnings Account as on the
Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor
Company against the outstanding balance of the Securities
Premium Account of the Transferor Company pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 66 read with Section 52 and other
applicable provisions of the Act. The proposed reduction of
the Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company
does not involve any financial outlay or outgo and therefore,
would not affect the interest of any stakeholders of the

Transferor Company.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors
and all other stakeholders of the respective Companies and
is not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned

shareholders, creditors and public at large.

2.18 That the Appointed Date mentioned in the Scheme is April 1,
2023, or such other date as may be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Petitioner Companies and is the date with effect
from which the Scheme shall, upon being sanctioned by the

Hon’ble Tribunal, be operative.

2.19 That Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas of Government of
India (“MoPNG”) is the sectoral regulator having jurisdiction
over the Petitioner Companies. That prior approval of MoPNG
was sought and MoPNG has given its prior approval on the

Scheme on July 01, 2024. A copy of the approval of MoPNG
dated July 01, 2024, on the Scheme has been annexed hereto and
marked as ANNEXURE P-13.

For Selan Exploraﬁn"\ Te.':hmlqu Ltd. For ANTELOP.C i i¢ - --c Wy TED
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2.20 That the parameters prescribed under the Competition Act, 2002

are not applicable to the present Scheme and Petitioner
Companies are not required to seek approval of Competition
Commission of India (“CCI”) for the Scheme. The affidavits of
Petitioner Companies that they are not required to seek approval
of CCI for the Scheme are annexed hereto and marked as

ANNEXURE P-14 (Colly).

2.21 The proposed amalgamation will be in the best interests of the
shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders of the Petitioner
Companies and is not prejudicial to the interest of the concerned
shareholders, creditors and public at large, as it would result in
availing opportunities presented to both entities individually
resulting in efficient management, greater economies of scale and
building a stronger resource base for future growth. Accordingly,
as a result of the amalgamation of the Petitioner Companies, the
following benefits will accrue:

a. Amalgamation is based on leveraging the complementary
strengths of the Petitioner Company 1 and the Petitioner
Company 2. The Amalgamation would create meaningful
value for various stakeholders including shareholders,
employees and customers as the combined entity would
benefit from the Petitioner Company 2's expertise and a
strong track record in oil and gas exploration and
production operations and strengths and expertise of the
Petitioner Company 1 in reservoir management, leveraging
technology deployment, operational efficiency and speed
of execution, with safety and sustainability;

b.  Diversifying Petitioner Company 2's portfolio across
multiple sedimentary basins, both onshore and offshore,
thereby providing access to increased proven oil and gas
resource base and ability to enhance production;

RGY PRIVATE LIMITED For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.
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29



50

C. Enhance value for stakeholders through pooling of
resources and sharing technical capabilities resulting in

creation of a leading energy company in India;

d.  Unison in availing opportunities presented to both entities
individually resulting in efficient management, greater
economies of scale and building a stronger resource base

for future growth;

e. Simplification of the shareholding structure and

strengthening the operational strategy; and

f. Elimination of multiple entities, resulting in the focused
management team, and reduction in overheads and

compliance costs.

The Scheme further provides for the adjustment of the debit
balance of the Retained Earnings Account as on the Appointed
Date viz. April 01, 2023, of Petitioner Company 1 against the
outstanding balance of the Securities Premium Account of
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 66 read with Section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the 2013 Act. The proposed reduction of the
Securities Premium Account of the Petitioner Company 1 does
not involve any financial outlay or outgo and therefore, would not
affect the interest of any stakeholders of the Petitioner Company
1.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors and all
other stakeholders of the respective Petitioner Companies and is
not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders,

creditors and public at large.

2.22 The salient features of the Scheme are as follows:

For Selan Exploration Technnlnay Ltd, For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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i. The Scheme is presented inter-alia under Sections 230 to 3 ’
232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI
Circular read with Section 2(1B) and other applicable
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other
applicable law, if any. Part III of the Scheme provides for
the reduction of the capital of Petitioner Company 1 and
Part IV of the Scheme provides for the amalgamation of
Petitioner Company 1 with Petitioner Company 2 in the
manner set out in the Scheme and dissolution of Petitioner
Company 1 without winding up including various other
matters consequent and incidental thereto or otherwise

integrally connected thereto.

ii. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all assets,
liabilities, contracts, employees, if any, records, etc. of the
Petitioner Company 1 shall stand transferred to the
Petitioner Company 2 subject to the provisions of the

Scheme.

iii. The Appointed Date for the Scheme shall be April 1,
2023, or such other date as may be approved by the NCLT
or any other appropriate authority and accepted by the

Board of Directors.

iv. The Effective Date for the Scheme shall be the date on
which the Scheme shall become effective, which shall be
the last of the dates on which all the conditions, matters
and filings referred to in Clause 27 of the Scheme have
been fulfilled or waived, and the certified copy or
authenticated copy of the order sanctioning this Scheme

passed by the NCLT is filed with the ROC.

V. In terms of Paragraph A (10) of Part I of the SEBI
Circular, the Scheme is required to be approved by the
public shareholders of Petitioner Company 2 and shall be
acted upon only if votes cast by the public shareholders in

favor of the Scheme are more than the number of votes

cast against it.
n Technology L& & For ANTELOPUS 7* 7= -, "CTED
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Vi. As an integral part of the Scheme and as on the Appointed 7) 2—
Date, the debit balance of INR 44,92,75,805 (Indian
Rupees Forty-Four Crores Ninety Two Lakhs Seventy
Five Thousand Eight Hundred and Five Only) of the
Retained Earnings Account of Petitioner Company 1 shall
be adjusted against the credit balance of INR
73,98,53,104 (Indian Rupees Seventy-Three Crores
Ninety Eight Lakhs Fifty-Three Thousand One Hundred
and Four Only) of the Securities Premium Account of
Petitioner Company 1 and such Securities Premium
Account shall be reduced to INR 29,05,77,299 (Indian
Rupees Twenty-Nine Crores Five Lakhs Seventy-Seven
Thousand and Two Hundred and Ninety-Nine Only).

Vil. Pursuant to Clause 9.7 of the Scheme, Petitioner
Company 2 shall stand substituted in and shall always be
deemed to have been a party to all agreements, production
sharing contracts, memorandums of understanding,
deeds, contracts, revenue sharing contracts, interests in oil
blocks, gas fields, interests in operating agreements / joint
operating agreements, right of way to lay pipelines,
petroleum exploratory licenses, exploratory rights,
mining lease(s), forest clearances, environmental
clearances or other specific licenses for exploration,
development and production of oil and gas, land leases for
seismic operations, rights of use in land, authorizations,
permits, approvals, entitlements, subsidies, grants
including any indemnities, guarantees or other similar
rights and entitlements whatsoever, etc. of whatever
nature and wheresoever situated to which Petitioner
Company 1 is a party, including any benefits to which
Petitioner Company 1 may be eligible or entitled, and
subsisting or being effective on or immediately before the

Effective Date.

viii. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all pending legal,

taxation or other proceedings, whether civil or criminal

i Ltd.
For Selan Exploration Technokzgy For ANTELOPUS EXERG -« oo - - MITED
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For Selan Explorat

ix.

xi.

jon Technology Ltd. Shares”)-

(including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority
or tribunal or courts), by or against Petitioner Company 1,
under any statute, shall be continued and enforced by or
against Petitioner Company 2 as effectually and in the
same manner and to the same extent as if the same had
been instituted by or against as the case may be on

Petitioner Company 2.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all employees of
Petitioner Company 1 shall be deemed to become the
employees of Petitioner Company 2, without any break or
interruption in their services and on the basis of continuity
of service, on the terms and conditions no less favorable
than the existing terms and conditions including benefits,
incentives, employee stock options, on which the
employees are engaged as on the Effective Date by

Petitioner Company 1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Petitioner
Company 2 shall account for amalgamation of Petitioner
Company 1 in its books of accounts with the "Pooling of
Interests Method" as set out in Appendix C — ‘Business
Combinations of entities under common control' of Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 103 — ‘Business
Combinations’ prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Pursuant to Clause 20.1 of the Scheme, in consideration
of the amalgamation of Petitioner Company 1 with
Petitioner Company 2, Petitioner Company 2 shall basis
the Amalgamation Share Entitlement Report, issue and
allot to the shareholders of Petitioner Company 1 (whose
name is recorded in the register of members of Petitioner
Company 1 as on the Record Date) equity shares of the
face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each fully

paid-up in the following manner (“Amalgamation

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY oot /TF LIMITED
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Xiil.

a) 4,287 (Four Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty-
Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of INR 10 each
of Selan to be issued for every 10,000 (Ten
Thousand Only) equity shares of INR 10 each of

Petitioner Company 1.

b) 4,287 (Four Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty-
Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of INR 10 each

of Selan to be issued for every 10,000 (Ten
Thousand Only) Class A1 Equity Shares of INR 10

each of Petitioner Company 1.

c) 18 (Eighteen Only) fully paid-up equity shares of
INR 10 each of Selan to be issued for every 10,000
(Ten Thousand Only) RPS of INR 10 each of

Petitioner Company 1.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the name of the
Petitioner Company 2 shall stand changed from “Selan
Exploration Technology Limited” to “Antelopus Selan
Energy Limited” or such other name as may be decided
by the Board of Directors of Petitioner Company 2 and
which is made available by the RoC, in accordance with
the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Petitioner
Company 1 will be amalgamated with Petitioner
Company 2. Once the Scheme becomes effective,
Petitioner Company 1 will be dissolved without the
process of winding up and accordingly, there will be no
accounting treatment in the books of the accounts of the

Petitioner Company 1.

The above are only the salient features of the Scheme and the

Petitioner Companies crave leave to refer and rely upon the terms

of the Scheme as filed with the present Company Application at

the time of hearing.
For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

\ﬁ %Ditector
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2.23 This Hon’ble Tribunal vide its Order dated August 12, 2024
(“Orders”) was pleased to allow CA (CAA)
No.30/CHD/HRY/2024 and further directed the following;:

1. The meetings of the Equity Shareholders and Class Al
Equity Shareholders of Petitioner Company 1 was
proposed to be convened through video conferencing on
October 05, 2024, at 10.30 AM & 11.30 AM respectively
with the facility of remote e-voting;

ii. =~ The meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Petitioner
Company 1 was not necessitated as there were NIL secured
creditors as on March 31, 2024;

iii.  The meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Petitioner
Company 1 was dispensed with due to the consent received
by way of affidavits of 99.96% of value of Unsecured
Creditors of the Petitioner Company 1 as on March 31,
2024;

iv.  The meetings of the Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner
Company 2 was proposed to be convened through video
conferencing on October 05, 2024 at 12.30 PM with the
facility of remote e-voting;

v.  The meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Petitioner
Company 2 was not necessitated as there were NIL Secured
Creditors as on March 31, 2024;

vi.  The meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Petitioner
Company 2 was dispensed with due to the consent received
by way of affidavits of 90.99% of value of Unsecured
Creditors of the Petitioner Company 2 as on March 31,
2024;

vii. It was directed that the quorum for the meeting of Equity
Shareholders of Petitioner Company 1 would be 3 (Three)
in number and for the meeting of Class Al Equity
Shareholders of Petitioner Company 1 would be 1 (One) in
number. Further, the quorum for the meeting of Equity

: hareholders of Petitioner Company 2 would be 4400
For Selan Exploration Tecrology LI For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIUITED
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(Four Thousand and Four Hundred) in number,
Furthermore, it was directed that if the required quorum is
not present at the commencement of the meeting, then the
meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (Thirty) minutes and
thereafter, the shareholders attending the meetings would
be deemed to constitute the quorum for the purpose of
conducting the meetings; and

viii. The individual notices to the above meetings shall be
served, to the Equity Shareholders and Class Al Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 as per the list of
the shareholders of the respective companies as on the date
of passing of this Order viz August 12, 2024, through
registered post or speed post or through courier or e-mail,
30 (Thirty) days in advance before the schedule date of the
meeting, indicating the day, date, place and time, together
with a copy of the scheme, copy of explanatory statement
with a valuation report and other documents as prescribed
under the 2013 Act.
A copy of the Hon’ble NCLT’s Order dated August 12,
2024, is annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-
15.

2.24 Further, Hon’ble Tribunal in the Order dated August 12, 2024,
though has noted in the para 2(f) of the Order that all the
Preference Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 have given
their unconditional and absolute consent to the Scheme and have
also given their no objection by way of Affidavit to the said
Scheme and for dispensation of meeting of the Preference
Shareholders for approving the Scheme. However, due to an
inadvertent error, the Order does not mention anything regarding
the dispensation of the meeting of Preference Shareholders of the

Petitioner Company 1 in its Para No. 23(I).

2.25 In pursuant to this, the Petitioner Companies filed a Joint

larificatory Application on September 04, 2024, requesting the

C
For Selan Exploration Techm™inay For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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2.26

2.27

2.28

Hon’ble Tribunal to include the direction for dispensation of the
meeting of the Preference Shareholders of the Transferor
Company in its Analysis & Findings. Further, vide its order
dated September 26, 2024, the Hon’ble Tribunal was pleased to
dispense with the requirement of conducting a meeting of
Preference shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 in view of
100% consent of Preference shareholders been received. A copy
of the order of Hon’ble Tribunal dated September 26, 2024, has
been annexed hereto and marked as ANNEXURE P-16.

The Affidavit of Compliance (without annexures) with respect to
the dispatch and publication of notice of meeting and service of
notice to the Equity Shareholders and Class Al Equity
Shareholders by Petitioner Company 1 and to the Equity
Shareholders by Petitioner Company 2 was filed before this
Hon’ble Tribunal on September 23, 2024, vide diary no.
0404115023772024/1 and physical diary no. 02377/01 dated
September 26, 2024. A copy of the Affidavit of Service (without
annexures) of Petitioner Companies, with respect to the dispatch
and publication of notice of meeting and service of notice to the
Equity shareholders and Class Al Equity Shareholders of the

Petitioner Company 1 and to the Equity Shareholders of the
Petitioner Company 2, as filed before this Hon’ble Tribunal vide

diary no. 0404115023772024/1 dated September 23, 2024, and a
physical diary number 02377/01 dated September 26, 2024, is
hereto marked and annexed as ANNEXURE P- 17(Colly).

The meeting of the Equity Shareholders and Class Al Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 and Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2 were held through
video conferencing with the facility of e-voting on Saturday,

October 05, 2024, at 10.30 AM, 11.30 AM and 12.30 PM

respectively.

The Petitioner Companies, apart from the facility of voting

through e-voting system during the respective meetings, provided

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd. Fer ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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the shareholders with the facility and option of voting on the g 8
Scheme by casting their votes through remote e-voting during the

period which commenced from Monday, September 30, 2024, at

9:00 A.M. IST and ended on Friday, October 4, 2024, at 5.00 P.M.

IST.

2.29 The meetings of the shareholders of the Petitioner Companies
were duly convened through video conferencing on Saturday,

October 05, 2024, having following details:

i. The meeting of Equity shareholders of the Petitioner
Company 1 commenced at 10.30 AM. At the appointed
time of the meeting, 3 (Three) Equity Shareholders were
present. Since the quorum of the meeting was present, the
meeting was successfully concluded. It is pertinent to
mention that 100% in number and 100% in value of the
equity shareholders voted in favour of the Scheme.

ii.  The meeting of Class Al Equity shareholders of the
Petitioner Company 2 commenced at 11.30 AM. At the
appointed time of the meeting, 01 (One) Class Al Equity
Shareholders was present. Since the quorum of the meeting
was present, the meeting was successfully concluded. It is
pertinent to mention that 100% in number and 100% in
value of the Class Al Equity Shareholders voted in favor
of the Scheme.

iii. =~ The meeting of Equity shareholders of the Petitioner
Company 2 commenced at 12.30 PM. At 12.35 PM, 10
(Ten) Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 2
were present. Since the quorum of the Meeting (i.e. 4400
in number), was not present, thereafter, the meeting was
adjourned for half an hour. The meeting was reconvened at
1:05 PM, and 18 (Eighteen) in number of Equity
Shareholders were present. Thus the 18 Equity
Shareholders who were attending the meeting were

deemed to constitute the quorum for the meeting in

LIMITED
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It is pertinent to mention that 94.94% in number and g Ol
99.06% in value of the Equity Shareholders voted in favour

of the Scheme in terms of 2013 Act.

Furthermore, the votes cast by public Equity Shareholders

of Petitioner Company 2 in favor of the Scheme were
97.01% and the votes cast against the Scheme by public
Equity Shareholders were 2.99% in terms of SEBI Circular

No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20,

2023 (“SEBI Circular”).

2.30 It is submitted that at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
the Petitioner Company 2, the following resolution was put to

vote-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the
applicable provisions of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment or amendment
thereof), the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”), SEBI's Master Circular and circulars
and notifications issued by the SEBI, enabling provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Company and other applicable laws, rules and regulations,
and subject to sanction by the Hon ’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) and other statutory /
regulatory authorities, as may be required and such other
approvals / consents / sanctions / permissions / exemptions, as
may be required under applicable laws, regulations, listing
regulations and guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities
and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be
prescribed or imposed by the NCLT or by the regulatory

horities, while granting such approvals / consents /
orationTeC""""’?qyﬁg FFor ANTELOPUS : MITED
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sanctions / permissions / exemptions, which may be agreed to L‘ 0
by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board’), which
term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more
committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any
person(s) which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers
including the powers conferred by this resolution, approval of
the Equity Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the draft
Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Antelopus Energy
Private Limited ("Antelopus” or “Transferor Company”) and
Selan Exploration Technology Limited ("Selan" or "Transferee
Company" or “Company”) and their respective shareholders
and creditors ("Scheme”), providing for, inter alia, the
reduction of the capital of the Transferor Company and
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the

Transferee Company in the manner set out in the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the any Directors of the
Company, Ms. Yogita (PAN: AMFPY56854) Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer, Mr. Raajeev Tirupati (PAN:
AMXPR?7210E) Chief Financial Officer of the Company be and
are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem
requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to
the resolutions and effectively implement the arrangements
embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications,
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may
be required and/or imposed by the NCLT and/or any other
authority(ies) while sanctioning the Scheme or by any
authority(ies) under law, or as may be required for the purpose
of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may arise including
passing of such accounting entries and/or making such
adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary
in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Directors may deem fit
and proper without being required to seek any further approval

of the members or otherwise to the end and intent that the

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd. For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto Z" l
expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

2.31 It is submitted that the Equity Shareholders and Class A1 Equity
Shareholders of the Petitioner Company 1 have approved the
Scheme in terms of Section 230(6) of the 2013 Act.

2.32 It is submitted that the Equity Shareholders of the Petitioner
Company 2 have approved the Scheme in terms of Section 230(6)
of the 2013 Act and SEBI Circular.

2.33 The copy of the Chairperson’s Report on the meeting of the
shareholders of the Petitioner Companies along with the
Scrutinizer report as filed before this Hon’ble Tribunal is annexed
and hereto marked as ANNEXURE P-18(Colly).

2.34 Accordingly, in the facts of the present case, notice of the present
Second Motion Petition as per Section 230(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, is to be issued to the following statutory authorities:

i. The Central Government, through Regional Director,
Northern Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, B-2 Wing,
2nd Floor, Paryawaran Bhavan, CGO Complex, New
Delhi- 110003;

ii.  The Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi and Haryana,
4" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi-110019;

iii. Official Liquidator (attached with Punjab and Haryana
High Court);

iv.  Securities and Exchange Board of India;

v.  Stock Exchange i.e. BSE and NSE;

vi.  The Income Tax Department, through the Nodal officer
Chandigarh, Delhi High Court (Income Tax Cell) and
Income Tax Ward at Gurgaon;

vii. Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of
India, Shastri Bhavan, New Delhi-110001 (“MoPNG”).

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd. For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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viii. Reserve Bank of India, Regional Office Chandigarh- L’ 2
Central Vista, Sector 17, Chandigarh, 160017.

The Affidavit of each of the Petitioner Company 1 and
Petitioner Company 2 on the issuance of notice to statutory

authorities/ sectoral regulators are annexed hereto and marked

as ANNEXURE P-19 and ANNEXURE P-20.

2.35 Itis further submitted that the present Company Petition discloses
all material facts under Section 230(2) of the 2013 Act relating to

each of the Petitioner Companies.

2.36 It is submitted that there are no investigations or other legal
proceedings pending or any ongoing adjudication and recovery of
proceedings initiated, or other enforcement action pending
against the Petitioner Company 1 under the 2013 Act or any other
provision of law which may have an adverse material effect on

the sanction of the Scheme by this Hon’ble Tribunal.

2.37 It is submitted that there are no investigations or other legal
proceedings pending or any ongoing adjudication and recovery of
proceedings initiated, or other enforcement action pending
against the Petitioner Company 2 under the 2013 Act or any other
provision of law, other than as mentioned below and which will

not have an adverse material effect on the sanction of the Scheme

by this Hon’ble Tribunal.
'S.No.| Court/ * o
Authority Case Matter Status
Name

1. | Division Bench | Appeal filed against
of Delhi High | the decision of Single
| Court Bench of Delhi High

|
~ Pending
| Court with respect to ;
payment of Profit '
, ANA , Petroleum share .
For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED T T Eor Selan EX uratiorrTeehnologﬁ Lid.
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2.38

2.39

For Selan Exploratian Terhnr'ngy Ltd. For ANTELOPUS

| payable to the |
Government of India
for Lohar Oilfield
operated by Petitioner

Company 2.

The Affidavit to the above by the Petitioner Company 1 and the
Petitioner Company 2 are annexed hereto and marked as

ANNEXURE P-21 and ANNEXURE P-22 respectively.

It is further submitted that the Scheme provides for a reduction in
share capital of the Petitioner Company 1 in the retained earnings
account of amount INR 44,92,75,805 (Indian Rupees Forty-Four
Crores Ninety-Two Lakhs Seventy-Five Thousand Eight Hundred
and Five Only) and a credit balance in the securities premium
account of INR 73,98,53,104 (Indian Rupees Seventy-Three
Crores Ninety-Eight Lakhs Fifty-Three Thousand One Hundred
and Four Only). Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
aforesaid debit balance of the Retained Earning Account of the
Petitioner Company 1 shall be adjusted against the credit balance
of the Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company
shall be reduced to INR 29,05,77,299 (Indian Rupees Twenty-
Nine Crores Five Lakhs Seventy-Seven Thousand and Two

Hundred and Ninety-Nine Only).

The Scheme does not provide for any corporate debt restructuring
under Section 230(2)(c) of the 2013 Act of either the Petitioner
Company 1 or the Petitioner Company 2. There is no proposal to
restructure or vary the debt obligation of the Petitioner Company
1 towards their respective creditors. Post Scheme combined assets
of Petitioner Company 1 and Petitioner Company 2 will be
sufficient to meet all the third-party liabilities in the Petitioner
Company 2. The Scheme will not adversely affect the rights of
any of the creditors of the Petitioner Company 1 or the Petitioner
Company 2 in any manner whatsoever.

D
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2.40 The Scheme does not envisage any buyback of shares. L’ L,

2.41 None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (as defined
under the 2013 Act and Rules framed thereunder) of Petitioner
Company 1 and Petitioner Company 2 and their respective
relatives (as defined under the Petitioner Company 1 and Rules
framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the
extent of the shares held by them in Petitioner Company 1 and
Petitioner Company 2, and/or to the extent that the said
Director(s) and Key Managerial Personnel are the common
Director(s)/ Key Managerial Personnel of Petitioner Company 1
and/ or Petitioner Company 2. Save as aforesaid, none of the said
Directors or the Key Managerial have any material interest in the

Scheme.

2.42 The Petitioner Companies shall suffer irreparable loss and

prejudice unless orders are passed as prayed for.

2.43 That the Annexures appended hereto are true copies of their

respective originals.

2.44 This Petition is made bona fide and in the interest of justice. No

one will be prejudiced if orders are made and/or directions are

given as prayed for.

2.45 Inview of what has been stated herein above, and in the facts and
circumstances of the case and in exercise of its powers under
Sections 230 to 232 of the 2013 Act read with Section 66 and
Section 52 of the 2013 Act , read with Rule 15 of the 2016 Rules,
and other applicable provisions, it is most respectfully prayed that
this Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) be pleased

to:

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
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3.2

3.3

34

3.5

For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

RELIEF (S) SOUGHT:

Direct publication of the general notice of hearing in the
newspapers namely, “BUSINESS STANDARD” (English-Delhi
NCR Edition) and “JAN SATTA” (Hindi-Delhi NCR Edition);

Direct service of notice of this Second Motion Petition on the

Statutory Authorities as mentioned in the clause 2.34.

Sanction the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation between
Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“Petitioner Company 1/
Transferor Company”) and Selan Exploration Technology
Limited (“Petitioner Company 2/Transferee Company”) and their
respective Shareholders and Creditors to binding on their
respective shareholders and creditors of each of the Petitioner

Company.

Passing order for dissolution of the Petitioner Company 1 without

the process of winding up.

Pass such other order(s) or direction(s) as this Hon’ble Tribunal

may deem fit in the facts and circumstances of the present case.

JURISDICTION
That the subject matter of the Present Petition falls within the

jurisdiction of this bench.

PARTICULARS OF BANK DRAFT EVIDENCING
PAYMENT OF FEES FOR THE PETITION MADE:

The applicable filing fees is being paid online on the e-portal of
the Hon’ble NCLT.

s ‘A\ITED

For ANTELOPUS EAC

\A % Dirgctor
Comzatt] Secretary
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For Antelopus Energy Private Limited

prus ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
\ ///
Mr. s'ﬂ/ K%r Pothepalfirector

Designation: Director
DIN;

Email: sivakumar.pothepalli@antelopusenergy.com

For Selan Exploration Technology Limited
For Selan Exploration Technology Ltd.

U CRE—

U
Company Secreta
Ms. Yogl% vany Secreiary

Designation: Company Secretary

Email: yogita@selanoil.com

Place: Noida
Dated: October 14, 2024

Filed by-
W J WJQA

Adv Atul V Sood

Um -
Adv Suman Kumar Jha

—
M/
Adv Afnaan Siddiqui
(Advocate for PetitionerCompanies)
Corp Legex (Advocates & Solicitors)
912, Wave Silver Tower, Sector -18,
Noida- 201301

Mob. No.: 9716406207
Email Id: afhaan@corplegex.com
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH-II
COMPANY PETITION NO. (CAA) __ /CHD/HRY/2024
CONNECTED WITH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) No. 30/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED, a company
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate
Identification Number U74999HR2018PTC076012 and having its
registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th floor, IMD Megapolis
Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018, Haryana, through its
authorized signatory, Name- Mr. Siva Kumar Pothepalli, Mobile No.-
9582170375, E-mail Id- Sivakumar.pothepalli@antelopusenergy.com.
Income Tax PAN (AARCA3453F), Assessing Officer Circle 1(1), Ward
(Range) 53, Gurugram

... Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor Company

48



SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED, a company
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate
Identification Number L74899HR1985PLC113196 and having its
registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, JMD Megapolis
Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon- 122018, Haryana through its
authorized signatory, Name- Ms. Yogita, Mobile No.- 9582545040, E-
mail Id- yogita@selanoil.com.

Income Tax PAN- (AAACS0342Q), Assessing Officer Circle 22(2),
Ward (Range) 37, Delhi

... Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee Company

AFFIDAVIT

I, Siva Kumar Pothepalli, son of Mr Siva Prasada Rao Pothepalli,
resident of Flat No. 301, Tower-15, The Close North, Nirvana County,
Sector 50, Gurgaon, Haryana — 122018, presently at Gurugram, do

solemnly affirm and say as follows:

1. That I am the authorized signatory of the aforesaid Petitioner
Company 1 and I am duly authorized by the said company vide its
board resolution dated November 22, 2023, to depose this affidavit
as such well-versed with the facts and circumstances of the present

case and as such competent to file the present affidavit.

2. That the accompanying Second Motion Petition under Section 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 15 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016, for seeking directions for sanctioning of the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Antelopus Energy
Private Limited (Transferor Company/ Petitioner Company 1) and
Selan Exploration Technology Limited (Transferee Company/
Petitioner Company 2) and their respective shareholders and

creditors has been drafted by the counsel on my instructions. I have

affum that the
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correct as per the official records maintained in the ordinary course
of business. No part of it is false and nothing material has been kept

concealed there from.

That the annexures attached with the accompanying Petition are

true copies of the original documents.

DEPONENT

Jogindgr Singh
Area Gurygram

Regd. No.- 16763
E




VYERIFICATION

I, the deponent above named do hereby verify that the contents of my
above affidavit are based on the records of the Petitioner Company 1
and believed by me to be true, no part of it is false and nothing material

has been concealed therefrom.

Verified on this day of October, 2024

Place:

Date:

DEPONENT

ATTESTED
/s \\
Regd. No.- 1678 JOGIN G
Exp. Dt- ADVOCATE TARY
GL\_ 31012025 |/ GURUGRAM DISTT. (HR.)
r s
. OF \

10 0CT 2024
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, CHANDIGARH BENCH-II
COMPANY PETITION NO. (CAA) __/CHD/HRY/2024
CONNECTED WITH
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) No. 30/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES, 2013 READ
WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52 AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013,
READ WITH THE RULE 15 OF THE COMPANIES
(COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016.

AND

IN THE MATTER OF:

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED, a company
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate
Identification Number U74999HR2018PTC076012 and having its
registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th floor, JMD Megapolis
Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018, Haryana, through its
authorized signatory, Name- Mr. Siva Kumar Pothepalli, Mobile No.-
9582170375, E-mail Id- Sivakumar.pothepalli@antelopusenergy.com.
Income Tax PAN (AARCA3453F), Assessing Officer Circle 1(1), Ward
(Range) 53, Gurugram

... Petitioner Company 1/ Transferor Company

AND
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SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED, a company
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 having Corporate
Identification Number L74899HR1985PLC113196 and having its
registered office located at Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, JMD Megapolis
Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon- 122018, Haryana through its
authorized signatory, Name- Ms. Yogita, Mobile No.- 9582545040, E-
mail Id- yogita@selanoil.com.

Income Tax PAN- (AAACS0342Q), Assessing Officer Circle 22(2),
Ward (Range) 37, Delhi

... Petitioner Company 2/ Transferee Company

AFFIDAVIT

I, Yogita, Daughter of Mr Mohinder Pal Singh, resident of E-1501, GPL
Eden Heights, Sector 70, Gurgaon, Haryana — 122018, presently at

Gurugram, do solemnly affirm and say as follows:

1. ThatI am the authorized signatory and Company Secretary of the
aforesaid Petitioner Company 2 and I am duly authorized by the
said company vide its board resolution dated November 22, 2023,
to depose this affidavit as such well-versed with the facts and
circumstances of the present case and as such competent to file the

present affidavit.

2. That the accompanying Second Motion Petition under Section 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 15 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016, for seeking directions for sanctioning of the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Antelopus Energy

Private Limited (Transferor Company/ Petitioner Company 1) and

Selan Exploration Technology Limited (Transferee Company/
Petitioner Company 2) and their respective shareholders and

creditors has been drafted by the counsel on my instructions. I have

gone through the accompanying Petition and affirm that the

contents of Para 1 to 5 of the accompanying Petition are true and



correct as per the official records maintained in the ordinary course
of business. No part of it is false and nothing material has been kept

concealed there from.

That the annexures attached with the accompanying Petition are

true copies of the original documents.

PONENT
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VERIFICATION

I, the deponent above named do hereby verify that the contents of my
above affidavit are based on the records of the Petitioner Company 2
and believed by me to be true, no part of it is false and nothing material

has been concealed therefrom.

Verified on this day of October, 2024

Place:

Date:

%‘A@/

DEPONENT

ATTERTED

N\

JOGIN SINGH
ADVOCATE & NOTARY
GURUGRAM DISTT. (HR.)

10 0CT 2024




Aonvexvge PA
57

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
(“Transferor Company”)

AND

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(“Transferee Company”)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTION 66 AND SECTION 52
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULES MADE
THEREUNDER

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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PREAMBLE

This Composite Scheme of Arrangement is presented pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230
to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as defined
hereinafter) between Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“Antelopus” or “Transferor Company”)
and Selan Exploration Technology Limited (“Selan” or “Transferee Company”) for inter alia:

1. Reduction of capital of the Transferor Company;

2.  Amalgamation (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company; and

3.  Various other matters incidental, consequential or otherwise integrally connected
herewith.

DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

The Transferor Company is a private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the
Act on September 25, 2018, having Corporate Identification Number U74999HR2018PTC076012.

The registered office of the Transferor Company is situated at Unit No. 455-457, 4 Floor, JMD
Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon -122018, Haryana.

The Transferor Company is primarily engaged in the business of exploration and production of oil
and gas and is focused on monetizing discovered and stranded resources in the Indian
subcontinent.

The Transferor Company operates 4 (Four) contract areas i.e., 2 (Two) offshore contract areas,
one each in the West Coast and the East Coast of India and 2 (Two) onshore contract areas, one
each in the State of Assam and the State of Andhra Pradesh. The onshore contract area in the
State of Andhra Pradesh is awaiting the grant of Petroleum Mining Lease by the Government of
Andhra Pradesh. The proven and possible reserves as certified by a third party international
independent reserves auditor for the 3 (Three) contract areas (other than the resources for the
onshore contract area in Andhra Pradesh which are yet to be certified by an independent third-
party reserve agency) is approximately 55,000,000 (Fifty Five Million) barrels of oil equivalent.
These reserves are computed in accordance with the SPE — PRMS (Society of Petroleum Engineers
— Petroleum Resource Management Systems). The expertise of the Transferor Company lies in
value creation through reservoir management, leveraging technology deployment, operational
efficiency and speed of execution, with safety and sustainability as their core values.

Presently, the entire equity share capital of the Transferor Company is held by Blackbuck Energy
Investments Limited, an exempted company incorporated with limited liability under the laws of
Cayman Islands, having its registered office at Walkers Corporate Limited, Cayman Corporate
Centre, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-9008, Cayman Islands (“Blackbuck”)
and its nominee(s). The RPS (as defined hereinafter) are held by Mr. Suniti Kumar Bhat, Ms. Payal
Upadhyay and Mr. Siva Kumar Pothepalli.

Selan Exploration Technology Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Selan” or the “Transferee
Company”) is a public listed limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 on July 05, 1985, having Corporate Identification Number L74899HR1985PLC113196.

The registered office of the Transferee Company is situated at Unit No. 455-457, 4" Floor, JMD
Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon — 122018, Haryana.

The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India
Ltd. (“NSE”) and the BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Transferee Company is primarily engaged in the
business of exploration and production of oil and gas.

=
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Iv.

The Transferee Company is engaged in Oil and Gas Exploration and Production (E&P) since 1992
and has deep expertise and a strong track record of operating oil and gas fields by virtue of its
operations in Bakrol, Karjistan and Lohar in the Cambay basin.

As on September 30, 2023, Blackbuck holds 30.46% equity shares of the Transferee Company, and
the balance 69.54% equity shares are held by the public shareholders.

RATIONALE

The Scheme (as defined hereinafter) provides for the reduction of share capital of the Transferor
Company and the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee
Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and read with Section 66 and Section
52 and other applicable provisions of the Act and is expected to achieve the following objectives:

1. The Amalgamation is based on leveraging the complementary strengths of the Transferor
Company and Transferee Company. The Amalgamation would create meaningful value
for various stakeholders including shareholders, employees and customers as the
combined entity would benefit from the Transferee company’s expertise and a strong
track record in oil and gas exploration and production operations and strengths and
expertise of the Transferor Company in reservoir management, leveraging technology
deployment, operational efficiency and speed of execution, with safety and sustainability.

2, Diversifying Transferee Company’s portfolio across multiple sedimentary basins, both
onshore and offshore, thereby providing access to increased proven oil and gas resource
base and ability to enhance production.

3. Enhance value for stakeholders through pooling of resources and sharing technical
capabilities resulting in creation of a leading energy company in India.

4, Unison in availing opportunities presented to both entities individually resulting in
efficient management, greater economies of scale and building a stronger resource base
for future growth.

5. Simplification of the shareholding structure and strengthening the operational strategy.

6. Elimination of multiple entities, resulting in focused management team, reduction in

overheads and compliance costs.

The Scheme further provides for the adjustment of the debit balance of the Retained Earnings
Account as on the Appointed Date (as defined hereinafter) of the Transferor Company against the
outstanding balance of the Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company pursuant to
the provisions of Sections 66 read with Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act. The
proposed reduction of the Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company does not
involve any financial outlay or outgo and therefore, would not affect the interest of any
stakeholders of the Transferor Company.

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors and all other stakeholders of the
respective Companies and is not prejudicial to the interests of the concerned shareholders,

creditors and public at large.

PARTS OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part | : Definitions and interpretations

Partll  : Details of the share capital /

Page 3 of 32
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Partlll
Part v
PartVv

Reduction of capital of Antelopus
Amalgamation of Antelopus with and into Selan
General terms & conditions applicable to the Scheme

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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1.1.

PARTI

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions
shall have the meanings respectively assigned against them:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)

“Accounting Standards” means the Indian Accounting Standards as notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and the other accounting principles generally
accepted in India;

“Act’ or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules (including the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangement, and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016), regulations,
circulars, notifications, clarifications, orders or guidelines issued thereunder and as
amended from time to time and includes any statutory replacement or re-enactment
thereof, if the context so requires and as may be applicable;

“Amalgamation” means the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the
Transferee Company as per Part IV of this Scheme;

“Amalgamation Shares” has the meaning ascribed to that term in Clause 20.1 of this
Scheme;

“Amalgamation Share Entitlement Report” means the valuation report on the share
entitlement ratio dated November 22, 2023 issued by Bansi S. Mehta Valuers LLP,
Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2022/172);

“Applicable Law(s)” means (a) all applicable statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or
parliament, laws, notifications, bye laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, rule of common
law, policy, code, directives, ordinances, orders or instructions having the force of law
enacted or issued by any Governmental Authority including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force; and (b) administrative interpretation,
writ, injunction, directions, directives, judgements, arbitral award, decree, orders or
governmental approvals of, or agreements with, any Governmental Authority;

“Appointed Date” means:

(a) For the purpose of Part Il of the Scheme, April 1, 2023 (opening business hours) or
such other date as may be decided or approved by the NCLT or such other
Governmental Authority and accepted by the Board of Directors.

(b)  For the purpose of Part IV of the Scheme, April 1, 2023 {opening business hours),
after giving effect to Part Ill of the Scheme or such other date as may be decided or
approved by the NCLT or such other Governmental Authority and accepted by the
Board of Directors.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and
the Transferee Company or both as the context may require and shall include a
committee duly constituted and authorized thereby for matters pertaining to this Scheme
and/ or any other consequential or incidental matter in relation thereto;

“Companies” means collectively, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company;

“Class Al Equity Shares” means Class Al Equity Shares of Face Value of INR 10/- (indian
Rupees Ten Only), issued and allotted by the Transferor Company;

N\
N\
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(xi)

(i)

(i)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

{xxii)

(xxiii)

“Effective Date” means the date on which the Scheme shall become effective, which shall
be the last of the dates on which all the conditions, matters and filings referred to in
Clause 27 hereof have been fulfilled or waived, and the certified copy or authenticated
copy of the order sanctioning this Scheme passed by the NCLT is filed with the ROC. Any
references in this Scheme to the date of “Scheme becoming effective” or “coming into
effect of this Scheme” or “effectiveness of the Scheme” or “Scheme taking effect” shall
mean the Effective Date;

“Encumbrance” or “Encumber” means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, assighment,
deed of trust, hypothecation, security interest, or other encumbrance or interest of any
kind, or any other right, claim, or option, including any right of first refusal or any right of
pre-emption, or any agreement or arrangement to create any of the foregoing;

“Government” or “Governmental Authority” means any applicable central, state or local
government, legislative body, regulatory or administrative authority, agency or
commission or committee or any court, tribunal, board, bureau, instrumentality, judicial
or quasi-judicial or arbitral body having jurisdiction over the territory of India, which for
the avoidance of doubt shall also include MoPNG;

“Income Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961 and shall include any statutory
modification, re-enactment thereof or amendments thereto for time to time and the rules
and regulations made thereunder;

“INR” means Indian Rupees;
“MoPNG” means Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas, Government of India;

“NCLT” or “Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench at
Chandigarh having jurisdiction over the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
and shall include, if applicable, any Appropriate Authority having powers to sanction the
Scheme under the Act;

“Record Date(s)” means the date fixed by the Board of the Transferor Company in
consultation with the Board of the Transferee Company for the purpose of determining
the shareholders of the Transferor Company who shall be entitled to receive the
Amalgamation Shares as consideration in accordance with Clause 20.1 of this Scheme;

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC” means the Registrar of Companies, National Capital
Territory of Delhi and Haryana or such other Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction
over the Companies;

“RPS” means 0.001% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares having face value
of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each, issued and allotted by the Transferor Company;

“RBI” means the Reserve Bank of India;

“Selan ESOP Scheme” means the Selan Exploration Technology Limited Employee Stock
Scheme 2022 of the Transferee Company pursuant to which stock options have been
granted to the eligible employees of the Transferee Company;

“Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “the Scheme” means this Composite Scheme of
Arrangement between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company and their
respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act in its
present form and with such modifications and amendments as may be made from time
to time with the appropriate approvals and sanctions of the NCLT and other relevant
regulatory/ statutory/ governmental authorities, as may be required under the Act, and/
or any other the Applicable Laws;

A\
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1.2,

2.1.

2.2,

2.3.

2.4,

(xxiv) “SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

(xxv)  “SEBI Circular” means the Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated
June 20, 2023 issued by SEBI (as amended from time to time);

(xxvi) “Stock Exchanges” means the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and the BSE
Limited;

(xxvii) “Tax” or “Taxes” means “ means any and all taxes (direct or indirect), surcharges, fees,
levies, cess, duties, tariffs, imposts and other charges of any kind in each case in the nature
of a tax, imposed by any Governmental Authority (whether payable directly or by
withholding), including taxes based upon or measured by income, profits, sales and value
added services, goods and services tax (GST), whether CGST, SGST, IGST, any duty, value-
added tax, minimum alternate tax, securities transaction tax, customs and excise duty and
registration fees (together with any and all interest, penalties, additions to tax and
additional amounts imposed with respect thereto);

(xxviii) “Transferee Company” shall mean Selan Exploration Technology Limited as defined in
Clause lI(B) above; and

(xxix) “Transferor Company” shall mean Antelopus Energy Private Limited as defined in
Clause 1I{A) above.

Capitalized terms defined by inclusion in quotations and / or parenthesis have the meanings so
ascribed therein. Capitalized terms which are not otherwise defined shall, unless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the
Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (including the rules and regulations made thereunder), the Depositories Act, 1996, the
Income Tax Act and other Applicable Laws.

INTERPRETATIONS

Reference to clauses, recitals, and schedules, unless otherwise provided, are to clauses, recitals
and schedules of and to this Scheme.

The singular shall include the plural and vice versa.

The headings and sub-headings are for information only and shall not affect the construction of
this Scheme.

Any phase introduced by the terms “including”, “include” or any similar expression shall be
construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of words preceding those terms.

DATE OF COMING INTO EFFECT

The Scheme as set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) as may be approved
or imposed or directed by the NCLT or made in accordance with the Scheme and in each case
accepted by the Board of Directors of the Companies, shall be effective from the Appointed Date
but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

65
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4,

4.1.

4.2,

65

PART Il
DETAILS OF THE SHARE CAPITAL
SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferor Company as on September 30, 2023 is as under:

PARTICULARS . AMOUNT (IN INR)
| Authorized share capital . .
~5,01,32,889 Equity Shares of INR 10 each . 50,13,28,890
8,67,111 Class Al Equity Shares of INR 10 each . 8671110 |
15,00,000 RPS of INR 10 each - ~1,50,00,000
| TOTAL - - ' 52,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital 7
4,55,86,120 Equity Shares of INR 10 each | 45,58,61,200
'8,67,111 Class A1 Equity Shares of INR 10 each ) 86,71,110
[f 114,75,933 RPS of INR 10 each N .~ 1,47,59,330
'TOTAL , B . 47,92,91,640

Post September 30, 2023, the Board of the Transferor Company at its meeting dated November
22, 2023 have approved an issuance of equity shares on a rights basis in accordance with the
provisions of Section 62(1)(a) of the Act. Pursuant to the rights issue, the shareholders of
Transferor Company have agreed to subscribe for allotment of 1,05,443 (One Lakh Five Thousand
Four Hundred and Forty Three Only) equity shares having face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten
Only) each.

The Transferor Company does not have any employee stock option plan.

The share capital of the Transferee Company as on September 30, 2023 is as under:

| PARTICULARS - AMOUNT (IN INR)
rrAuthoAl_'_i_zedisha[e Capital 7 ) ) 7

| 2,90,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each ©29,00,00,000

| 1,00,000 Preference Shares of INR 100 each ~1,00,00,000

| TOTAL ~30,00,00,000

| Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital o 7

. 1,52,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each ' 15,20,00,000

' ToTAL , " 15,20,00,000

Subsequent to September 30, 2023 and till November 22, 2023 i.e., the date of the Board meeting
in which the Scheme is approved by the Board of the Transferee Company, there has been no
change in the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital of the Transferee
Company.

The Transferee Company at its board meeting held on November 22, 2023 have approved the
issuance of equity shares and/ or other eligible securities or any combination thereof, for an
aggregate amount of up to INR 250,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred Fifty Crores Only) by
way of a qualified institutional placement or through any other permissible mode and/or
combination thereof as may be considered appropriate under Applicable Law in accordance with
the provisions of the Act and Chapter VI and other applicable provisions of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2018 (“SEBI
ICDR").

The Transferee Company is in the process of seeking necessary approvals including approval from
the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Chapter VI and other applicable
provisions of the SEBI ICDR in relation to the aforementioned issuance of equity shares and/ or
other eligible securities. The proposed issuance may be undertaken by the Transferee Company
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5.1,

5.2.

5.3.

during or after the pendency of the Scheme. Further, the proceeds from the proposed fund raise,
subject to the provisions of the Applicable Laws, may be used by the Transferee Company inter
alia for working capital, general corporate purposes and including but not limited to provision of
debt financing or any other route as permissible under Applicable Law to the Transferor Company
for its business operations.

As on September 30, 2023, the Transferee Company has granted a total of 2,20,181 (Two Lakh
Twenty Thousand One Hundred and Eighty-One Only) valid employee stock options under the
Selan ESOP Scheme to eligible employees, which shall vest in accordance with the terms of the
Selan ESOP Scheme. Thus, during the pendency of this Scheme or anytime thereafter, if any of
the eligible employees exercise the employee stock options granted under the Selan ESOP
Scheme, the Transferee Company shall be required to issue fully paid-up equity shares of the
Transferee Company in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Selan ESOP Scheme.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

This Scheme, has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as
specified under the income-tax laws, specifically Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act and other
relevant sections (including Section 47, 72A of Income Tax Act), which include the following:

a. all properties of the Transferor Company immediately before the Amalgamation becomes
properties of the Transferee Company by virtue of the Amalgamation;

b. all the liabilities of the Transferor Company immediately before the Amalgamation
become the liabilities of the Transferee Company by virtue of the Amalgamation;

C. shareholders holding not less than three-fourths in value of the shares in the Transferor
Company (other than shares already held therein immediately before the Amalgamation
by, or by a nominee for, the Transferee Company) become shareholders of the Transferee
Company by virtue of the Amalgamation, otherwise than as a resuit of the acquisition of
the property of one company by the other company pursuant to the purchase of such
property by the other company or as a result of the distribution of such property to the
other company after the winding up of the first mentioned company.

Further, this Scheme complies with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified under
Section 2(1B), Section 47 and other relevant sections and provisions of the Income Tax Act and is
intended to apply accordingly. If any terms or clauses of the Scheme is / are found to be or
interpreted to be inconsistent with any of the said sections or provisions of the Income Tax Act
(including the conditions set out therein) at a later date, whether as a result of a new enactment
or any amendment or coming into force of any provision of the Income Tax Act or any other law
or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reasons whatsoever, the said provisions
or sections of the Income Tax Act shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent
necessary to comply with said provisions or sections of the Income Tax Act. Such modification
will however not affect other parts of the Scheme.

Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Scheme, the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Companies (acting through their respective Board of Directors) may make or assent, from time to
time, to any such modifications, variations, amendments, including providing any clarifications or
confirmations to / in the Scheme, which they deem necessary and expedient or beneficial to the
interests of the stakeholders and / or as may be required / approved by the Tribunal and other
Governmental Authority.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

73

PART Il
REDUCTION OF CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY
UTILIZATION OF SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT

As on the Appointed Date, the Transferor Company has debit balance of INR 44,92,75,805 (Indian
Rupees Forty-Four Crores Ninety-Two Lakhs Seventy-Five Thousand Eight Hundred and Five Only)
in the Retained Earnings Account and a credit balance of INR 73,98,53,104 (Indian Rupees
Seventy-Three Crores Ninety-Eight Lakhs Fifty-Three Thousand One Hundred and Four Only) in
the Securities Premium Account. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the aforesaid debit
balance of the Retained Earnings Account of the Transferor Company shall be adjusted against
the credit balance of the Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company and such
Securities Premium Account of the Transferor Company shall be reduced to INR 29,05,77,299
(Indian Rupees Twenty-Nine Crores Five Lakhs Seventy-Seven Thousand and Two Hundred and
Ninety Nine Only).

The utilization of the Securities Premium Account as envisaged under Clause 6.1 above shall be
effected as an integral part of the Scheme and the consent or approval of the shareholders and /
or the creditors of the Companies to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their consent for the
purpose of effecting the aforesaid under Section 66 or any other provisions of the Act and no
further resolutions or actions, including compliance with procedural requirements, would be
required to be undertaken by the Transferor or Transferee Company under the Act. Further, no
separate sanction, approval or consent shall be necessary under Section 52 or Section 66 of the
Act or any other Applicable Law for utilization of the Securities Premium Account as envisaged
under Clause 6.1 above once the Scheme has been sanctioned by the NCLT under Sections 230 to
232 of the Act.

The reduction of the balance appearing in the Securities Premium Account as envisaged under
Clause 6.1 above does not involve reduction in the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
of the Transferor Company or any payment to the shareholders of the Transferor Company and
nor does it result in extinguishment of any liability of any person.

For giving effect to the above, the consent or approval of the shareholders and / or the creditors
of the Transferor Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purpose of
effecting the aforesaid reduction of capital of the Transferor Company and no further resolution
or action under the provisions of Section 66 and any other related provisions of the Act would be
required to be separately passed or taken. The Transferor Company shall not, nor shall be obliged
to call for a separate meeting of its shareholders and creditors (secured, unsecured or otherwise)
for obtaining their approval sanctioning the reduction of the capital of the Transferor Company
as per Clause 6.1 above.

Notwithstanding the reduction in capital of the Transferor Company as aforesaid, the Transferor
Company shall not be required to add “and reduced” as suffix to its name.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the debit balance
of Retained Earnings Account shall be adjusted against the Securities Premium Account of the
Transferor Company as specified in Clause 6.1 above.

The Transferor Company will comply with all the relevant accounting policies and accounting
standards as applicable to the Transferor Company, in relation to the accounting for reduction of
capital as per applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

The Transferor Company will make and pass appropriate entries for all notional adjustments for
captioned capital reduction in a prudent and commercially acceptable manner.
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8.1

8.2.

9.1

9.2,

9.3.

PART IV
AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY
AMALGAMATION

Pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, read with Section 66 and Section 52 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act., and upon this Scheme becoming effective, the entire business and
undertaking of the Transferor Company together with all its assets, liabilities, contracts,
employees, records, licenses, borrowings, approvals, properties, estate, rights, title and
authorities, benefits, claims, proceedings, shall be amalgamated and stand transferred to and be
vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and be vested, as a going concern, in the
Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date, subject to existing charges thereon in
favour of the banks and financial institutions or otherwise, as the case may be, whether or not
included in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company without any further act, instrument
or deed, matter or thing to be made, done or executed so as to become, as and from the
Appointed Date, the business and undertaking of the Transferee Company by operation of law
pursuant to the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 8.1 above, with effect from the Appointed Date, all
the estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and
appurtenances of the Transferor Company, of whatsoever nature and wherever situated, whether
or not included in the books of the Transferor Company shall, subject to the provisions of this
Clause in relation to the mode of vesting and without any further act, deed matter or thing, be
and stand transferred to and vested in or shall be deemed to have been transferred to and vested
in the Transferee Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets,
rights, claims, title, interest authorities of the Transferee Company, in the manner below.

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

The assets of the Transferor Company that are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of
transfer by delivery of possession, payment or by endorsement and delivery, or by vesting and,
including furniture, equipment, books, records, files, papers, computer programs, data,
production plans, or any other records shall be transferred by the Transferor Company and
become vested in and the property of the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed
Date. The vesting pursuant to this Clause 9 shall be deemed to have occurred by physical or
constructive delivery or by endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal, pursuant to this
Scheme, as appropriate to the property being vested and the title to the property shall be deemed
to have been transferred accordingly.

All other movable assets of the Transferor Company, including investments in shares, mutual
funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any,
recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, with
Government, semi-government, local and other authorities and bodies, customers and other
persons, shall without any further act, instrument or deed, pursuant to the orders of the NCLT
and by operation of law become the property of the Transferee Company, and the title thereof
together with all rights, interests or obligations therein shall be deemed to have been transferred
by way of delivery of possession of the respective documents in this regard, with effect from the
Appointed Date.

In respect of the rights, title, claims, interest, investment, properties, or assets of whatsoever
nature belonging to the Transferor Company, whether or not included in the books of accounts
of the Transferor Company, other than those referred above, the same shall, without any further
act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/ or be deemed to be transferred to
and vested in the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date.
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9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

=

All security interest over any movable or immovable properties and security in any other form,
including pledges or guarantees created or executed by any person in favor of, acting on behalf
of, or for the benefit of the Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument, or deed
stand vested in and be deemed to be in favor of the Transferee Company and the benefit of such
security shall be available to the Transferee Company as if such security had been created for the
benefit of the Transferee Company in the first place.

All immovable properties of the Transferor Company (if any), including land, together with the
buildings and structures standing thereof, and rights and interests in immovable properties of the
Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold or otherwise, and all documents of title,
rights and easements in relation thereto and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and
interest in connection with the said immovable properties, shall stand transferred to and vested
in, and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in, the Transferee Company, without
any further act or deed being done, or being required to be done, by the Transferor Company, or
the Transferee Company or both. The Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise all rights
and privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties, and shall be liable to pay the
ground rent and taxes, and fulfil all obligations in relation to, or applicable to, such immovable
properties (if any). The mutation or substitution of the title to the immovable properties and
updates to the corresponding title records, where required, shall, upon this Scheme becoming
effective, be undertaken and duly recorded in the name of the Transferee Company, by
appropriate Governmental Authorities, in accordance with Applicable Law, without entering into
further deed, instrument or writing.

Until the owned property, leasehold property and related rights thereto, license or right to use
the immovable property, tenancy rights, liberties and special status are transferred, vested,
recorded, effected and/or perfected in the record of the Governmental Authorities in favour of
the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to carry on
business in the name and style of the Transferor Company under the relevant agreement, deed,
lease and/or license, as the case may be, and the Transferee Company shall keep a record and
account of such transactions. For purposes of taking on record the name of the Transferee
Company in the records of the Governmental Authorities in respect of transfer of immovable
properties to the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme, the Boards of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may approve the execution of such documents
or deeds as may be necessary, including deed of assignment of lease or leave or license (as the
case may be) by the Transferor Company in favour of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall stand substituted in and shall always be deemed to have been a
party to all agreements, production sharing contracts, memorandums of understanding, deeds,
contracts, revenue sharing contracts (including as the agreements provided in Annexure 1),
interests in oil blocks, gas fields, interests in operating agreements / joint operating agreements,
right of way to lay pipelines, petroleum exploratory licenses, exploratory rights, mining lease(s),
forest clearances, environmental clearances or other specific licenses for exploration,
development and production of oil and gas, land leases for seismic operations, rights of use in
land, authorizations, permits, approvals, entitlements, subsidies, grants including any
indemnities, guarantees or other similar rights and entitlements whatsoever, etc. of whatever
nature and wheresoever situated to which the Transferor Company is a party, including any
benefits to which the Transferor Company may be eligible or entitled, and subsisting or being
effective on or immediately before the Effective Date (collectively referred to as “Agreements”)
and all such Agreements and all interests therein shall remain in full force and effect against or in
favour of the Transferee Company and shall be binding on and be enforceable by and against the
Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if the Transferee Company had been a party
thereto. The Transferee Company, if so required, shall provide certified copies of the order of the
NCLT sanctioning the Scheme to the counter parties to the Agreements and such relevant
regulatory/ statutory/ governmental authorities including but not limited to MoPNG for
information purposes and such parties and relevant regulatory/ statutory/ governmental
authorities shall make and duly record the necessary substitution or endorsement in the name of
the Transferee Company as successor, pursuant to such orders without any break in the validity
and enforceability of such Agreement. However, till the time such substitution/ endorsement is
actually effected, the Transferee Company shall always be deemed to a party to all such
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9.8.

9.9.

9.10.

10.

10.1.

11.

11.1.

11.2.

Agreements and be allowed to operate in the name and style of the Transferor Company. It is
hereby clarified that all rates, fees, bank guarantees/security deposits in favour of relevant
authority, profit/ revenue sharing, etc. paid by the Transferor Company till the Effective Date shall
be considered paid by or for the Transferee Company and shall be considered part of total sum
payable under such Agreement and the Transferee Company shall not be called upon or required
to pay the same again.

All letters of intent, requests for proposal, pre-qualifications, bid acceptances, tenders, and other
instruments of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Company is a party to or to the benefit
of which the Transferor Company is eligible, shall remain in full force and effect against or in favor
of the Transferee Company and may be enforced as if the Transferee Company had been a party
or beneficiary thereto instead of the Transferor Company.

Any assets acquired by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective
Date shall, upon coming into effect of the Scheme and also without any further act, instrument
or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to or vested
in the Transferee Company upon coming into effect of the Scheme.

For avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the applicable provisions of the
Scheme, it is clarified that, with effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of
the bank accounts of the Transferor Company is replaced with that of the Transferee Company,
the Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate all the bank accounts the Transferor in the
name of the Transferor Company in so far as may be necessary. All cheques and other negotiable
instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment after the Effective Date
which are in the name of the Transferor Company shall be accepted by the bankers of the
Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, if presented by the
Transferee Company. The Transferee Company shall be allowed to maintain bank accounts in the
name of the Transferee Company for such time as may be determined to be necessary by the
Transferee Company for presentation and deposition of cheques and pay orders that have been
issued in the name of the Transferor Company. It is hereby expressly clarified that any legal
proceedings by or against the Transferor Company in relation to the cheques and other negotiable
instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the
Transferor Company shall be instituted, or as the case maybe, continued by or against the
Transferee Company after the coming into effect of the Scheme.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

All registrations, goodwill, licenses, trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights, logos,
corporate names, brand names, domain names, and all registrations, applications, and renewals
in connection therewith, trade secrets, confidential business information, other proprietary
information and all other intellectual property rights, appertaining to the Transferor Company, if
any, shall stand vested in the Transferee Company without any further act, instrument or deed.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, LICENCES ETC.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, all contracts,
deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature
to which the Transferor Company is a party to or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company
may be eligible or for the obligations of which the Transferor Company may be liable, and which
are subsisting or having effect on the Appointed Date, shall, without any further act, deed, or
instrument, continue in full force and effect on or against or in favor, as the case may be, of the
Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor
Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing Clause 11.1, it is clarified that, by virtue of
the sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT and by virtue of the operation of law, the interest in the
revenue sharing contracts and joint operating agreements (including participating interests /
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11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

operatorship therein) shall be vested or deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company
as an integral part of the undertaking of the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company and
the Transferor Company shall in furtherance to the aforesaid, make applications as necessary to
the Central Government and/or the State Governments and/or any Governmental Authority, or
other person as required under the revenue sharing contracts or such other documents executed
by the Transferor Company.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company may, at any
time after coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so require
under any law or otherwise, execute deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations or other
writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement including but
not limited to production sharing contracts, revenue sharing contracts, mining lease(s), to which
the Transferor Company is a party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to
give formal effect to the above provisions. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of
Part IV of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings as a successor
of the Transferor Company and to carry out perform all such formalities or compliances referred
to above on the part of the Transferor Company to be carried out or performed.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified
that upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to Applicable Laws, all consents,
permissions, licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to
or executed in favor of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee
Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed in favor of the Transferee
Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee
Company. The Transferee Company shall make applications to any Governmental Authority as
may be necessary in this behalf.

Any contracts, deeds, bonds agreements, schemes, arrangements and other instruments of
whatsoever nature to which the Transferor Company is a party or to the benefit of which the
Transferor Company may be eligible or for the obligations of which the Transferor Company may
be liable, entered by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective
Date shall, upon coming into effect of this Scheme and also without any further act, instrument
or deed, continue to be in force and effect on or against or in favour, as the case may be, of the
Transferee Company and may be enforced fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor
Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto.

All approvals, consents, exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas,
rights, entitlements, licenses (including the licenses granted by any Governmental Authorities,
statutory or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on its business or in connection
therewith), and certificates of every kind and description of whatsoever nature in relation to the
Transferor Company, or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may be eligible/ entitled, and
which are subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be approvals,
consents, exemptions, registrations, no-objection certificates, permits, quotas, rights,
entitlements, said licenses and certificates of the Transferee Company, and shall be in full force
and effect in favour of the Transferee Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if,
instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or
obligor thereto. It is hereby clarified that all rates, fees, etc. paid by the Transferor Company till
the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been paid by or for the Transferee Company and shall
be considered part of the total sum payable in relation to such license, etc. and the Transferee
Company shall not be called upon or required to pay the same again.

Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 11.1 to Clause 11.6, with effect from the Appointed
Date, all inter-party transactions, if any, between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall be considered as intra party transactions . Upon coming into effect of this Scheme
and also without any further act, instrument or deed, to the extent that there are advances, loans
(including inter-corporate loans), deposits, interest outstanding balances (including any
guarantees, or any other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a contingent liability
in whatever form), if any, between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, the
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12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4,

12.5.

13,

13.1,

obligations in respect of the same shall come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf
on either party and the corresponding effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records
of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. Further, all inter-se contracts solely
between the Transferor Company and the Transfer Company shali stand cancelled and cease to
operate and appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records of the
Transferee Company.

TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES

With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, loans raised and used, duties and
obligations of the Transferor Company, whether or not recorded in its books and records shall,
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,
without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing, be and stand transferred to and vested
in and be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company to the extent that
they are outstanding on the Appointed Date so as to become as and from the Appointed Date the
debts, liabilities, loans, obligations and duties of the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall meet,
discharge and satisfy the same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any
third party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such
debts or liabilities have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 12.

Where any of the liabilities and obligations of the Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date,
deemed to be transferred to the Transferee Company have been discharged by the Transferor
Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be
deemed to have been for and on account of the Transferee Company, and all liabilities and
obligations incurred by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the
Effective Date, shall also without any further act or deed be and stand transferred to the
Transferee Company and shall become the liabilities and obligations of the Transferee Company
which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same to the exclusion of the Transferor Company.

All Encumbrances, if any, existing on or prior to the Appointed Date over the assets of the
Transferor Company shall, after the Appointed Date, without any further act, instrument or deed,
continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or
attached on or prior to the Appointed Date. The secured creditors of the Transferee Company
and/or other holders of security over the property of the Transferee Company shall not be entitled
to any additional security over the properties, assets, rights, benefits, and interests of the
Transferor Company and such properties and assets shall remain free and unencumbered.
Provided further that this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit
or facility created by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall not be obliged
to create any further or additional security therefore after the Scheme becomes operative.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing Clauses 12.1, 12.2 and 12.3, the Transferee
Company shall execute any instrument(s) and/ or document(s) and/ or do all acts and deeds as
may be required, including the filing of necessary particulars and/ or modification(s) of charge,
with the jurisdictional RoC to give formal effect to the above provisions, if required.

Subject to the necessary consents being obtained, if required, in accordance with the terms of
this Scheme, the provisions of this Clause 12 shall operate, notwithstanding anything to the
contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any
security document, all of which instruments, deeds or writings shall stand modified and/ or
superseded by the forgoing provisions.

LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all pending legal, taxation or other proceedings, whether
civil or criminal (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal or courts),
by or against the Transferor Company, under any statute, shall be continued and enforced by or
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13.3.

13.4.
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14.1.

14.2,

14.3.

against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the same manner and to the same extent as
if the same had been instituted by or against as the case may be on the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company shall have all legal, taxation or other proceedings initiated by or against
the Transferor Company referred to in Clause 13.1 above transferred to its name as soon as is
reasonably possible after the Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as a successor of the Transferor Company.

If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against the Transferor Company
is pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by
reason of or by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal
proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Transferee Company, as
the case may be, in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had
not been made.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may be initiated
against the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company shall be made party thereto and any
payment and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of Transferee Company.

EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme becoming effective all employees of the Transferor Company as on the Effective
Date shall be deemed to become the employees of the Transferee Company, without any break
or interruption in their services and on the basis of continuity of service, on the terms and
conditions no less favorable than the existing terms and conditions including benefits, incentives,
employee stock options, on which the employees are engaged as on the Effective Date by the
Transferor Company.

Upon the Effective Date and with effect from the Appointed Date, all contributions to any
provident fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, pension fund,
superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme or any other special schemes or benefits created or
existing for the benefit of the employees of the Transferor Company shall be made by the
Transferee Company in accordance with the provisions of such schemes or funds and the
Applicable Law. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that upon this Scheme becoming
effective; the aforesaid benefits or schemes shall continue to be provided to the transferred
employees and the services of all the transferred employees of the Transferor Company for such
purpose shall be treated as having been continuous. The Transferee Company undertakes that for
the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, severance pay, gratuity and other
statutory / leave / terminal benefits to the employees of the Transferor Company, the past
services of such employees with the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account and the
Transferee Company shall make the payment of retrenchment compensation, severance pay,
gratuity and other statutory / leave / terminal benefits accordingly, as and when such amounts
are due and payable.

Subject to Applicable Law, the existing provident fund, employee state insurance contribution,
gratuity fund, superannuation fund, the staff welfare scheme and any other schemes or benefits
created by the Transferor Company for the employees shail be continued on the same terms and
conditions and/or be transferred to the existing provident fund, employee state insurance
contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme, etc., being maintained by
the Transferee Company without any separate act or deed/ approval. The Transferee Company
shall make all necessary arrangement as required in respect of payment pertaining to provident
fund to the employees of the Transferor Company and its own employees.
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TREATMENT OF TAXES AND CONSEQUENTIAL MATTERS RELATING TO TAX

This Scheme complies with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as specified under
Section 2(1B), Section 47, Section 72A and other relevant sections and provisions of the
Income Tax Act and is intended to apply accordingly. If any terms or clauses or provisions of the
Scheme is/ are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with any of the said provisions
(including the conditions set out therein) at a later date whether as a result of a new enactment
or any amendment or coming into force of any provision of the Income Tax Act or any other law
or any judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reasons whatsoever, the provisions of
the said sections of the Income Tax Act shall prevail and the Scheme to stand modified to the
extent necessary to comply with said sections of the Income Tax Act. Such modification will
however not affect other parts of the Scheme.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective:

(i) To the extent required, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be
permitted to revise and file their respective income tax returns along with the prescribed
forms, filings and annexures under the Income Tax Act, withholding tax returns, sales tax,
value added tax, goods and service tax, central sale tax, entry tax, goods and services tax
returns and any other tax returns. Such returns may be revised and filed notwithstanding
that the statutory period for such revision and filing may have expired; and

(i) The Transferee Company shall be entitled to: (a) claim deduction with respect to items
such as provisions expenses etc. disallowed in earlier years in the hands of the Transferor
Company, which may be allowable in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Act on or after the Appointed Date and (b) exclude items such as provisions reversals, etc.
for which no deduction or Tax benefit has been claimed by the Transferor Company prior
to the Appointed Date.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
provisions of this Scheme, minimum alternate Tax credit, if any of the Transferor Company as on
the Appointed Date, shall, for all purposes, be treated as minimum alternate Tax credit of the
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim refunds
(including refunds or claims pending with the Tax authorities) or credits, with respect to taxes
paid by, for, or on behalf of, the Transferor Company under Applicable Law (including Tax laws).

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all Taxes (including advance Tax payments, Tax deducted
at source, minimum alternate Tax, refunds etc.), cess, duties and liabilities (direct and indirect),
payable or receivable, by or on behalf of the Transferor Company, shall, for all purposes, be
treated as Taxes (including advance Tax payments, Tax deducted at source, minimum alternate
Tax, refunds etc.), cess, duties and liabilities, as the case may be, payable or receivable by the
Transferee Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all unavailed credits, carry forward of losses, statutory
benefits and exemptions and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax, CENVAT
customs, value added tax, sales tax, service tax, entry tax and good and service tax to which the
Transferor Company are entitled shall be available to and vest in the Transferee Company without
any further act or deed.

Any Tax liability under the Income Tax Act, or any other applicable Tax laws or regulations
allocable to the Transferor Company whether or not provided for or covered by any tax provisions
in the accounts of the Transferor Company made as on the Appointed Date shall be transferred
to the Transferee Company. Any surplus in the provision for Taxation or duties or levies in the
accounts of the Transferor Company including advance Tax and Tax deducted at source as on the
Appointed Date will also be transferred to the account of the Transferee Company.
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All Tax assessment proceedings and appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company, pending or arising as at the Appointed Date, shall be continued and/ or enforced by or
against the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might
have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company. Further, the
proceedings shall neither abate or be discontinued nor be in any way prejudicially affected by
reason of the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company or anything
contained in this Scheme.

Any refund under the Income Tax Act or any other tax laws related to or due to the Transferor
Company including those for which no credit is taken as on the Appointed Date, shall also belong
to and be received by the Transferee Company.

Upon the Effective Date, any Tax deposited, certificates issued or returns filed by the Transferor
Company relating to the Transferor Company shall continue to hold good as if such amounts were
deposited, certificates were issued and returns were filed by the Transferee Company.

All the expenses in relation to the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company as per this Scheme, including stamp duty expenses, if any, shall be incurred and allowed
as deduction to the Transferee Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 35DD or
other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act.

From the Appointed Date, all Tax (including but not limited to disputed tax demands, advance tax,
tax deducted at source, minimum alternate tax credits, dividend distribution tax, securities
transaction tax, taxes withheld/paid in a foreign country, value added tax, sales tax, service tax,
etc.) payable by or refundable to the Transferor Company, including all or any refunds or disputed
tax demands, if confirmed, or claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds/ claims, as the
case may be, of the Transferee Company, and any incentives, advantages, privileges, exemptions,
credits, holidays, remissions, reductions, subsidies, grants, special status, other benefits, as would
have been available to the Transferor Company, shall, be available to the Transferee Company.

CORPORATE APPROVALS

Benefits of any and all corporate approvals {(including but not limited to approvals of the Board
and shareholders of the Transferor Company) as may have already been taken by the Transferor
Company, whether being in the nature of compliances or otherwise, shall without any further act,
instrument or deed, cost or charge and without any notice or other intimation to any third party
for the transfer of the same, be and stand transferred and vested in the Transferee Company by
operation of law, and the said corporate approvals and compliances shall be deemed to have
originally been taken/complied with by the Transferee Company.

The resolutions, if any, of the Transferor Company, which are valid and subsisting on the Effective
Date, shall without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge and without any notice or
other intimation to any third party for the transfer of the same, continue to be valid and subsisting
and be considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any
monetary limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or other applicable statutory
provisions, then the said limits shall be added to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed
by the Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee
Company. For purposes of illustration, upon this Scheme becoming effective, the borrowing limits
of the Transferee Company in terms of Section 180 of the Act shall without any further act or
deed, stand enhanced by the Transferor Company’s Liabilities, such limits being incremental to
the existing limits of the Transferee Company, with effect from the Appointed Date.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL THE EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from the Appointed Date and until the Effective Date:

\
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17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

17.8.

18.

18.1.

The Transferor Company shall, respectively, carry on, continue carrying on and/or deemed to be
carrying on their business and activities and shall hold possession of all of their properties and
assets in trust for the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall not without prior written intimation to the Transferee Company,
alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of their undertakings or
any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business nor shall they undertake any new
businesses and shall carry on their business and activities with reasonable diligence, business
prudence in the ordinary course consistent with past practices.

All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or expenditure, or losses
arising to or incurred by the Transferor Company shall for all purposes and intent be treated and
be deemed to be as the profits or incomes or expenditure or losses of the Transferee Company.

All assets acquired, leased or licensed, licenses obtained, benefits, entitlements, incentives and
concessions granted, contracts entered into, intellectual property developed or registered, or
applications made thereto, liabilities incurred, and proceedings initiated or made party to, from
the Appointed and till the Effective Date by the Transferor Company shall be deemed to be
transferred and vested in the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of employment of any of its
employees except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior written consent of the
Transferee Company or pursuant to any of its pre-existing obligation undertaken as the case may
be, prior to the Effective Date.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of this Scheme, to apply to the
relevant Governmental Authority and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned
as maybe necessary under any relevant law for obtaining consents, approvals and sanctions which
the Transferee Company may require and deem necessary to carry on the business of the
Transferor Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Clause 17, during the pendency of this Scheme, with
the prior written consent of the Transferee Company, the Transferor Company, may make any
investments (current or non-current) in any other person or raise funds through debt or equity
irrespective of whether such actions are not in the ordinary course of business. It is hereby
clarified that the pursuant to the approval of the audit committee and the Board of the Transferee
Company, the equity shareholders of the Transferee Company vide its resolution dated October
27,2023 has approved the provision of an inter corporate loan of up to an aggregate amount not
exceeding INR 100,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Crores Only)} in one or more tranches
to the Transferor Company.

Further, the prior consent of the Board of the Transferee Company shall not be required in
relation to the issuance of the equity shares under the rights issue approved by the Board of the
Transferor Company at its meeting held on November 22, 2023, details of which are set out in
Clause 4.1.

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company shall be entitled to make application(s) for
amending, cancelling, and/or obtaining fresh registrations/ licenses/ authorizations, as the case
may be, under all applicable laws and legislations.

DIVIDEND

During the pendency of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall not and the Transferee
Company shall be entitled to, declare and pay dividends, whether interim and/ or final, to their
respective members (whose name is recorded in register of members, or their heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representative, on the cut-off date decided by their respective Board
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18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

19.

20.

20.1.

for the purpose of declaration of such dividend) in the ordinary course of business in respect of
the accounting period prior to the Effective Date.

In case of declaration/ payment of any dividend as contemplated under Clause 18.1, the
shareholders of the Transferor Company (in lieu of their shareholding in the Transferor Company)
shall not have any express, implied or derivative right or claim to any dividend of the Transferee
Company before, on or after this Scheme becoming effective whether on the basis of the fact that
they have, deemed to have or ought to have also received such dividend, or otherwise.

The holders of the shares of the Companies shall, save as expressly provided otherwise in this
Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing rights under their respective Articles of Association
including the right to receive dividends.

On and from the Effective Date, the profits of Transferor Company for the period beginning from
the Appointed Date shall belong to and be deemed to be the profits of the Transferee Company
and will be available to the Transferee Company for being disposed of in any manner as it thinks
fit.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling
provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any express or implied rights on any member
of the Companies to demand or claim any dividend, which, subject to the provisions of the Act, as
applicable, shall be entirely at the discretion of the respective Board of Directors, subject to such
approval of the members, as may be required.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company under Clauses 8 through above,
the continuance of proceedings under Clause 13 above and the effectiveness of contracts, deeds,
bonds, approvals and other instruments under Clause 11 and 16 above, shall not affect any
transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on or before the
Appointed Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts,
deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor Company in respect thereto, as if done
and executed on its behalf.

CONSIDERATION

Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, and in consideration of the Amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall, without any
further act or deed and without any further payment, basis the Amalgamation Share Entitlement
Report, issue and allot to the shareholders of the Transferor Company (whose name is recorded
in the register of members of the Transferor Company as on the Record Date) equity shares of the
face value of INR 10 {Indian Rupees Ten Only) each fully paid-up in the following manner
(“Amalgamation Shares”):

(i) 4,287 (Four Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of INR
10 each of the Transferee Company to be issued for every 10,000 (Ten Thousand Only)
equity shares of INR 10 each of the Transferor Company.

(ii) 4,287 (Four Thousand Two Hundred and Eighty Seven) fully paid-up equity shares of INR
10 each of the Transferee Company to be issued for every 10,000 (Ten Thousand Only)
Class A1 Equity Shares of INR 10 each of the Transferor Company.

(iii) 18 (Eighteen Only) fully paid-up equity shares of INR 10 each of the Transferee Company

to be issued for every 10,000 (Ten Thousand Only) RPS of INR 10 each of the Transferor
Company.
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20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

20.7.

20.8.

20.9.

20.10.

If any member becomes entitled to any fractional shares, entitlements or credit on the issue and
allotment of the Amalgamation Shares, the Board of the Transferee Company shall ignore such
fraction and no shares shall be allotted in respect of such fractional entitlements by the Transferee
Company which may arise as a result of the shareholding of the members of the Transferor
Company on the basis of the share exchange ratio. Such treatment of fractional entitlement is not
prejudicial to the interest of the public shareholders of the Transferee Company.

Notwithstanding above, if such issuance results in a fractional entitlement for any shareholder of
the Transferor Company, the entitlement will be dealt with in accordance with the SEBI Circular.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Board of the Transferor Company shall, on the Record
Date, provide to the Transferee Company, a list containing particulars of all the shareholders of
the Transferor Company as on the Record Date, along with their respective entitlement to the
fully paid-up equity shares of the Transferee Company, pursuant to this Scheme.

The Amalgamation Shares has been arrived at on basis of the Amalgamation Share Entitlement
Report.

IIFL Securities Limited, a SEBI registered Category | Merchant Banker, pursuant to the SEBI Circular,
has issued a Fairness Opinion dated November 22, 2023.

If any consolidation, stock split, sub division, reorganization, reclassification or other similar action
in relation to the share capital of the Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, that occurs
after the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of the Transferor Company and the Board
of the Transferee Company, and on or before the Effective Date, the Amalgamation Shares
entitlement ratio (as set out in Clause 20.1 above) shall be adjusted accordingly to reflect such
corporate action.

Pursuant to the issuance of the Amalgamation Shares as aforesaid to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company, the shareholders of the Transferor Company shall become the shareholders
of the Transferee Company.

The shareholders of the Transferor Company shall be entitled to receive the equity shares of the
Transferee Company in dematerialized form. The shareholders of the Transferor Company shall
provide such confirmation, information, or details as may be required by the Transferee Company.
It is only thereupon that the Transferee Company shall be able to issue and directly credit the
dematerialized securities account of such member with its equity shares. It is clarified that, each
of the members holding equity shares in dematerialized form as on the Record Date shall be issued
equity shares of the Transferee Company as per the records maintained by the depositary
participant. In the event that the Transferee Company receives a notice from any of the
shareholders of the Transferor Company that the Amalgamation Shares are to be issued in
physical form or if any shareholder has not provided the requisite details regarding the account
with a depositary participant or other confirmations as may be required, the Transferee Company
shall issue the new equity shares in certificate form to such members of the Transferor Company,
if permitted by Applicable Law.

Promptly upon the issuance of the Amalgamation Shares pursuant to the Clause 20.1, the
Transferee Company shall prepare and file applications, along with all supporting documents, to
obtain approval from SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, for listing of such Amalgamation Shares.
Immediately upon receipt of such approval, the Transferee Company shall take all necessary steps
to obtain trading approval for the Amalgamation Shares. The Transferee Company shall endeavor
to ensure that steps for listing and trading of the Amalgamation Shares are completed, and
trading of the Amalgamation Shares commences within the time period prescribed under the SEBI
Circular. The Amalgamation Shares allotted pursuant to this Scheme shall remain frozen in the
depositories system till relevant directions in relation to the listing / trading are given by the
relevant Stock Exchanges.

The Amalgamation Shares of the Transferee Company issued in terms of Clause 20.1 of this
Scheme will be listed and/ or admitted for trading on the Stock Exchanges where the shares of
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20.11.

20.12.

20.13.

20.14.

20.15.

21.

21.1.

21.2.

21.3.

the Transferee Company are listed and/ or admitted for trading subject to necessary approvals
under the regulations framed by SEBI and from the Stock Exchanges and all necessary applications
and compliances being made in this respect by the Transferee Company.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall
be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate
such a transfer as if such changes in the registered holder were operative as on the Record Date,
in order to remove any difficulties, after the effectiveness of this Scheme.

Where the Amalgamation Shares are to be allotted to heirs, executors, or administrators or, as
the case may be, to successors of deceased eligible shareholders of the Transferor Company, the
concerned heirs, executors, administrators or successors shall be obliged to produce evidence of
title satisfactory to the Board of the Transferee Company.

The Amalgamation Shares to be issued to the shareholders of the Transferor Company under
Clause 20.1 above shall be subject to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Transferee Company and shall rank pari-passu with the existing equity shares of the Transferee
Company in all respects for the financial year starting from the Appointed Date in terms of the
Scheme with the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company.

For the purpose of issue and allotment of the Amalgamation Shares to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company as provided under Clause 20.1 above, the consent of the Board and
shareholders of the Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the
purposes of compliance with necessary provisions of the Act including the provisions and
procedure laid down under Section 42 and 62 of the Act for the issue and allotment by the
Transferee Company of the Amalgamation Shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company
under the Scheme.

With respect to any foreign shareholders of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company
shall comply with the Applicable Laws including RBI guidelines, SEBI regulations, directions and
instructions of the Stock Exchanges and applicable provisions of Foreign Exchange Management
Act 1999, including the Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, to
enable it to issue the Amalgamation Shares pursuant to this Scheme.

CONSOLIDATION AND RECLASSIFICATION OF THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company as
set out in this Scheme but prior to the issuance of and allotment of the Amalgamation Shares
under Clause 20.1 above, shall be reclassified and deemed to be added to and combined with the
authorized share capital of the Transferee Company.

Pursuant to the reclassification, combination/ consolidation of the authorized share capital
pursuant to Clause 21.1 above, the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Transferee Company (relating to the authorized share capital) shall, without any requirement of
a further act or deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended, such that Clause V of the
memorandum of association of the Transferee Company shall be replaced by the following:

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 825,000,000 [Eighty Two Crores Fifty Lakhs)
divided into 82,500,000 [Eight Crores Twenty Five Lakhs ]} Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten
only) each.”

It is clarified that the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to this Scheme shalil
be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the aforementioned amendments and
reclassification, consolidation and increase of authorized share capital of the Transferee Company
pursuant to Clause 21 and no further resolution(s) under Section 4, 13, 14, 61 and 64 and all other
applicable provisions of the Act, if any, would be required to be passed separately.
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21.4,

21.5.

22,

22.1.

22.2.

23.

In accordance with Section 232(3)(i) of the Act and the Applicable Law, the stamp duties and/ fees
(including registration fees) paid on the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company shall
be utilized and set-off against the increased authorized share capital of the Transferee Company
pursuant to Clause 21.1 above and no stamp duties and/ fees would be payable for increase in
the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company to the extent of fees already paid in
relation to the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company shall make suitable alterations or amendments to the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles of Association of the Transferee Company, if so required and
necessary, for proper implementation of Scheme in compliance to the applicable provisions of the
Act.

CHANGE OF NAME OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Transferee Company shall stand changed
from “Selan Exploration Technology Limited” to “Antelopus Selan Energy Limited” or such other
name as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and which is made
available by the RoC, in accordance with the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable
provisions of the Act. Furthermore, the Clause | of the Memorandum of Association of the
Transferee Company and Articles of Association of the Transferee Company and wherever the
name of the Transferee Company is specified, shall, without any requirement of a further act,
deed, be and stand altered, modified and amended.

It is hereby clarified that the consent of the respective shareholders of the Transferee Company
and Governmental Authority to this Scheme shall be deemed to be sufficient for the purposes of
effecting the aforementioned amendment and that no further resolution under the provisions of
Section 13, 14 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be required to be separately
passed, nor any additional fees (including fees and charges to the relevant RoC) or stamp duty,
shall be payable by the Transferee Company..

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT ON AMALGAMATION IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEROR
COMPANY

The Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up upon this Scheme
becoming effective as mentioned in Clause 25 of this Scheme and all the assets and liabilities as

well as reserves shall be transferred to the Transferee. Hence there is no accounting treatment
prescribed under this Scheme in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company.

[this space has been intentionally left blank]
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24,

24.1.

25.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT ON AMALGAMATION IN THE BOOKS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall account for the
Amalgamation of the Transferor Company in its books of accounts with the "Pooling of Interests
Method" as set out in Appendix C — ‘Business Combinations of entities under common control' of
Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 103 — ‘Business Combinations’, as amended from time to
time, prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as under:

(i)  All the assets, liabilities and reserves in the books of the Transferor Company shall stand
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme and shall be
recorded by the Transferee Company at their respective carrying amounts as appearing in
the books of the Transferor Company.

(ii)  The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company, after giving effect to reduction of
capital of the Transferor Company as envisaged under Part Il of the Scheme, shall be
preserved and they shall appear in the books of the Transferee Company in the same form
and manner in which they appear in the books of the Transferor Company.

(iii)  All inter-company balances, as appearing in the books of the Transferee Company and the
Transferor Company, shall stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation in that
behalf.

(iv) The Transferee Company shall credit the aggregate face value of the Amalgamation Shares
issued by it to the shareholders of the Transferor Company pursuant to Clause 20.1 of this
Scheme to the “Share Capital Account” in its books of accounts.

(v)  Aftergiving effect to the above sub-clauses, the difference between the value of assets over
liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company, and value of aggregate face value of
Amalgamation Shares as recorded by the Transferee Company, shall be transferred to the
“Capital Reserve Account” in the financial statements of the Transferee Company and the
same would be presented separately from other capital reserves with disclosure of its
nature and purpose in the notes to the financial statements of the Transferee Company.

(vi) In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee Company will
prevail and the difference will be quantified and adjusted as per guidance provided under
Accounting Standard - 103 ‘Business Combination’, to ensure that the financial statements
of the Transferee Company reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent
accounting policy.

(vii) The comparative financial information presented in the financial statements of the
Transferee Company should be restated as if the business combination had occurred from
the beginning of the comparative period.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall be automatically dissolved
without being wound up and the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company or any committee
thereof is hereby authorized to take all steps as may be necessary or desirable or proper on behalf
of the Transferor Company from the Effective Date to resolve any question, doubts, or difficulty
whether by reason of any order(s) of the court(s) or any directive, order or sanction of any
Governmental Authority or otherwise arising out of or under this Scheme or any matter

therewith.
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26.

26.1.

26.2.

26.3.

27.

27.1.

PART V
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THE SCHEME
APPLICATION TO THE NCLT

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make
joint applications to the NCLT, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable
provisions of the Act, seeking orders for dispensing with or convening, holding and conducting of
the meetings of the classes of their respective shareholders and/ or creditors and for sanctioning
this Scheme, with such modifications as may be approved by the NCLT and accepted by the Board
of Directors of each Company.

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the effectiveness
of the Scheme, to apply to any Governmental Authority, if required, under any Applicable Law for
such consents and approvals, as agreed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, which the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company may require to effect the
transactions contemplated under the Scheme, in any case subject to the terms as may be mutually
agreed between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the respective shareholders of the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company shall be deemed to have also accorded their approval under all
relevant provisions of the Act for giving effect to the provisions contained in this Scheme.

SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVAL/SANCTIONS
The coming into effect of this Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a) The Scheme being approved by requisite majority of each class of shareholders and/ or
creditors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company in accordance with the
Act and as may be directed by the NCLT;

b) The Scheme being approved by the public shareholders of Transferee Company or
through e-voting in terms of Part - | (A)(10)(a) of the SEBI Circular and the Scheme shall
be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of the Scheme
are more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders against it. Further,
the term “public” shall carry the same meaning as defined under Rule 2 of Securities
Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

C) The requisite consent, approval or permission of the relevant Governmental Authority or
any other statutory or regulatory authority, which by law may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme;

d) The Stock Exchange(s) issuing their observation/ no-objection letters, wherever required
under applicable laws and SEBI issuing its comments on the Scheme, to the Transferee
Company, as required under the SEBI Circular and other applicable laws;

e) The sanctioning of this Scheme by the NCLT, whether with any modifications or
amendments as NCLT may deem fit or otherwise and as may be accepted by the Board of

the Companies;

f) Any other sanctions and orders as may be directed by the NCLT and accepted by the Board
of the Companies while sanctioning the Scheme;

g) Certified copy of the order of the NCLT, sanctioning the Scheme being filed with RoC; and

h) The Scheme shall come into effect, chronologically, in the following sequence:

W
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27.2.

27.3.

28.

28.1.

29.

29.1.

29.2.

29.3.

i. Reduction of capital of the Transferor Company in accordance with Part Il of the
Scheme; and

ii. Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company in
accordance with Part IV of the Scheme.

In the event of this Scheme failing to take effect finally, this Scheme shall become null and void
and in that case no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter-se by the
parties or their shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person.

If any part of this Scheme is invalid, ruled illegal by NCLT or any court of competent jurisdiction,
or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the parties that such
part shall be severable from the remainder of this Scheme, and this Scheme shall not be affected
thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this Scheme to become materially adverse to
any party, in which case the Board of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
involved in the Scheme shall attempt to bring about a modification in this Scheme, as will best
preserve for the parties the benefits, and obligations of this Scheme, including but not limited to
such part.

MODIFICATIONS/ AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

Subject to approval of NCLT, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their
respective Boards of Directors, may assent to/ make and/ or consent to any modifications/
amendments to the Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the NCLT and/ or any other
Governmental Authority under law may deem fit to direct or impose, or which may otherwise be
considered necessary, desirable or appropriate as a result of subsequent events or otherwise by
them (i.e. the Board of Directors). The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by their
respective Board are authorized to take all such steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to
resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whatsoever for carrying the Scheme, whether by
reason of any directive or orders of any other authorities or otherwise howsoever, arising out of
or under or by virtue of the Scheme and/ or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS, MATTERS RELATING TO REVOCATION AND
WITHDRAWAL OF THE SCHEME

In the event of any of the said approvals or conditions referred to in Clause 27.1 above not being
obtained and/ or complied with and/ or satisfied and/ or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the
NCLT and/ or order or orders not being passed as aforesaid by such date as may be mutually
agreed upon by the respective Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company (who are hereby empowered and authorized to agree to the aforesaid period without
any limitations in exercise of their powers through and by their respective delegate(s)), this
Scheme shall stand revoked, canceiled and be of no effect.

In the event of revocation under Clause 29.1, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to
or be incurred inter se to the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or their respective
shareholders or creditors or employees or any other person save and except in respect of any act
or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation
which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or
worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or in accordance with the Applicable Laws.

Notwithstanding anything contained in Clause 29.1 and 29.2 , the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be jointly entitled to withdraw this
Scheme prior to the Effective Date.
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30.

30.1.

30.2.

31.

PERMISSION TO RAISE CAPITAL

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme and subject to Applicable Laws, until this
Scheme becomes effective, the Transferee Company shall have right to raise capital whether via
preferential issue of equity/ convertible/ non-convertible securities to one or more financial or
strategic investors or in any other way for the efficient functioning of their business or for any
other purpose including for the purposes of refinancing, repayment, conversion or prepayment
of any loans. The Transferor Company shall be entitled to raise capital in the manner
contemplated under Clause 17.7.

Provided further that, any change in capital structure of the Transferor Company shall be made
subject to the approval of SEBI/ Stock Exchange(s).

COST CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Each of the Companies shall bear its respective costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and
all other expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise agreed), incurred in carrying out and
implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, except the stamp duty cost in
connection to this Scheme which shall be paid by the Transferee Company.

Aok ok ok ok
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Annexure-1
S. Revenue Sharing Contract Participating Interest
No. N o o o
1. NEC/OSDSF/D11/2018 100%
2. MB/OSDSF/D31/2018 100%
3. AA/ONDSF/DUARMARA/2016 50%
4, KG/ONDSF/DANGERU/2021 100%*

*subject to grant of Petroleum Mining Lease by the Government of Andhra Pradesh
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (“COMPANY”) HELD ON WEDNESDAY, THE 22"° DAY OF
NOVEMBER, 2023 AT 8™ FLOOR, IMPERIA MINDSPACE, GOLF COURSE EXTENSION ROAD, SECTOR 62,
GURGAON, HARYANA-122102

APPROVAL TO THE DRAFT COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN ANTELOPUS ENERGY
PRIVATE LIMITED AND SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE
SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and Section 52
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the applicable provisions of the
Companies {Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 {including any statutory
modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof), enabling provisions of the Memarandum of
Association & Articles of Association of the Company and other applicable laws, rules and regulations,
subject to necessary approvals / consents / sanctions and permissions of the members, creditors,
debenture holders (as applicable} and other classes of persons, if any, sanction of the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench ("NCLT”) or such other competent authority, as may be
applicable, SEBI, BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE”), Ministry of
Petroleum and Natural Gas of the government of India (“MoPNG”) and other statutory / regulatory
autharities, as may be required, (collectively referred to as “Regulatory Authorities”) and such other
approvals / consents / sanctions / permissions / exemptions, as may be required under applicable laws,
regulations, listing regulations and guidelines issued by the Regulatory Authorities and subject to such
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the NCLT or by the Regulatory
Authorities, while granting such approvals / consents / sanctions / permissions / exemptions, which may
be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), which term shall be deemed to mean
and include one or more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which
the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this resolution},
consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement between
Antelopus Energy Private Limited ("Antelopus” or “Company” or “Transferar Company”) and Selan
Exploration Technology Limited ("Selan" or “Transferee Campany") and their respective shareholders &
creditors {"Scheme”), and providing for, inter alia, the reduction of the capital of the Transferor Company
and amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company in the manner set
out in the Scheme, a copy of which was placed before the Board and initialled by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Appointed Date for the Scheme shall be April 1, 2023 or such other date
as may be fixed by the NCLT or any other Regulatory Authority and accepted by the Board of Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report dated November 22, 2023 issued by Bansi S. Mehta Valuers LLP, “5CT
Registered Valuer having IBBI Registration No. [BBI/RV-E/06/2022/172 (“Amalgamation Share A 22l

Entitlement Report”), recommending the share exchange ratio for the Scheme placed before the Board < o

be and is hereby taken on record, adopted and approved. % i
\‘) /
N ’

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report dated Novemnber 22, 2023 issued by !IFL Securities Limited, SEBI Fis

registered Category | Merchant Banker, (having SEB! Registration No. INVI000010940 (“Fairness Opinion

Report”), as received from transferee, regarding the fairness of share exchange ratio as recommended in

Registered Address: Unit No. 455-457, 4% Floor, IMD Megapolis, Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon, Haryana-122018, India
Corporate Address: 8" Floor. Imperia Mindspace. Golf Course Extension Road. Sector 62. Gurgaon. Haryana-122102. India
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC076012 | GSTIN: 06AARCA3453F1Z0|T: +91 124 4067080

E-mail: info@antelopusenergy.com| Website: hitp://www.antelopusenergy.com/
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the Amalgamation Share Entitlement Report for the Scheme placed before the Board, he and is hereby
taken on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certificate/ letter dated November 22, 2023 issued by S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), Statutory Auditors of the Company, confirming that the
accounting treatment contained in the proposed Scheme is in compliance with the accounting standards
prescribed under the provisions of Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other generally accepted accounting principles in India, be and is hereby taken on record, adopted and
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of the Board explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of
shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders and {aying out the
share exchange ratio, as required to be annexed to the notice and explanatory statement as per the
provisions of Section 232(2){c) of the Act, placed before the Board, duly initialled by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved and adopted and that all the Directors of the
Company be and are hereby severally authorised to sign the same on behalf of the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all necessary actions be initiated for obtaining the requisite approvals or
consents of the members, creditors, debenture holders (as applicable) and other classes of persons, if
any, sanction of the NCLT, SEBI, BSE, NSE, MoPNG and/or the Regulatory Authorities, whose approval /
consent / sanction / permission / exemption is required under the applicable laws for the Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the above, the consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to
appoint a legal firm, as authorized representatives to appear, represent and appoint any Counsel in this
respect to represent the Company before the NCLT and other Regulatory Authorities in relation the
aforementioned Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company and Mr. Sanjay Kumar (PAN: ECRPK1720A)
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are herehy severally authorised {herein after referred to as
“Authorised Persons”), for and on behalf of the Board and the Company, to do all things and take such
steps as may be necessary/in connection with or incidental to giving effect to the above resolution or as
may be otherwise required in relation to the Scheme, including the following:

a) to engage, hire, appoint and remove gne or more counsel, advocate, law firm, solicitor, pleader,
merchant banker, advisor and/or valuer for the purpose of the Scheme to represent and act on behalf
of the Company in the proceedings before the NCLT and/or the Regulatory Authorities and to deal with
the concerned offices of the Regional Director of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of
Companies, Official Liquidator, Income tax authorities and other Regulatory Authorities in any matter
related to the Scheme; T

/ CO\\ '—\\\\
b) to do all such acts as may be required to be complied with under Section 230 to 232 read with Secti{g.r?/ \- -\‘
66 and Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act; Y ‘

c) tomake necessary applications, petitions and appeals for the purpose for obtaining requisite approvals
and to take all steps necessary in that regard, obtaining dispensation for holding meeting of
shareholders/ creditors of the Company and approvals/ no-objection certificates/ consent affidavits m
from shareholders/ creditors or entities or agencies or any other third parties as may be applicable;
Registered Address: Unil No. 455-457. 4" Floor, JMD Megapolis, Sector 48. Sohna Road, Gurgaon, lHaryana-122018. India
Corporate Address: 8% Floor. Imperia Mindspace, Golf Course Extension Road. Sector 62. Gurgaon., Haryana-122102. India
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC076012 | GSTIN: 06AARCA3453F120|T: 191 124 4067080
E-mail: info@antelopusenergy.com| Website: http://www.antelopusenergy.com/
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to make, prepare, swear, sign, affirm, declare, execute and file applications, petitions, affidavits,
vakalatnamas, declarations, announcements and such other documents with the NCLT and/or other
Regulatory Authorities on behalf of the Company, jointly or severally with the Transferee Company, as
may be necessary, and to obtain directions for convening / dispensing meetings of the shareholders,
creditors, debenture holders (as applicable) and / or any other class of persons for sanction of the
Scheme and to sign and issue public advertisements and notices in connection with the Scheme;

to make such amendment(s}, alteration(s) and modification(s) in the Scheme or any part thereof, as
may be desirable, expedient or deem fit by the Board of Directors, and/or for satisfying the
conditions/requirement imposed by the NCLT, and/ar any other Regulatory Authorities, as may be
required, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes
in the said Scheme as approved in this meeting;

to give such directions as they may consider necessary to settle any question or difficulty arising under
the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or in any manner
whatsoever connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various
conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent permissible under law);

to file requisite forms or replies with the concerned offices of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar
of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, MoPNG or any Regulatory Autharity in connection
with the Scheme during the process of sanction thereof and during the implementation of the Scheme;

to approve withdrawal (and where applicable, refiling) of the Scheme and to make changes in the
Scheme at any stage, including but without limitation, in case any changes and/or modifications are
suggested/required to be made in the Scheme or any condition suggested, required or imposed,
whether by any shareholder, creditor, SEBI, BSE, NSE, NCLT, MoPNG and/or any other Regulatory
Authority, which are acceptable to the Board, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as he
/ they may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto;

to suitably inform, apply and/or represent to the Central and/or State Government(s) and/or local or
other Regulatory Authorities/ agencies, including but not limited to MoPNG, Collector of Stamps,
Office of Registrar/Sub-Registrar, Office of the Registrar of Trademarks, Central Board of Indirect Taxes
and Customs, Income Tax Authorities, Provident Fund authorities, and all other Regulatory Authorities,
agencies, etc. (as may be applicable), and/or to represent the Company before the said authorities and
agencies;

to obtain the certified copy of order passed by the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme, and file the same
with the concerned Registrar of Companies, respective offices of Collector of Stamps for adjudication
of stamp duty at applicable rates In force, and other Regulatory Authorities;

to make, prepare, sign, affirm, execute and file all agreements, contracts, deeds and such otpef'
documents on behalf of the Company, jointly or severally with the Transferee Company, in relatiogy
transfer of assets and properties {movable or immovable) of the Company to the Transferee Compéq

upon the Scheme coming into effect with effect from the Appointed Date; '
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I} to do all the acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required for seeking approval of the members
in terms of the Act and any other rules or circular{s) issued thereunder, as may be applicable;

m) to authenticate and register any document, agreement, instrument, proceeding and record of the
Company;

n) to incur such expenses as may be necessary with regard to the above transaction, including payment
of fees to counsels, advocates, solicitors, merchant bankers, advisors, valuers, registrars and other
agencies and such other expenses that may be incidental to the above, as may be decided by them,
and

o) to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient in

connection with or incidental to giving effect to this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certified copy of this resolution be issued under the signature of any one
of the Directors of the Company or any of the Authorised Persons of the Company to the concerned
appropriate authorities or entities as and when necessary.”

For ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Siva Kumar Pothepalii
Director
DIN: 08368463

Date:'—x)ell" I 23
Place: (mV RUG
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DNNEXURE P-2 [w“y)

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs - MCA Services

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs

Company Information

13

Date : 07-06-2024 1:16:16 pm

CIN

Company Name
ROC Name
Registration Number
Date of Incorporation

Email Id

Registered Address

maintained
Listed in Stock Exchange(s) (Y/N)
Category of Company

Subcategory of the Company

U74999HR2018PTC076012

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
ROC Delhi

076012

25/09/2018

compliances@antelopusenergy.com

Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, IMD Megapolis Sector 48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon,

Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122018

Address at which the books of account are to be

No
Company limited by sharcs

Non-government company

Class of Company Private
ACTIVE compliance -
Authorised Capital (Rs) 52,50,00,000
Paid up Capital (Rs) 48,03,46,070
Date of last AGM 29/09/2023
Date of Balance Sheet 31/03/2023
Company Status Active
Jurisdiction
ROC (name and office) ROC Delhi
RD (name and Region) RD, Northern Region
Index of Charges
‘Whether
Charge charge Asset
S~r. SRN Charge Id Holder é) ateﬁof M ?;.lft_e ott; s ]ga;e (zlf Amount Address registered  Holder
No Name reation odification atistaction by other Name
entity
] F15806540 100592339 CITI 01/07/2022 - - 1,00,000 1st Floor, DLF No -
BANK Capitol

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
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Sr.
No

2

3

SRN

T70157011

T51948800

AA0188360

T24384844

T24383945

T24383408

T20834685

R67930990

Charge Id

100504377

100484219

100473656

100453504

100453499

100453515

100447683

100298842

Charge
Holder
Name

N.A.

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

ICICI
BANK
LIMITED

HDFC
BANK
LIMITED

Date of
Creation

05/11/2021

09/09/2021

04/08/2021

18/05/2021

18/05/2021

18/05/2021

27/04/2021

09/10/2019

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs - MCA Services

‘Whether
charge
Amount Address registered
by other
entity

Date of Date of
Modification  Satisfaction

Point,Baba
Kharak Singh
Marg,
Connanght
Place,New
Delhi, Delhi,
India, 110001

HDFC BANK

HOUSE,
SENAPATI
BAPAT
- 07/12/2021 1,50,00,000 MARG,LOWER No

PAREL

W,MUMBAI,

Mabharashtra,

India, 400013

IIDFC BANK

HOUSE,
SENAPATI
BAPAT
- - 2,00,000 MARG,LOWER No

PAREL

W,MUMBALI,

Maharashtra,

India, 400013

HDFC BANK

1TOUSE,
SENAPATI
BAPAT
- 31/08/2022 1,90,00,000 MARG,LOWER No

PAREL

W,MUMBAI,

Mabharashtra,

India, 400013

1st Floor, S.C.O,
14,Sector
- - 2,00,000 14,Gurgaon, No
Haryana, India,
122001

1st Floor, S.C.O,
14,Sector
- - 2,00,000 14,Gurgaon, No
Haryana, India,
122001

1st Floor, S.C.O,
14,Sector
- - 2,00,000 14,Gurgaon, No
Haryana, India,
122001

ICICI Bank
Tower, Near
Chakli Circle,
Old Padra
Road,Vadodara,
, India, 390007

- - 2,00,000 No

Global Business
Park, Tower
1,Mehrauli-
- 05/10/2020 7,23,00,000 Gurgaon No
Road,Gurgaon,
Haryana, India,
122002

14

Asset
Holder
Name
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Director/Signatory Details

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs - MCA Services

15

Sr.
No

1

DIN/PAN

08237399

08368463

09725882

02773152

*E%¥%{TI0A

Name

SUNITI KUMAR BITAT

SIVA KUMAR POTHEPALLI

ALOK PADHI

SAMARENDRA KAMALESH
ROYCHAUDHURY

SANJAY KUMAR

Designation
Director
Director

Dircctor

Director

Company
Secretary

Date of
Appointment

25/09/2018
22/09/2021

03/09/2022

31/08/2022

15/03/2023

Cessation
Date

Signatory
Yes
Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Afnaan Siddigui (Advocate)
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Central Registration Centre

Certificate of Incorporation

[Pursuant to sub-section (2) of section 7 of the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and rule 18 of the Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014]

I hereby certify that ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED is incorporated on this Twenty fifth day of
September Two thousand eighteen under the Companies Act, 2013 (18 of 2013) and that the company is limited by
shares.

The Corporate Identity Numbet of the company is U74999HR2018PTC076012.

The Permanent Account Number (PAN) of the company is AARCA3453F
The Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number (TAN) of the company is RTKA14496G

Given under my hand at Manesar this Thirtieth day of September Two thousand eighteen .

T
DS MINISTRY OF R
(CORPORATEAFFAIRS 27 %m%%@i*gm

Digital Signature Certificate

MUKESH KUMAR

Deputy Registrar Of Companies

For and on behalf of the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies

Registrar of Companies
Central Registration Centre

Disclaimer: This cettificate only evidences incorporation of the company on the basis of documents and declarations
of the applicant(s). This certificate is neither a license nor permission to conduct business or solicit deposits ot funds
from public. Permission of sector regulator is necessary wherever required. Registration status and other details of the
company can be vetified on www.mca.gov.in

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Flat No 301, Tower 15, The Close Notrth,, Nirvana Country, Sector-50,
Gurgaon, GURGAON, Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122018

*as issued by the Income Tax Department

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Registrar of companies, Delhi
4th Floor, IFC| Tower 61, New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110019

Corporate Identity Number: U74999HR2018PTC076012

SECTION 13(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Certificate of Registration of the Special Resolution Confirming Alteration of
Object Clause(s)

The shareholders of M/s ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED having passed Special Resolution in the Annual/Extrs
Ordinary General Meeting held on 06-09-2019 altered the provisions of its Memorandum of Association with respect to its
objects and complied with the Section 13(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,

I hereby certify that the said Special Resolution together with the copy of the Memorandum of Association as altered has this
day been registered.

Given under my hand at New Delhi this Third day of October Two thousand nineteen.

F CORPORATE

S DS MINISTRY ST =me ==
FFAIRS 1 -

KAMAL HARJANI
Registrar of Companies
RoC - Delh
Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:
ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
302, 3rd Floor, Global Foyer Mall, Golf Course Road, Sector 43, Gurgaon, /sf"iq'\‘ﬁ\
Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122002 W24

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
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[Pursuant te section 233 and rule 25 (5)]

Confirmation order of scheme of merger or amalgamation between
Arch Softwares Private Limited (Transferor company registered in the
state of Haryana) with Antelopus Energy private Limited (Transferee
Company registered in the state of Haryana).

Pursuant to the provisions of section 233 of the Companies Act,
2013, the scheme of merger or amalgamation of Arch Softwares Private
Limited (Transferor company registered in the state of Haryana) with
Antelopus Energy private Limited (Transferee Company registered in the
state of Haryana) approved by their respective members and creditors as
required under section 233 (1) (b} and (d) of the Companies Act, 2013 is
hereby confirmed and the scheme shall be effective from the day as per
Clause 9 of Part-IV of the scheme.

The confirmation hereof is subject to the condition that the Income
Tax Department retains its recourse for recovery in respect of any existing
or future tax liabilities of the Transferor or the Transferee companies in
respect of the assets sought to be transferred under the scheme and in

respect of other transactions hitherto made by the said companies.

A copy of the approved scheme is attached to this order.

(DR. ﬁéﬁsﬁvc;m

; .

Place: New Delhi

No: 233/137/T-2/2020] %142

. Antelopus Energy private Limited, 302, 3rd Floor, Global Foyer
Mall, Golf Course Road, Sector-3, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana.

2. Arch Softwares Private Limited, 302, 3rd Floor, Global Foyer Mall,
Golf Course Road, Sector-3, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana.

3. Registrar of Companies, NCT of Dethi & Haryana.

4. The Official Liquidator, Chandigarh.

Afnaan siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

UNDER CHAPTER XV OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AMONG

ARCH SOFTWARES PRIVATE LIMITED

{TRANSFEROR COMPANY)

AND

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

(TRANSFEREE COMPANY)

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
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SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

AMONG
ARCH SOFTWARES PRIVATE LIMITED (the Transferor Company)
ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED (the Transferee Company): and

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS.

PREAMBLE

This scheme of emalgamation amongst Arch Softwares Private Limited and Anlelopus Energy
Private Limited and their respective shareholders is presented under Section 233 of the
Companles Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 including any amendmants, modifications, atc,, therata from thne to fime.

DEECRIPTION OF THE TRANSFERQR COMPANY AND TRANSFEREE COMPANY

1. Arch Sofiwares Private Limited (“Transforor Company”), is a private company lirited by
shares incorporated on March 5, 2012 under the provisions of the Companles Act, 1956
having CIN U72800HR2012PTCN34628 and PAN AAKCA3194. having its registered
ofilce at 302, 3% Floar, Global Foyer, Seator 43, Gurgaon, Haryana- 122002, india.

2. Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“Transferee Company”), is a private company limited
by shares incorparated on Septamber 25, 2018 undsr the provisions of the Companiss
Act, 2013 having CIN U74599HR2013FTC076012 and PAN AARCA3S483F, having its
ragistered office at 802, 3% Floor, Global Foyer Mall, Goif Courss Rosd, Sector 43
Gurgaon, Haryana- 122002, India.

For the sake of convenience, Transferor Company and the Transferce Gompany are hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Gompaniss”.

PURPOQSE OF THIS SCHEME

The entire Issued, subscribed and pald up share cagital of the Transferor Company is held by
the Transferes Company and Mr. Suniti Kumar Bhat (who holds 1 (ens} equily share as a
nominee of the Transferee Company) jointly with Transferee Company. Accordingly, the
Transferor Company is 2 whelly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The Schema (as
defined below} provides for amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferes
Company, with a view to achieve inter alla, more efficient utllization of capital, a streamlined
group structure by reduction in the number of entities and operationat efficiency.

The Board of Diractars of eath of the Transferer Company and the Transferae Company have
vesolved that the amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company would
be In the best inferests of the sharehoiders, ergditars, employees and other siakehniders of the
Companies and is not prejudicial to their interests. The smalgamation of the Companies would

help in streamlining the group strusture by reducing the number of lagel entities, reducing the

ltiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances ralionelizing costs in addition to the following

j - : 'P—ﬂ Page 1 05 21
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benefits:
(a) e=ass of management;
{b) avolding duplication and overlap in the vperatlons and use of resources;

{a)
(d}

&)

reduced cost of operations and belter profitability;

pooling of resources, creating better synergies across the group, eptimal utilisation of
resaurces and greater econamies of scale;

slimination of mulliple adminisrative functions, compliance funclions and recard-keaping,
s residting In reduced expenditure, cost efficisncy, Improved loglstics and cperationat
efficiency;

()  achiaving higher growth potential; and
{a) enhanced financial strength,
PARTS OF THIS SCHEME

This Scheme is presented under Chapter XV of the Companles Act, 2013 for merger of the
Transferor Company with the Transleres Company. The Schama s divided Inte the {ofiowing

parts:

Part):

Overview of the Companies and Objeclive of the Schame;

Partll: Capital strueture of the Campanies;

Part Ik Amalgamation of the Transferse Company [nto and with tha Transferae Company in

accordance with Chapter XV of the Companies Act 2013; and

Part Iv: General terms and conditions applicable and addiional amangements that form a

part of this Scheme.

This Scheme also provides for various oiher matters sonsequential fo of otherwise Intagrally
connected with the subject matter hereof,

[-!:F.::!: :‘,'_\:P‘{‘ Page 2ol 21
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2.1

PARTI

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANIES & OBJECTIVES OF THE SCHEME

Brief overview of the Companles

ch
(a}

(b)

(e

ares Private Limited:

The Transferor Company is a private limitsd company incorporated under the Companies
Act, 1958 and previously had its registered office at D-11, Lower Graund Floor, Gragter
Keilash Enclave 1, South Delhl, India- 116048,

The Transferor Company was incorporated on March 5, 2012 with the Registrar of
Companles, Relhl and Haryana, having the arstwhile GIN U72900DL2092PTC232308.
Pursuant to the resclutions of the board of directors and shareholders of the Transferor
Company and approval of the Cantral Government of indla, the ragistered office of
Transferor Company was relocated to 302, 3@ Fioor, Global Foyer, Secter 43, Gurgaon,
Haryena- 122002, Indig, in the State of Haryana, with sffect from January 03, 2020 and
was allofted a fresh CIN U72800HR2012PTC084628,

The main objects of the Transferor Company as provided in ite tmemorandum of
association ara, /nter afla, to:

() Ta carry on the busingss of Software manufacturing, developing, selling,
distribution, deal in, Import, export or to engaga any other entity other than its own
in house resources in developing and manufacturing softwara and to make uss of It
by selling, distribution, deatl in , import, export or in any other manner;

{iiy Topromote, encowage, establich, davelop, maintain, organise, undertake, manags,
operate, conduct and to run In India or Abroad computer fraining centres, data
processing tantres, camputer coaching centres, computer consultancy husiness,
software consultansy. eleslonic meil, E-commerce, E-husinegs znd internet
applications, web-sites serviees designing and hosting, cybercafe and other allied
activittes for all sort and services relating to computers, s malntenance, repair,
programmes and operation for industrial, commercial, domestic public utllity,
doefance, Govemmaent and other customers or section of society.

{ili) To carry on in India and any other part of the world the business or businesses of
surveying, prospecting, drilling and exploring for, @equiring, developing, producing,
maintaining, refining, storing, ftrading, =upplying, trensporting, markating,
distribuling, imporling, exporting and generally dealing In miperals and other natural
cils, petroleum and all other forms of solid, liquid and gaseous hydrecarbons and
other minerals and thieir products and by-prodicts and all their branches;

(v) To search for purchase, iake on lease or license, obialn concessions over or
otharwise acquire, any estate or interest In, develop the resources of work, dispose
of, or gthenvise furn io accourt, land or sea or any other place in India or in any
other part of the world contalning, or thought likely to contain, oil, petraleum,
pelroleun resourcs or allernate source of energy or other olls in any form, asphalt,
bituman ar similar subsatances or nalural gas, chemicals or any substances used, or
which is thought likely to be usaful for any purpose for which patroleum or other oils
in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances or natural gas s or could be
sed and to that end to organize, squip and employ expeditions, commissions,
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experls and other agents and to sink wells, to make borings and otherwise to search
far, abtain, explolt, devalop, render suitable fur keads, patroleum, other mineral ofls,
natural gas, asphatt or other similar substancas or praducts thereof,

22 Antelopys Enengy Brivete Limited:
{a) The Transfaree Company Is a private limited company incorporated under the Companies

3.1

{b)

©

Act, 2013, having (Is registered offica al 302, 3™ Flaor, Glabal Fayer Mall, Goff Caurse
Road, Sactor 43, Gurgaon, Heryane, India (122002).

The Transferea Company was incorporated on September 25, 2018 with the Replstrar of
Companies, Dethi and Haryana, having CIN U74839HR2018PTCOT6(12.

The main objects of the Transferes Company as provided in s mamorandum of
association are, inter alia, to;

()  Ta carry onin India and any ather part of the world the businass or busingsses of
surveying, prospecting, drilling and axploring far, acquiring, devsloping, praducing,
maintaining, refining, storing, tading, supplying, transporiing, marketing,
distributlng, imporiing, exporting and gensrelly dealing in minerals and athar naiurel
olls, petroleum and all ather forms of solid, liguld and gassous hydrecarbons and
other minerals and their products and by-products and all their branches;

{i} To search for, purchase, take on lease or licencs, oblain concessions over or
ctherwise acquire, any astata or intereat in, develop tha resources of, work, dispose
of, or otharwise turn to account, tand or saa or any other place in India or in any
other past of the werld contalning, or thought Ikely to contaln, oll, petrolaum,
petraleumn resource or alternata source of snergy or other olls i any form, asphalt,
bitumen or simliar substances or naturad gas. chemicals or any substanoes used, or
which 1s thought likely to ba ussful for any purpose for which petreleum or other oits
in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar substances, or natural gas is, or could be
used and (o that end to organise, equip and employ expadilions, commissions,
expents and other agents and to sink walls, {o maks borings and otherwiseto search
for, obtain, exploit, develop, render suitable for trade, pstroleum, othar mineral oils,
netural gas, asphell, or ather simitar subslancas ar products thereed.

Objocts of this Schems

The proposad amalgamation will ba In the best interests of the sharsholders, creditors and other
stakeholders of the Companles, as it would rasult in synergetic integration of the busiagss and
increased operational efficiencies. Accordingly, as a result of ihe amalgamation of the
Companies, the following benefits will accrue to the Companies:

(a)
(b}

{c)
(4

ease of management;
avolding duplication and ovearlap in the cperations and use of resowces;

reduced cost of operations and better profitabliity;

pooling of resources, creating better synergles across the group, optimal uilizailon of
resources and greater ecanamies of scale:

stimination of mulliple administrativa functions, complianca functions and record-keeping,
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4.1

thus resulting in redused expendiiure, cost effiviency, improved logistics and aperational
efficiency;

() achieving higher grawth potential; and

(o) enhanced financial strength.

Dofinitlons

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the follawing expressions shall
hava the following meaning:

“Act’ means the Companies Aqt, 2013 as notified, clarlfied andfor modifled by rules and
notifications izsued by the Ministry of Corporale Affalrs, from fime ta fime;

“Appolnted Date” means January 01, 2020, being the date with effect from which Part lll of this
Scheme shall, upon sanction by the Compstent Authority, and satisfaction to the conditions to
effectivonass sst out In Clguss B of Part IV of this Scheme, be deamed to be effective;

*Board of Diractors”, in relation to the Companles, means their respective board of directors,
and unless it is repugnent to the context ar otherwise, Includes any person authorised by the
board of diractors;

“‘Compantes” has the meaning ascrbed to such temm in ths title clause of {his Schems;

*Compatant Authority” has tha meaning ascribad to sush term it the Clause 5.1 of Part | of this
Schame;

“Effective Date” has the meaning aseribed to such term in Glauss 2 of Part IV of this Scheme.
Any references in this Scheme to “upon this Scheme becoming effective”, “Schome hepomes
effective” ur “affectiveness of this Scheme™ means and refers to the Effective Date;

“Schems” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means thls scheme of amalgamation pursuant to
Chapter XV and other relevant provisions of the Act with such medifications and amendmanis ag
may be made fram tims to time, with the appropriate approvals and sanctlons of the Competent
Authority and [cther relevant governmental or regulatory authorities, as may be required under
the Act and under all olher applicable laws;

*DS” means taxes deducted at scurce, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1861;

.

“Transferee Gompany” has the meaning aseribed to such term in tha fiile clausa of this Scheme;

“Transferor Company” has the meaning ascribed to such term in the titla clause of this Scheme,
and notwithstarwing anything to the cunirary in this Scheme, shalt be deemed to Includa:

(@ any and all of its assels, whether present or future, whether tangibia or intangitie,
equipment, whether leased or otherwisa, together with all present and fulure liabilities
including contingent liabilities and debis appertaining thereto;

any and alf of ils Investments {including shares, strips, stocks, bonds, debentures,
dobenture slock, units ar pass through cafificates and other securities), loans and
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5.1

52

{c} eany and all of its licanses (including tha icenses granted by any yovemnenial, statulory
of regulatory bodies for the purpose of canying on ffs business or in connection therewith),
patmisslons, approvals, consents, exemplions, registestions, nevobjection cerificates,
quotas, rights, enfilemsnts, cedificates, guods amd servicos tax credifs, incomestax
credits, privileges and bonefits of a% contracts, agreements and all sther vights Incliding
{ease rights, powers and faclities of every kind and dascriplion whatsoever;

{d} anyandall ofits Bahiliies, present or future, all guarantess, assurances, commitments and
ohligations of eny nature or descriptlon, wheihar fixad, confingant, absclute, saserted or
w-assettad, matursd or un-meiured, fiquidated or unfiquidated, accrusd or not acerusd,
known or unknown, dus or fo bacome due, whenever or howevar arising (incfuding, without
limitation, whether arising out of any conlract or fort basad an niegligance or sfrict Iiabilfiy);

(2} all contracts, agresments, licenses, eases, memoranda of undertakings, memorands of
agreements, memofanda of agread points, kstters of agresd points, amangemsnts,
undertakings, whether wiitien or otherwise, deeds, bonds, schemes, amangemenis,
service egreements, sales orders, purchase orders or other Instruments of whatsoever
nature to which the Transferar Company is & parly;

() anyand 2l of its permanent employses, who are on its payrolls, including those employed
at its offices and branches. employees/parsonnel engaged on cantract hasls, and any
other employeestparsonnsel hired by the Transferor Company after the data hereck;

{g) any and all of the advance monies, earnest monles andfor sestuity deposits, paymsnt
against other entitlements, as may be lying with tham; and

{n) &l goodwill, trademarks, trade names, service mrarks, domain names and any other
Intallactual property in which the Transfaror Company has any right, titfe or intarast,

Interpratation

Tarms and axpressions which are used in this Scheme but not defined herein shall, unless
repugnant or contrary to tha context or meaning theraof, have the sama maaning asaibed to
them under the Act, the Income Tax Aet, 1981 and other applicabla laws, rulas, regulations, bye-
laws, as the case may be, Including any statuiory modification or re-enaetment theresf, from Himo
10 §me. In particular, wheraver referance to the Competent Autharity are made [n this Schema,
the referanca would ordinarlly refor o the Reglonal Dirgctor and, if sppropriafe or nacessary,
reference to or such other forum or authorily, 25 may be vasted with any of the pawers of the
Compatent Authority under the Act andfor rules made thereunder andfor if and when applicable,
the Registrar of Companiss, Dathi and Haryana, the Officlal Liguldater and the National Company
Law Tribunal.

In this Scheme, uniess the coniext otherwise requires:

(@) references fo ‘persons” shall Include individuals, bodies corporate (whersver
incormorated), ynincarporated assoclations and partnerships;

(b) ihe headings are Inserted for sass of reference only and shall not affact the construation
or interpretaiion of this Schema;

referenges to ons gender includes ail genders; and

. o e
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{d) words in the singutar shall includa the plural and vice versa.
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PART Il
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
1 Shars caplital of the Companies

1.1 The share capital of tha Transferor Company as at Febnyary 03, 2020 is as under:

» Particutare Amount (In Rupesb)
Authorisad Gapital 4,56,00,000
45,600,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 sach 4,50,00,000
Total 4,50,00,000
tgsued, Subscribed and Pald-up Capital 3,74,00,000
37,40,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 gach 3,74,00,000
Total 3,74,00,000

1.2 The shore capitel of the Transferee Company as &t February 03, 2020 is a8 under;

" Padiculas | Amount(inRupees) |
Authorisad Capital 48,00,00,000
4,66,32,889 Equily sheres of INR 10 each 45,63,28,690
8,687,111 Class A1 Equity shares of INR 10 each 86,71.410
15,00,000 Redsemeblo Prefsrencs Shares of INR 10 aach 1,50,00,000
Totat 48,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribad and Pald-up Gapital 43,16,32,890
4,08,20,245 Equity Sheras of INR 10 each 40,82,G2,450
8,67,111 Class Al Equity shares of INR 10 sach 88,71,110
4,75,933 Redeemable Prefarenca Shares INR 10 each 1,47,59,330
Tota! 43,16,32,830

1.3  The Transferor Company is a wholly ownad subsidiary of the Transferee Company. The
Transieres Company and Mr. Sunill Kumar Bhat {(nominge of the Transferee Company halding
1 {one} equity share for the purpoae of enauring compliance with tha provisions of tha Ast),
Jointly with the Transferes Company, legally and haneficially hold 100% {ona hundred parcent}
equily shares of tha Transferor Company.

1.4 37,38.999 (Thirty 8even Lakhe Thirty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Ninety Mina) equily
shares of the Transferar Gompany are held by the Transferee Company and 1 (one) equity
share of the Transferor Company is hald by Mr. Suniti Kumar Bhat fnominee of the Transferse
Gompany) jointly with Transferea Company. The Transferar Company has filed form MGT-6
with regard fo transfer of beneficial intarest of 3 (one) equity share of the Transferar Company
held by Mr. Surili Kumar Bhat, in favour of the Transferee Company, on Decamber 12, 2019.

—_— )
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1.4

1.2

PART Il

AMALGAMATION OF THE TRANSFERQR COMPANY INTO AND WITH THE TRANSFEREE

COMPANY

Transfar and veating of the Transferor Company inte and with the Transfaree Company

Upon this Schema becoming effactive and with effect from the Appointed Dats, &ll the asssts and
linblities and the entire business of the Transferor Company shall stand iransferred to and vest
in the Transferee Company, as a golng congarn, without any further act or dead, togethst with
all its properiles, assets, rights, benefits and intarest thersin, in accardance with the provisions
of this Scheme and Chapter XV of the Act and all other applicable provizions of law if any.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above and to the extent appiicable, unless otherwise
stated hereln, upon this Scheme bacoming effactive and with effect from the Appointed Date:

(=)

(&)

@

All agsets of the Transfaror Company that are movable in nature or Incorporeal property
or are otherwise capable of transfer by physical or construclive delivery and/or by
endorsemsnt and dalivery or by vesting and recordal of whatscever nature, Including
equipment shall stand transfarred and/or be desmed to be transferrad to and vestsd [nthe
Transferes Company and shall become the property and an intagral part of the Transferes
Company without requiring any dead or instrument of conveyanas for the same. The
vasting pursuant to this sub-clause shall be deemsd to hava ocourred by physical or
construstive delivary or by endorsement and delivery or by vesting and recordal, pursuant
fa this Scheme, as appropriate to the property belng vasted and titla to the property shall
b deamed to have been fransfemed accordingly.

All other assats of the Transferor Company, other than those mentionad in Clause 1.2 (a)
above, including investments In sesurities, sundry debtors, loans and advances provided,
if any, recoverable In cash or in kind or for velug to be recelved, bank balances and
deposits, f any, with government, semi-government, {ocal and other authorities and
bodlies, eustomers and other persons, shall without any further agt, instrument or deed,
becarme the properly of tha Transferea Company, and the same shall also be deemed ta
have bean transferred by way of delivery of possession of the respective decumeni(s) in
this regard. 1t is hersby clarified that all the rights, fitie and interest of the Transferor
Company in any feasehold properties shall, pursuant to section 233 of the Adt and the
provisions of this Scheme, withoul 2ny further a6t or deed, ba transferred to and vestad in
and/or ba deemed o have been transferred ta and vested In the Transfares Company.

All contracts, purchase arders, teads, bonds, agresments, schames, arrangements and
other instruments, permils, rights, entittements, licenses {ineluding the licenses granted by
any govarnmantal, statutory or regulatory hodies) for the purpose of camying on the
business of the Tranaferor Company, and in relation thereto, and those relating to
tenancies, privileges, powars, facilities of every kind and description of whalsaevar nature
in relation to the Transferor Company, or to the benefit of which, the Transferor Company
may be eliglble and which are subsisting or having sffact Immediately before the Effactive
Date, shall be and remain in full force and effact on, against orin favour of the Transferee
Company and may be anforced as fully end efiectually aa If, Instead of the Transferar
Company, the Transferee Company had been a parly or benefictary or cbiigor therste, If
the Transferee Company enters into and/or issues andfor execules desds, writings or
confirmations or enters Into any trpartite arrangements, confirmations or novation, the
nsferor Campany wily, if necessary, also be party to such dacuments In order 1o give
| effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required. In relation o the same, any
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{h}

procedural requiraments raquired to be fulfilled solely by Transferor Company, shall be
fulfilled by the Transfaree Company as if it I3 the duly constituted attomay ot the Transfaror
Company.

Any pentding suits’appeals or other proseedings of whatsoever nature ralgting to the
Transferor Company, whether by or against the Transfsrar Company, shall not abate, b
discontinued or in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amatgamation of the
Tranateror Company o of anything contalned in this Scheme, but tha procesdings shall
continue and any prosecufion shall bs enforced by ur againat the Transferes Company In
the same manner and to tha zame exteat as would ar might have been continued,
prosecuted andfor enforced by or against the Transferes Company, as if this S8cheme had
not been Implementad. For the avoidance of dostt, the aforessid shall include ongoling
Insome tax assessment related prosoadings to which the Transferor Company is party
which relate to Assessment Year 2019-20,

The Transfaree Qompany undertakes to pay all amaunis including interest, penafiies,
damages and costs which the Transferor Company may be called upon bo pay or ssoure
In respact of any liabliity of obligation relating to the Transferor Gompany from the periad
starting on the Appointed Date up fo the Effective Date, upon submisalon of necessary
evilence fo the Transferee Company for meking sush payments,

All habllffes, contingent Rabiltiies, Gufiss and obligations, whether provided for or not in the
booka of account or disclused in the balancs shaels of the Transferor Company shall ba
deemed to be the lablittes, contingent liabilitles, duties and ohligations of the Transferes
Campany, and the Transferee Company shall, and undertakes to mest, discharge and
=allsfy the some in tatms of their respectiva terma and conditions, it any.

Whare any of the lizhilities and cbligations attibuted & the Transferor Company on the
Appointad Data hava been dischargad by the Transferor Company after the Appointad
Dats and prior {o the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deented to hava been for and
on behaif of the Transferee Company.

Al the smployass of the Transferor Campany who are on Its payrolls as on the Effactive
Date, shall bacoms tha amployees of the Transferee Company on and fram the Effective
Date, without any break or interruption In thelr servieas, on the same terms and ecnditians
on which they are engegsd with the Transferer Company. The Transferse Company furthar
agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retirement benefiticompsnsatian, such
Immediate unintecrupted past sarvices with the Transferor Company, ghall also be taken
into account, With regesd to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment and any other
special scheme or bensfits created or exdsting for the benefit of such amployees of the
Transferar Company, the Transferea Company shall stand substituted far the Transferor
Company far all purposes whatsoever, upon this Scheme becoming effective, Induding
with regard (o tha obligation to make contribulions to relevant authorities, such as the
Regional Providant Fund Commissioner or fo such other funds maintained by the
Transferor Company, in accordanes with the provisions of epplicable laws or othamwize, it
is heraby clarified that upon this Scheme basoming effective, the afaresaid benefils or
schemes shall continue to be providad to the translerred employess and the services of
all the ransferred employess of the Trawsferor Company for such purpase shall be reatgd
as having been continuous.

With regard to any provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or other special fund
created or existing for the benefil of such amployess of the Transferar Company, Itis the

-
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(m}

aim and Intent of the Schema that all the rights, duties, powers and obligations »f the
Transferor Company in relation to such schemes or funds shall become thoss of the
Transferee Company. Upon the Scheme becoming effestive, the Tronsferea Company
shall stand substituted for the Transfaror Company for all purposes whatsaever relating to
the obligation to make contributions ¢ the sald funds in accordanee with the provisions of
such schemes or funds in the respective trust deeds or other documents, Any existing
providant fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund trusts created by the Transferor
Company for iz employass shall be continuad for the bansfit of such employees on the
same terms and condilions until such time that they are transferred to the relevent funds
of the Transfaras Company, The services of all employees af the Transferor Company
fransferred to the Transferee Company Wil be treated ag having been continuous and
unintarrupted for the purpesa of the aforesald schemes or funds.

All goodwill, trademarks, trada names, service marks, domain names and any other
intellactual property In which the Transferar Company has any right, title or intersst if any,
shall stand transferred to arxd veasted in the Transferas Company.

Al taxes {including but not limited ta gnods and services tax, advance tax, tax dedueted at
saurea, minimum altemate tex credits, fringe benefit tax, securities transaction tax, taxes
withheld/pald in a foralgn country, value added tax, service iax efe.) payable by or
refundabla 1o the Transferor Company, including all or any refunds or claims shall be
freated as the fax liability or refunds/claims, as the case may be, of the Transferee
Company, and any tax Incentives, advantages, privileges, exemptions, credits, holidays,
remissions, raductions etc., as would have been svailable to the Transferar Company,
shall pursuant fo this Scheme becoming seffective, be avallable to the Transferee
Company.

All approvals, consents, exemptions, reglstrations, no-cbjection cerfificates, permits,
quatas, rights, enfitlements, licenses (inciuding the licensas granted by any governmental,
stahiory or regulatory Rodies for the purpose of carrying on its business or in connection
therewlith), and certificates of every kind and description whatseever in ralation fo the
Transferor Company, or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company may ba
aligible/entitied, and which are subsisting or having effest immediatsly hatfore the Effective
Date, shall bs in full forcs and effact In favour of the Transferee Company and may be
enforead as fully and effactually as If, Instead of the Transferar Company, the Transferes
Company had been a party ar bensficiary or obligor thereto, It is hereby clarified that if the
consent of any third party or autherity is required to give effect to the provislons of this
Clause, the seid third parly or authority shall make and duly mecord the necessary
substitution/andorsement in the name of the Transferee Company pursuant to the sanction
of this Scheme by the Compeatent Authority, and upan this Scheme bscoming effective in
accordance with the terms hereof. For this purpnse, the Transferee Company shall file
appropriate applications/documents with refevant authorities eoncamsd for Information
and record purposes.

Benefits of any and all corporaie approvals as may have already been taken by the
Transferor Company, whether being In the nature of compllances or otherwise, including
without limltatlon approvals under saciions 42, 82(1){a), 180, 185, 188, 188 glo., of the Act,
read with the rules and regulations made thersunder, shall stand transferred to the
Transferas Company ang the sald corporate approvals end compllancas shall he deemed
1o have been taken/complied with by the Transferee Gompany.

All assets, rights, fifle, interests and authorilies accruad o and/or acquired by the
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Transfaror Company shall be deemed to have baen accrued to andior ecquired forand on
behalf of the Transferee Company and shall, upon this Scheme coming Inko eifect,
pursuant ko the pravisigns of section 233 and ather applicable pravislons ofthe Act, without
any further act, instrument or deed be and stond transforred 1o or vested In andfor be
deamed {0 have been transferred to or vested In the Transforea Company o that extent
and shafl become tha assets, right. title, interests and authorities of the Transferes
Compeny.

{o)  All bank aceounts operated or enlitied 0 ba operated hy the Transferor Company shall be
daamed to have tremsferred and shall stand transferred fo the Transferee Company and
the Transferor Company’s names shal be substitnted by the name of the Transferee
Company in the bank's recondsa.

The Transferee Company may at any fime afler the coming inta effect of the Scheme in
accordancs with the provisions of the Echems, if g0 requirad, under any law or otherwiss, execute
doods of confirmation in favour of any party 10 sriy contract or amangement to which the
Transferor Company Is party or any wrilings as may be necessary to be executed In order to giva
formal effect to the above provislane. The Transferae Gompany shall under the provisions of the
Scheme be deemed to be authordsed to execule any such writings on behialf of the Transferar
Company and to implament er carey out all such formalities or compliance referred to above on
the part of the Transferor Company fo be carried out or parformed,

The Transferes Corpany 85 the oase may be, shall, at any time after this Scheme becuming
effactiva in agcordance with the provisions hereof, if 8o required under any law or otherwles, do
alt such acts or things as may be necessary ko transferfobisin the approvals, consents,
exemptions, regisirations, no-objaction certificates, permits, quotas, ights, entitlaments, Bcenses
and certificates which were hald or enjoyed by tha Tranaferor Company. It is hereby dlarifiad that
if the cansent of any third party or authority s required to give effect to tha provisions of this
Clause, the said third parly or authordty shall make and duly record the necessary
substitution/endarsemsnt In the name of the Transferea Company pursuant to the sanction of
this Schems by the Competent Aulhority, and upen this Scheme becoming effectiva In
accardance with the proviekins of the Act and with the termis heraof, For this purpese, the
Transfares Company shall file appropriate applications/doguments with relevant authotities
concemed for Information and record purpeses. The Transfaree Company shall, under the
provisions of this Schema, be deemed to ba authorised to execute any such wrilings on behalf
of tha Transferer Company and to casry out ar perform all such acis, formalities or compliances
referred to above as may be required In this regard,

Gonduct of Business untll Effective Date
With affest from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

{7) the Transfsrar Company Underlukes to carry on and shall be deemed 1o have carried on
the business activities of the Transferor Company end stand possasaad of the properles
and assets of the Transfaror Company, far and ot egeount of and intrust for the Transferee
Company;

{b) the Transfarar Company shal be desmet to have besn camying on and shell cany on lis
business and activities and shall be deamad to have hald and steod’possassed of and
shall hold end stand possessed of all ils properties and assets partaining to the siness
and undertaking of the Transferor Company for and on ascount of and in trust for the
Transferee Company. Tha Transferor Company hereby undertakes to hold its saidassets
with utmest prudence until the Effactive Dale:
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(d)

{e)

®

{9

)

the Transferar Company shall cary on is business and activities with reasonahla
diligencs, business prudenes and [n the same manner as it had baen doing hitherto and
shall not, undertake any additional financial commitments of any nature whatsoaver,
borrow any amounts or incur any other Habllities or expenditure, issue any additional
guaranises, indemnitles, letters of comfort or commibment either for themasives or on
behalf of its respective alfiliates or associates or any third party, or sall, transfer, alienate,
charge, morigage ar ancumbar or deal in any of its properies/assets, except:

{i)  whenitls expressly provided in this Scheme; or

(i) when it is in the ordinary course of business as caried on by the Transferor
Company, as on the date of filing of this Scheme with the Compstent Authority; or

(iify  when written congent of the Transfarase Company has been obtalned in this regard;

all the profits or income accruing or arising fo the Transferor Company and all taxes paid
thereon (including but nat limited to advence tax, tax deducted at sourcs, goods and
services iax, minimum altermate tax, fringe benefit tax, securifies transaction tax, taxes
withheld/ paid in a forelgn country, value added tax, stamp duty ele.) or expenditurs or
losses arising or incurred or suffered by the Transferar Company pertaining to the business
and undertaking of the Transferor Company ehall for all purpeses be treated and be
deemed o be and accrue as the income or profifs or losses or expenditure as the case
may be of the Transfaree Gompany;

the Transferor Company shall nof vary the terms and canditions of employment of any of
the employees except In the ordinary course of business or without the prior consent of
the Transfereg Company or pursuant to any pre-existing ebligation underlzken by the
Transferor Company as the case may be;

except by mutual conzent of the Boards of Directors of the Transfsror Company and the
Transferee Company, or sxcepl pursuant to any prior commifment, obligation or
emangement axisting or undettaken by the Transferor Company andior the Transferae
Company as an the Appointed Date, or except as contamplated in this Scheme, pending
sanction of this Scheme, the Transfaror Company endfor the Transferes Company shall
not make any changs in their capital structures efther hy wey of any increase (by Issue of
equity shares, bonus sharas, converiible debentures or atherwize), decrease, reduction,
reclassification, sub-divizslon or consalidatioh, re-organisation or In any other manner,
which would have the effect of re-organisation of capltal of such company(ies);

the Transferor Company shall not aiter or substantlally expand the business except with
the written concurrence of the Transferee Company; and

sinoe each of the permissiona, approvals, consents, sanclions, remissions, special
raservations, holidays, incentives, concesslons and gther authorisations of the Transferor
Company, shall stand transferred by the order of the Competent Authority, to the
Transfares Company, tha Transferze Company shall file the relevant inimetions upen
sanction of this Scheme by the Compstent Authority, for the record of the stalutory
authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to the vesting erders of the Competant
Authority.
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2.3

authorissd to carry on the businesses of the Transferor Company.

For the purpose of giving effect #n the order passed under Chepter XV and other applicabls
provisions of the Act in raspect of this Scheme by the Competent Authorily, the Trancferas
Company shall, atany time, pursuant ta the order on this Schems, be entitled fo obtsin recording
of the change in the iegal right{s) upon the transfer of the Transferor Company, In accordance
with the provisions of Chaptar XV of the Act. The Transferea Campany Is and shall always be
deamed to hava been autharised to execute any pleadings, applications, forms ete., a3 may ba
required to remove any difficulties and carry out 2ny formallies or campliance s are nacessary
for the Implomantation of this Schema, pursuant to the sanclion of fhls Schame by the Compatent

* Authority,

24
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Upon this Schame becoming effective, the Transferce Ccmpan.y. unconditionaly and lmevocably,
agreas and undertakes tn pay, discharge and satisfy al} liabilities and obligations of the Transferor
Company with offect from the Appointed Date, In order to give effect to the foregoing provisions.

All profits aceruing to the Transleror Company and all taxas thereof or losses anising or incurred
by [t relating to fhe Transferor Campany shall, for all purposes ha treated as the profis, 1axes or
losses as the case may be of the Transferee Company.

Upon tha coming inte effect of this Scheme, the resolutiens, if any, of the Transferor Company,
which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date shall continue (3 be valid and subslsting and
be considered as resolutions of the Transferae Company and if any such resolutions have upper
monsatary or other limite being imposed under the provisions of the Aet, or any other applicable
pravisions, then such fimits shall be addsd and shall constitute the aggregate of such limits In the
Transferes Company.

Dissolution of the Transferar Company

tdpon this Scheme bacoming effective, the Transferor Company shell atand dissolved without
being wound-up, without any further act or deed. Consequently. the name of the Transfaror
Campany shall be struck oif fram tha records of the Reglstrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryana.
The Transferea Company shall, If required, make necessary fifags In this regard. Upon the
Scheme {aeking effect and after dissolution of tha Transfesor Company, the Beard of Directors of
the Teansfarae Company Is harsby authorized to take etaps as may ba necessary, desirable or
proper io resolve any issues and complete any aciions, consequent to dissolution of the
Transferor Company.

Changss In Share Capttal

Upon the Scheme coming Info effact, the authorised share capital of the Transfaror Company
shall stand combined with the suthorised share capital of the Transferas Company and
accordingly the memorandum of asseciation of the Transfarse Company shall stand amended
ard Clause V of the memorandum of association of the Transferas Gempany shall he substiuted
1o read &g fullows:

‘the Authorised Share Cspilai of the Company Is INR 52,50,00,000 (intian Rupees Fifty Tu
Crares Fifty L.akhe Only) dividad inta §,01,82,889 [Five Crores One Lekh Thirly Two Thousand
Elghi Hundred and Elghly Nins] Equity Shares of INR 10 (indiap Rupees Ten) esch,
8,67, 111{Eight Lakha Sixty Seven Thousand One Hundred and Eleven Only} Glass A1 Equity
Sheres of INR 10 (indlan Rupees Ten) each and 15,060,000 (Fiftesn Lakhs Only) Redasmable
Proference Shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupsss Ten) sach, with the power la fncrease and decreasd

|
|
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4.3

44
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5.1

5.2

the capital of the Gompany and to divids the share In the capital of the Gompany for the time
being, into several classes and lo aitach thereto respactively, such proferential, qualifisd or
spadial rights, privileges or condltions, as may be determined by orin accordance with the Articlas
of Association of lthe Company, for the tima being, and to vary, madify or abrogate any such
rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be permitted by the Companies Act, 2013
or provided by the Artioles of Associalion of the Company, for the time being. Tha rights attached
to tha preference shares should be such as may be detarmined by the Direclors at the lime of
issue thereof.”

The filing fea and stamp duty elrsady paid by the Transferor Company en its authorized share
capilal, which is belng combined with the authorized share capital of the Transfarea Campany,
shall be deemsd to have bean pald by the Transferee Company and accordingly, the Transferes
Company shall not be required to pay any fee, additlonal fee, charges and/far stemp duty on the
authorized share capital so increased. Howevar, the Transferss Compeny shall file the amended
copy of its memorandum of association and arficles of association with the Registrar of
Companies, Delhi and Haryana within a pariod of 30 (thirly) days from the Effeclive Date and the
Registrar of Companies shall take the same on recerd,

The authorised share capital of the Transferae Campany will Increase by filing the copy of the
Competent Authority’s ordar with the Minislry of Corporate Affsirs and the Scheme shall bs
deamed {0 be sufficient for tha purposes of effecting this emendment, and no further resolution(s)
under section 13, saction 14, saction 61 or any other applicable provision of the Act, would he
required to be separately passed,

Upon this Schems becoming sffective, thare will be no change in the pakl-up shars capital of the
Transferee Gompany and no shares will ba issued by the Transferes Company in consideration

of the amalgamation of the Transferor Compsny sinca the Transferor Company is & wholly swnad
subsidiary of the Transferee Company.

Upen effectiveness of this Schems, the securities of the Transferor Campany held by the
Transferee Company shall siand cancelied and the investment in the share capital of the
Transferor Company raflected in the books of accounts of the Transferea Company, such also
shall stand cancslled in the books of the Transferés Company.

Payment of Caonsideration

The Transferor Campany is a wholly owned subeldiary of tha Transferes Company, and
accordingly, upon this Scheme coming into effect and upon transfer and vesting of all assets and
lizbilitles and the entlre business of the Transferor Company into and with the Transfaree
Gompany in accordance with Part [l of this Scheme, all equity ghares of the Transferor Company
held by the Transferee Company (either diractly or through nominees) shall autematically stand
gancsiled without any furthsr spplication, act or deed. Therefore, the Transferae Company shall
not and will not ba liable to (@) issue andfor allot any sectrities; and (b) pay consideratian in any
form, 1o the shareholders of the Transferor Company or to Mr. Suniti Kumar Bhat (nominee of
the Transferes Company).

Upon saming into effect of this Schome, the share cerlificates of the Transferor Company shall
without any further application, act or deed, be deemed to have baen automatically cancelled
and be of no effect without any necessily of them being surrende’red‘

Accounting treatment In the bocks of the Transferee Company
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amaigamatlen of he Transferor Company in the books of accounts, in secordance with *Fooling
af Interest Mgathod” of accountng as lald down in Appendit € of Ihd AS-103 (Business
Combinations of antities under commaon control) notified under Section 133 of e Companias
Act, 2013, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as may be amended
from time fo time, in its books of accounts such that:

(@

(b)

)

@

(e)

M

{9

(B}

The Transferce Company shall record the assets and lisbilities, if any, of the Transferor
Compeny vested In It pursuant fo this Schame, at the carrying amount a6 appearing in the
consolidated financial stefamants of the parent company.

Tha identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company shall be preserved and the
Trensferss Company shall record the teserves of the Transfercr Company, at the carmying
amount as appezaring in the consolidatad financlal statemants of the parent company.

Pursuant to the amalgarnation of the Transfarar Company with the Transferea Company,
the inter-coimpany balances between the Transferee Company and the Trensfavor
Company, it any appsaring In the books of the Trangfaras Company shall stand cancefled
amt there ghall be no furthar obligation in that behalf,

Upon caming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there ars inter-gompany loans,
advances, deposita, balances or other cbligations as batwasn tha Transferor Company
ar the Transferee Compariy, the obligation In raspect thareof shall ba construed as an
Intra-party fransaction and further there shall be no scenual of intereat on such loans frem
the Appointed Date.

The value of all investments held by the Transferes Company in the Traneferor Company
shall stand cancellsd pursuant to amalgamation.

The surplus/daficit, if any arising efter aking the affact of clause 6.1{4), 6.1(b) and 6,1 {d),
aftar giving the effsct of the adjustments referred to in clause 6,9(c), shall bs adjustad in
“Capital Reserve” in the finanalal stetements of the Transferee Company.

In case of any differences in accounting policies between the Transferor Company and the
Transferce Company, the accounting policles folowsd by the Transferes Company shall
prevall to ensure that the financiat stalements caflect the financial position based on
congigtent aceounting policias.

Comparative financlal information in the financlal stalaments of the Transfaren Company
shall be reatated for the accounting Impact of merger, as stated abave, o3 if the merger

had accurred from the heginning of the comparative pariod, provided control existed on
the first day of the comparative pariod, It all other cases comparative figures shall be
restated only from that date control was acquired.
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2.4

2.2

31

32

PART IV
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Pravisions applicakle to Part Il

Upon the sanction of this Scheme and upen this Scheme hecoming effective, the fallowing shall
be deemed to have occurred on the Appointed Data and bacsmae effective and oparative only In
the sequence and in the order mentioned hereunder:

{i) amendmenl ¢f the main objects of the Transferes Company as provided in this Scheme;

(1} amalgamation of Transferor Company Into the Transferee Campany in accordance with
Part ll of this Scheme; and

(i) cancellation of the equity shares of the Transfaror Gompany held by the Transferse
Gompany and Mr, Suniti Kumar Bhat (nominee of the Transferee Cornpany) without any
further acl, instrument or deed, in accordance with Part 1Il of this Scheme.

Compliance with Laws

This Schemne Is presented and drawn up 1o comply with the provisions/requirements of Chapter
XV of the Art, for the purposs of amalgamation of the Companies.

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditiona relating to “amalgamation”
specified under Sectlon 2(1B) and other ralevant sestions of the Incoms Tax Ast, 1861, iFany
terma or provistons of the Schame are found to bs or interpreted to be inconsistent with any of
the sald provisions at a later date, whether as a result of any amsndment of law or any judiclal or
executive Interpratation or for any other reason whatsosver, the aforesald provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 shall pravall and the Scheme shall sland modified fe the extent necessary
to comply with section 2(1B) of ihe income Tax Act, 1961, Such madification will howaver not
affect ether parts of the Scheme. The power to make such amendments as may become
necessary shall vest with the Board of Directors of the Companles, whish power shall be
exercisad reagsonably in tha best interasts of tha Campanies.and their staksholders.

[Consaquantial mattars relating to Tax]

Upon the Beheme becaming effestive, the Transferee Company Is exprassly permitted to revise
its financial statements and refums along with prescribed forms, fillngs and annexures undar tha
Income Tax Act, 1961 (including for minimum alternate tax purposes and tax bensfits), goods
and services tax law and other tax laws, and to claim refunds and/or credits for taxes paid
{including minimum atternate tax), and to claim tax benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1861 sic.
and for metters incidental thereto, if required to give effect to the provisions of this Schesne. The
order sanctioning the Schame shail he desmed to pemmit the Transferee Company fo ravisa its
financial atatements and books of aceounts and no further act shall be required te he undertaken
by the Transferea Company,

All the expenses incurred by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company in relation to
the amalgamation of the Transfaror Company with the Transferaa Company as per this Sthems,
Including stamp duty expenses, if any, shall be allowed as deduciion fo the Transferee Comgeny
in agcordance with the Bection 35DD of the Income Tax Act, 1961 over a period of 5 (fiva) years
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3.5

3.8

N

Upon the Scheme coming into afiect, notwithstanding anything to the confrary contalned in the
provisions of this Scheme, all accumutated tax loss, unabsorbed tax depreciation, minimum
alternate tox credit, if any, of the Transferor Company &S on the Appointed Date shall, for el
purposes, be treated ey accumulated tax loss, unabsorbed tax deprecialion and minimum
alemate tax credit of tha Transferes Campany, subjsct ta the proviglons of the Incoma Tax Act,
1951,

Upon the Scheme bscaming effective, any advance {ax, goods and services tax, minimum
altemate tax andfor TS crodit avaliable or vested with the Trensferor Company, including any
taxes pald and taxes deductsd et saurce and deposited by the Transfercr Company on inter-s¢
{ransaciions during tha pericd batwsan the Appolntad Date and the Effective Deate shall ba
treated ax advance tex paid by the Transferes Gompany and shall be availakle to the Transferes
Company for set-off against its liablity under the Income Tax Act, 1381 and any excess tax so
paid shall be eligible for refund together with intarest. Any TDS ceriificates issuad by the
Tzansferee Company to, or for the banefit of, the Transfaror Company under the Income Tax Act,
19671 with respect to the intar se transactions would be available 1o the Transferee Company to
asek rafund of from the tax authoritias in compliance with law, Further, TDS deposited, TDS
cerificatss kssued or TDS relurns fled by tha CompanieS on transactions other than inter se
transactions during the perlod betwaan the Appainted Date and the Effective Date shali continue
to hold good as If such TDS amounts were deposited, TDS ceriificates were issuad and TDS
retums were filad by the Transforee Company,

Tha Transferee Company is also axprassly penmitted o ¢falm rafurkds, credits, input credit, tax
deduction in respact of nullifying of any transaction between or amongst the Transteror Company
and the Transferea Company, provided that upon the Sgheme becoming effectve, the
Transferee Company is also exprossly psrmiited to revise #s Income-tax retumns, withholding tax
ratumns, exclse, value added tax relums, gaotds and sarvices tax, serviea tax relums, other 1ax
returns, to obtain TDS cerfificates, including TOS cartflcates relating to transaclions botwaen or
amongst the Transferor Compeny and the Transferee Company, and 1o clatm refurkds, advance
tax, and withholding tax cradlts, benefit of cary forward of accumulated lusses eto,, pursuant to
the provisions of this Schems.

All tax assessment proceadings/appeals of whatsocever nature by or against the Transferar
Compeny pending and/or asising at the Appointed Data and relafing to the Transfaror Company
shall be continued andlor enforced until the Effective Date by the Transferar Company. In the
event oftha Transferor Company falling to continue or enforce any proceading/appeal, the same
may be contmued o enforced by the Transferee Company, at the cost of the Trahsferce
Company. As and from tha Effective Date, the tax procesdings shall ba continued and enforced
by ar apainst the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the sama extant ss wonld or
might hava been continued and enforced by or against the Transfaror Campany.

Further, the aforamentioned procegdings shall not abale or ba discontinuad nor be in any way
prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of e Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company or anything contalned in the Schems.

Saving of concluded transactions
The transfae of praperties, assets and liabliitlss and the continuance of proceedings by or against
tha Transferor Company urder Part [If of the Scheme above shall not affagt any tremsaction or

proceadings already concluded by the Transforor Company an and siter the Appointed Date until
Effestive Das, {o the ond and intent hat the Transferee Company accepls and adopts all
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5.1

5.2

8.1

8.2

7.1

12

8.1

acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor Company in respact tharets as done
and executed on behalf of the Transferee Company.

Divldends

The Transforor Company and the Transferee Company shall be enfilled to declare and pay
dividends, whether interim and/or final, 1o their respactive sharehaklers prior to the Effective Dals.

it is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of deciaration of dividends are snabling
provisions only and shall not be deemed ta confor any right on any shareholder of tha Transferor
Campany and the Transfereg Company ta demand ar claim any dividends which, subject to the
provisions of the Act, shall ba antiraly at the diecretion of the respeciive Boards of Dirsctors of
the Transferor Compsny and the Transfaree Company, and if applieable in accordance with the
pravisions of the Act, bs subject to the approval of the shareholdars of each of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company.

Interprotation

While this Scheme shall bacome effective fram the Effective Date, the provisions of this Scheme
shall be applicable and come into operation frem the Appainted Date.

If any terms or provisione of this Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with
any provisions of applicable law at a iater date, whether as a result of any smarddment of law or
any Judicial or executive intarpretation or for any aother reason whatsosver, the provisions of the
applicable law shall prevail. Subject to abfalning the sanction of the Compstent Authority, if
necessary, this Scheme shiall then stand modified to the extent determined necassary 1o comply
with the sald provisions. Such modification will, however, not effect other parts of this Scheme.
Noitwithstanding the other provisions of this Scheme, the power to make such
amendments/modifications as may beeome necassary, whether before or after the Effective
Date, shall, subject ta obiaining the sanction of the Competent Authority, it nacessary, vast with
the Board of Directora of the Companies, which power shall be exercised raasonably In the best
interests of the Companies and their resperilve shareholders,

Application 1o the Competent Authority

The Compsanies may, with all reasonable dispaich, make respective applications to the
Compeatent Authorily, under Chapter XV and other applicable nrovislans of ths Act, seeking
arders for dispensing with ar convening, holding and/or conducting of the meetings of the clagses
of their respective ahareholders andior creditors and Sor sanctloning this Schems with such
modifications, as may be approved by the Competent Authority.

Upon this Scheme being approved by the requisite majority of the shareholders and creditors of
the Companiss (wherever required), the Companies shall, file respectiva pstitions before the
Competent Autherity for sanction of this Scheme under Chapter XY and other applicable
provisions of the Aet, and for such ather order or orders, as the Competent Authority may deem
fit for putting this Scheme into effect. Upon this 8cheme bacaming effective, the shareholders of
the Companies shall be deemad lo have also accorded thelr approval under all relsvant
provisions of the Act for giving effect to tha pravisions contained in this Scheme.

Modification or amendmants to the Scheme

ting through their respactive Boards of Directors, may assant to/make and/or
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8.2

8.3

84

8.5

consent to any modifications/amendments to the Schame or {o any conditions or limitations that
tha Cotpatant Authority under law may deem fit to diract or Impase, or which may otherwise be
considered necessery, desirable or appropriate as a resull of subssquent events or cthenwise by
them {l.e., tha Board of Directors). The Companies, dcting through thalr respective Boards of
Directors, be and are hereby autharised to take such steps as may be necessary, desirable or
propar to resolva any doubts, difficulties or questions whatsoavsr for sarrying the Scheme into
effest, whather by reason of any orders of the Competant Authority or of eny direclive or orders
of any ather authodties or othervise howsoever arising aut of, under or by virtus of this Scherme
and/ar any matters concarning or eonnectad therewith,

The Companies, acting through thelr respeclive Boards of Directars, shall be at libarty to withdraw
tha Scheme at any time prior to the Effective Date of the Scheme and for any reasan whatever
provided that in case the Companies elect Yo withdraw the Schome ater the arder sanctioning
the Scheme s passed, the Campanias shall obialn tha consent of their respactive shareholdars
by the requisite majority {in number and value of) as is prescsibed by the Act far withdrawal of
the Schems. Notwithstanding the ganeraifty of the foregoing, the Companies, acting through their
respective Boards of Directors, shall be at liberly to withdraw from this Schems in case any
condition or alteration imposed by the Competent Authority or any ather authorily is not an terms
acceptable to them. Each of the Companies shall be free lo withdraw from the Scheme or any
pan of the Scheme, if any part of this Schema Is found to bs unwarkable or unfeasible for any
reason whalsosver. This shall not, subject to the decisicn of the Companias, atfect the valldily or
Impiementation of the cther parts and/or provisions of this Scheme. In the event a parl of this
Scheme is found unworkabla or unfeashle and the Companles declde to Implement the
remaining parte of this Schems, the part of the Schema which 1 unworkable or unfeasible af
such other parts of the Scheme to the part extent are unwaorkable or unfensibla, shal) basoms
nult and vold and na rights or kshilitles whatsoever shall acerus o, or be incured inter se by, the
parties or thelr respective stakeholders or any other persons with raspect to such patt of the
Scheme.

Excapf as otherw!se expressly pravided In this Schame, the Transferee Company shall pay the
respaolive costs, expenses, charges, fees, taxes, dutles, levies and other Incidental expenses

ansing out of or incurred in connection with the filing, epproval andfor implementation of This
Schema.

In the avent of any Inconsistency betwesn any of the terms and conditians of any earller
arrangement between the Transfaror Company and the Transferes Company and their
respective sharehoklers and/or creditors, and the temms and condifions of this Scheme, the latter
shall prevail.

The Transferor Company and tie Transferee Gampany shall make necessary applications befora
the Compatant Authority for sanction of s Scheme and any dispute arising out of this Scheme
shal! be subject te the jurisdiction of tha Competent Autharity.

Effectiveneas of the Scheme

Subject to the provisians of this Scheme, this Scheme shall becoma effective upon a carlifled or
authgnticated copy of the arder of the Gompetent Authority sanctioning the Scheme bsing filed
with the Registrar of Campanies, Delhi and Haryana by the Transferar Company and the
Transferse Gompany (“Effactive Data®).
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101

11

11.1

11.2

11.3

Costs, charges & expensas

All costs, charges, taxes Including duties, levies and all othes expenses, if any (save as expressly
otherwise agreed), of the Transferor Company and the Transfaree Gompany arising out of or
incurred In connection with and implementlng this Schems and matters Incldental thereto shall
be bome by the Transferoe Company.

Residual

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall ba enfitled to oparate all
bank accounts, ¢ash and deposits relating to the Transferor Company, realise all monies and
complete and enforce all pending confracls and transactions in respect of the Transferor
Company in the name of the Transferor Company to the extent necessary,

Upon this Scheme bacoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to eosupy and
use all premises, whether owned, leaserd or licensed, rsiating to the Transferor Company in the
neme of the Transferer Company to tha extent necessary,

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferas Company shall be entitied to rely on, use
and operate on the besis of alt ficenses, consents and approvals, relating to the Transferor
Company In the name of the Transferor Company to the extent necessary.
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(The Companies Act, 2013)
Company limited by shares
Memorandum of Association
of
Antelopus Energy Private Limited

The name of the Company is Antelopus Energy Private Limited.
The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Haryana.
(a) The objects to be pursued by the Company on its incorporation are:

(i) To carry on in India and any other part of the world the business or businesses of
surveying, prospecting, drilling and exploring for, acquiring, developing, preducing,
maintaining, refining, storing, trading, supplying, transporting, marketing, distributing,
importing, exporting and generally dealing in minerals and other natural oils, petroleum
and all other forms of solid, liquid and gaseous hydrocarbons and other minerals and
their products and by-products and all their branches.

(i) To search for, purchase, take on lease or licence, obtain concessions over or otherwise
acquire, any estate or interest in, develop the resources of, work, dispose of, or
otherwise turn to account, land or sea or any other place in India or in any other part of
the world containing, or thought likely to contain, oil, petroleum, petroleum resource or
alternate source of energy or cther oils in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar
substances or natural gas, chemicals or any substances used, or which is thought likely
to be useful for any purpose for which petroleum or other oils in any form, asphailt,
bitumen or similar substances, or natural gas is, or could be used and to that end to
organise, equip and employ expeditions, commissions, experts and other agents and to
sink wells, to make borings and otherwise to search for, obtain, exploit, develop, render
suitable for trade, petroleum, other mineral oils, natural gas, asphalt, or other similar
substances or products thereof.

(b).Matters which are necessary for furtherance of the objects specified in Clause 3 (A)
are:-

0] To purchase, exchange or otherwise any movable or immovable property and any
rights or privileges which the Company may deem necessary or convenient for the
purpose of its main business.

(ii) To enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interest,
joint venture, reciprocal concession or co-operation with persons or companies carrying
on or engaged in the main business or transaction of this Company.

(iii) To import, buy, exchange, alter, improve and manipulate in all kinds of plants,
machinery, apparatus, tools and things necessary or convenient for carrying on the
main business of the Company.

(iv) To vest any movable or immovable property, rights or interests required by or received

or belonging to the Company in any person or company on behalf of or for the benefit
of the Company and with or without any declared trust in favour of the Company.
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v) To purchase, build, carry out, equip, maintain, alter, improve, develop, manage, work,
control and superintend any plants, warehouse, sheds, offices, shops, stores, buildings,
machinery, apparatus, labour lines, and houses, warehouses, and such other works
and conveniences necessary for carrying on the main business of the Company.

(vi) To undertake or promote scientific research relating to the main business or class of
business of the Company.

(vii)  To takeover the whole or any part of the business, goodwill, trade-marks properties and
liabilities of any person or persons, firm, companies or undertakings either existing or
new, engaged in or carrying on or proposing to carry on business this Company is
authorised to carry on, possession of any property or rights suitable for the purpose of
the Company and to pay for the same either in cash or in shares or partly in cash and
partly in shares or otherwise.

(vii) To negotiate and enter into agreements and contracts with Indian and foreign
individuals, companies, corporations and such other organizations for technical, or any
other such assistance for carrying out all or any the main objects of the Company or for
the purpose of activity research and development of manufacturing projects on the
basis of know-how, or technical callaboration and necessary formulas and patent rights
for furthering the main objects of the Company.

(ix) Subject to the Provisions of the Companies Act 2013, to amalgamate with any other
company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the objects of
the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.

(x) Subject to any law for the time being in force, to undertake or take part in the formation,
supervision or control of the business or operations of any person, firm, body corporate,
association undertaking carrying on the main business of the Company.

(xi) To apply for, obtain, purchase or otherwise and prolong and renew any patents, patent-
rights, brevets, inventions, processes, scientific technical or other assistance,
manufacturing processes know-how and other information, patterns, copyrights, trade-
marks, licenses concessions and the like rights or benefits, conferring an exclusive or
non-exclusive or limited or unlimited right of use thereof, which may seem capable of
being used for or in connection with the main objects of the Company or the acquisition
or use of which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to benefit the Company on
payment of any fee royalty or other consideration and to use, exercise or develop the
same under or grant licenses in respect thereof or otherwise deal with same and to
spend money in experimenting upon testing or improving any such patents, inventions,
right or concessions,

(xii) To apply for and obtain any order under any Act or Legislature, charter, privilege
concession, license or authorisation of any Government, State or other Authority for
enabling the Company to carry on any of its main objects into effect or for extending
any of the powers of the Company or for effecting and modification of the constitution of
the Company or for any other such purpose which may seem expedient and to oppose
any proceedings or applications which may seem expedient or calculated directly or
indirectly to prejudice the interest of the Company.
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(xiii)  To enter into any arrangements with any Government or Authorities or any persons or
companies that may seem conducive to the main objects of the Company or any of
them and to obtain from any such Government, authority, person or company any
rights, charters, contracts, licenses and concessions which the Company may think
desirable to obtain and to carry out, exercise and comply therewith.

(xiv)  To procure the Company to be registered or recognised in or under the laws of any
place outside India and to do all act necessary for carrying on in any foreign country for
the business or profession of the Company.

(xv) To draw, make, accept, discount, execute and issue bills of exchange, promissory
notes bills of lading, warrants, debentures and such other negotiable or transferable
instruments, of all types or securities and to open Bank Accounts of any type and to
operate the same in the ordinary course of the Company.

(xvi)  To advance money either with or without security, and to such persons and upon such
terms and conditions as the Company may deem fit and also to deal with the money of
the Company not immediately required.

(xvii) To undertake and execute any trusts, the undertaking of which may seem to the
Company desirable, either gratuitously or otherwise.

(xviii) To establish, or promote or concur in establishing or promote any company for the
purpose of dealing all or any of the properties, rights and liabilities of the Company.

(xix)  To sell, mortgage, exchange, grant licenses and other rights improve, manage, develop
and dispose of undertakings, properties, assets and effects of the company or any part
thereof for such consideration as may be expedient and in particular for any shares,
stocks, debentures or other securities of any other such company having main objects
altogether or in part similar to those of the Company.

(xx) Subject to the Provisions of Companies Act 2013, to distribute among the members in
specie or otherwise any property of the Company or any proceeds of sale or disposal of
any property of the Company in the event of winding up.

(xxi) To distribute as dividend or bonus among the member or to place to reserve or
otherwise to apply, as the Company may, from time to time, determine any money
received by way of premium on debentures issued at a premium by the Company and
any money received in respect of forfeited shares, money arising from the sale by the
Company of forfeited shares subject to the provisions of Sec. 52 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(xxii) To employ agents or experts to investigate and examine into the conditions, prospects
value, character and circumstances of any business concerns and undertakings and
generally of any assets properties or rights which the Company purpose to acquire.

(xxiii) To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, or any other such special funds whether for
depreciation, repairing, improving, research, extending or maintaining any of the
properties of the Company or for any other such purpose conducive to the interest of
the Company.
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(xxv)

{xxvi)

(xxvii)

(xxviii)

(xxix)

(xxx)

(xxxi)

Subject to the provisions of Section 179 to 183 of Companies Act, 2013, to subscribe
contribute, gift or money, rights or assets for any national educational, religious,
charitable, scientific, public, general or usual objects or to make gifts or such other
assets to any institutions, clubs, societies, associations, frusts, scientific research
associations, funds, universities, college or any individual, body of individuals or bodies
corporate.

To establish and maintain or procure the establishment and maintenance of any
contributory or non-contributory pension or superannuation, provident or gratuity funds
for the benefit of and give of procure the giving of the gratuities pensions, allowances,
bonuses or emoluments of any persons who are or were at any time in the employment
or service of the company or any company which is a subsidiary of the Company or is
allied to or associated with the Company or with any such subsidiary company or who
are or were at any time Directors or officers of the Company or any other company as
aforesaid and the wives, widows, families and dependents of any such persons and
also to establish and subsidise and subscribe to any institutions, associations, club or
funds calculated to be for the benefit of or advance aforesaid and make payments to
any such persons as aforesaid and to do any of the matters aforesaid, either alone or in
conjunction with any such other company as aforesaid.

To establish, for any of the main objects of the Company, branches or to establish any
firm or firms at places in or outside India as the Company may deem expedient.

To pay for any property or rights acquired by or for any services rendered to the
Company and in particular to remunerate any person, firm or company introducing
business to the company either in cash or fully or partly-paid up shares with or without
preferred or deferred rights in respect of dividend or repayment of capital or otherwise
or by any securities which the company has power to issue or by the grant of any rights
or options or partly in one mode and partly in another and generally on such terms as
the company may determine.

To pay out of the funds of the company all costs, charges and expenses of and
incidental to the formation and registration of the company and any company promoted
by the company and also all costs, charges, duties, impositions and expenses of and
incidental to the acquisition by the company of any property or assets.

To send out to foreign countries, its director, employees or any other person or persons
for investigation possibilities of main business or trade procuring and buying any
machinery or establishing trade and business connections or for promoting the interests
of the company and to pay all expenses incurred in the connection.

To compensate for loss of office of any Managing Director or Directors or other officers
of the Company within the limitations prescribed under the Companies Actor such other
statute or rule having the force of law and to make payments to any person whose
office of employment or duties may be determined by virtue of any transaction in which
the Company is engaged.

To agree to refer to arbitration any dispute, present or future between the Company
and any other company, firm, individual or any other body and to submit the same to
arbitration in India or abroad either in accordance with Indian or any foreign system of
law.
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(xxxii) To appoint agents, sub-agents, dealers, managers canvassers, sales, representatives
or salesmen for transacting all or any kind of the main business of which this Company
is authorised to carry on and to constitute agencies of the Company in India or in any
other country and establish depots and agencies in different parts of the world.

(xxxiii) To enter into, make and perform contracts and arrangements of every kind and
description for any lawful purpose with any person, firm, association, corporate body,
municipality, body politic, territory, province, state, government or colony or
dependency thereof, without limit as to amount, and to obtain from any government or
authority any rights, privileges, contracts and concessions which the Company may
deem desirable to obtain, and to carry out, exercise or comply with any such
arrangements, rights, privileges, contracts and concessions

4, The Liability of the member(s) is limited, and this liability is limited to the amount unpaid,
if any, on the shares held by them.

5. The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 52,50,00,000 (Rupees Fifty-Two
Crores and Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 5,01,32,889 (Five Crore One Lakh Thirty-Two
Thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty-Nine) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten) each;
8,67,111 (Eight Lakhs Sixty-Seven Thousand One Hundred and Eleven) Class A1 Equity
shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) and 15,00,000 (Fifteen Lakh) Redeemable Preference
shares of Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten Only) each.”.!

We the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a
Company in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association and we respectively agree to take the number of
shares in the Capital of the Company set opposite to our respective names:

Subscriber Details

S. No| Name, Address, Description | DIN/PAN/ No. of
And Occupation Passport Shares DSC Dated
Number Taken

1 The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 40,000,000 was increased to INR 48,671,110 by
obtaining shareholder’s approval vide shareholder's resolution dated October 26, 2018.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 48,671,110 was increased to INR 10,00,00,000 by
obtaining shareholder’s approval vide shareholder's resolution dated January 03, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 10,00,00,000 was increased to INR 20,00,00,000 by
obtaining shareholder’s approval vide shareholder's resolution dated February 14, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 20,00,00,000 was increased to INR 22,00,00,000 by
obtaining shareholder’s approval vide shareholder's resolution dated July 03, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 22,00,00,000 was increased fo INR 23,50,00,000 by
obtaining shareholder’s approval vide shareholder’s resolution dated July 09, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 23,50,00,000 was increased fo INR 38,00,00,000 by
obtaining shareholder's approval vide shareholder's resolution dated September 06, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 38,00,00,000 was reclassified and increased to INR
48,00,00,000 by obtaining shareholder's approval vide shareholder’s resolution dated December 13, 2019.
The Authorised Share Capital of the Company of INR 48,00,00,000 was increased to INR 52,50,00,000
pursuant fo the confirmation on the Scheme of amalgamation vide order of the Regional Director, Northem
Region dated January 27, 2021.
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AADPB4434G 21/09/18
1. Suniti Kumar Bhat 9999 Equity Sd/-
Address 7, Wentworth Way,
Ascot  Berkshire  Ascot
Berkshire, united Kingdom
SL58HH
Occupation: Business
Abhishek Prabhasha Pati AMGPP5706Q 21/09/18
2, Address: 1402, Tower-3, 1 Equity Sd/-
Orchid Petals, Sohna Road,
Sector-49, Behind Omaxe
Mall, Gurgaon, Haryana-
122018
Occupation : Business
Total Shares Taken 10,000 | Equity
Signed before Me
Name Address, Description DIN/PAN/
and Occupation Passport DSC Dated
Number/
Membership
Number
Ravi Sharma Practicing Company
FCS S/IO Sh. B D | Secretary 4468 Sd/- 21/09/18
Sharma Add: D-63, JFF Complex,
Jhandewalan, New Delhi-
110055
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This print of the Articles of Association incorporates the amendments changes passed at the Extraordinary
General Meeting of the Company held on December 13, 2019.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
(Company limited by shares - registered under the Companies Act, 2013)
Preliminary

1. The regulations contained in Table “F” in the Schedule | to the Companies Act, 2013, shall apply
to the Company, except in as far as otherwise expressly incorporated hereinafter or anything
contained herein is contrary thereto.

Private Company

2. The Company is a private company within the meaning of section 2(68) of the Companies Act,
2013 having a minimum paid-up share capital as may be prescribed, and accordingly it:-

(a) restricts the right to transfer its shares;
(b) limits the number of its members to 200 (two hundred).

provided that where 2 (two) or more persons hold 1 (one) or more share(s) in the Company
jointly, they shall, for the purposes of these Articles, be treated as a single member:

Provided further that—
() persons who are in the employment of the Company; and
(i) persons who, having been formerly in the employment of the Company, were

members of the Company while in that employment and have continued to be
members after the employment ceased,

shall not be included in the number of members; and
(©) prohibits any invitation to the public to subscribe for any securities of the Company.
Interpretation

3. In these Articles, the following capitalized words and expressions, unless inconsistent with the
context, shall bear the meanings assigned hereto:

(a) “Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013;
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(b) “Affiliate” means, in relation to a person, (a) a subsidiary or holding company of that
person, a subsidiary of any such holding company, or any other person directly or indirectly
controlling or controlled by, or who is directly or indirectly under common control with, such
person; and (b) any account, fund, vehicle or investment portfolio established and
controlled by such person or an Affiliate (within the meaning of sub-section (a) of this
definition) thereof or for which such person or an Affiliate thereof acts as sponsor,
investment adviser or manager or with respect to which such person or an Affiliate thereof
exercises discretionary control thereover, provided that no shareholder or its Affiliates
(other than the company or any of its subsidiaries) shall be considered Affiliates of any
other shareholder or its Affiliates (other than the company or any of its subsidiaries) solely
by virtue of their ownership or control of the company or any of its subsidiaries and provided
further that none of (i) Canyon Partners LLC, Canyon Capital Advisors LLC, Canyon
Partners Real Estate LLC, Canyon CLO Advisors LLC or any subsidiary of the foregoing,
or any of their (or such subsidiary's) respective managed funds or accounts or portfolio
companies or (ii) any subsidiary of the foregoing, or any of their (or such subsidiary’s)
respective managed funds or accounts or portfolio companies shall in each case be
deemed to be an Affiliate of the majority Investor shareholder;

(c) "Annual Budget" shall mean a detailed financial plan prepared by the Company which
provides account head wise details of projected income, expenditure (including operating
and capital expenditure) and earnings of the Company, as approved by the Board and the

Investor;

(d) “Articles” means these articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to
time;

(e) “‘Board” shall mean the board of directors of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries;

)] "Business Plan" means the business plan prepared in respect of the Company, which
includes details of the Company's operations, financials, capital expenditure, and other
relevant targets;

() “Class A1 Equity Shares" shall mean class A1 equity shares of the Company of the face
value of INR 10 each fully paid-up and having the characteristics set out in Article 10A;

(h) “Control", “Controlling” or “Controlled” as to any Person shall mean the possession,
directly or indirectly, of the operational or practical power to direct or cause the direction of
the management and policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting
securities or partnership interests, by contract or otherwise;

(i) “Company” means Antelopus Energy Private Limited;

)] “Debt Facility” means a senior secured term loan facility in a principal amount of no less
than U.S. $100,000,000 (United States Dollars One Hundred Million), or such other amount
approved by the Investor in writing;

(k) “Director’ means a director of the Company;

) "Equity Share(s)" shall mean the common equity shares of the Company having face value
of INR 10 each fully paid-up, and which shall not include the Class A1 Equity Shares;
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(m) “Founder(s)” shall mean Siva Kumar Pothepalli, Suniti Kumar Bhat & Abhishek Prabhasha Pati;

(n) “Investor’ shall mean Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands;

(0) “Person” shall mean any natural person, limited or unlimited liability company, corporation,
‘general partnership, limited partnership, proprietorship, trust, union, association, court,
tribunal, agency, government, ministry, department, commission, self-regulatory
organisation, arbitrator, board, or other entity, enterprise, authority, or business
organization;

()] “Reserved Matters” means any matter which is not specifically contemplated in, or is not
in accordance with, the Business Plan and Annual Budget approved by the board of
directors of the Investor;

(@) “the seal” means the common seal of the Company;

)] “Shareholder” or “‘member” shall mean any Person who holds any shares or securities of
the Company and whose name is entered in the register of members of the Company; and

(s) “Subsidiary” shall have the meaning set out in the Act.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear
the same meaning as in the Act or any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at which
these Articles become binding on the Company.

Share capital and variation of rights

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Atrticles, including the Reserved Matters, the shares
in the capital of the Company and other securities shall be under the control of the Directors who
may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to such persons, in such proportion
and on such terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par and at such time as they may
from time to time think fit. Any offer of further shares or other securities shall be deemed to include
a right, exercisable by the person to whom the shares or other securities are offered, to renounce
the shares or other securities offered to him in favour of any other person.

(i) Every person whose name is entered as a member in the register of members shall be entitled
to receive within two months after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum
or after allotment or within one month after the application for the registration of transfer or
transmission or within such other period as the conditions of issue shall be provided, --

(a) one certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or

(b) several certificates, each for one or more of his shares, upon payment of twenty
rupees for each certificate after the first.

(i) Every certificate shall be under the seal and shall specify the shares to which it relates and
the amount paid-up thereon. Provided that in case the Company has a common seal it shall
be affixed in the presence of the persons required to sign the certificate.
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(iii) In respect of any share or shares held jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be
bound to issue more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of
several joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to all such holders.

(iv) If any share certificate be worn out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be ho further space
on the back for endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the
Company, a new certificate may be issued in lieu thereof, and if any certificate is lost or
destroyed then upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of the Company and on execution of
such indemnity as the Company deem adequate, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be
given. Every certificate under this Article shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for
each certificate.

V) The provisions of this Article 5 shall mutatis mutandis apply to debentures or other
securities of the Company.

Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding any
share/security upon any trust, and the Company shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way
to recognise (even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or partial interest
in any share/security, or any interest in any fractional part of a share/security, or (except only as by
these Articles or by law otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any share/security except
an absolute right to the entirety thereof in the registered holder of such share/security.

(i) The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section
(6) of section 40, provided that the rate per cent or the amount of the commission paid or
agreed to be paid shall be disclosed in the manner required by that section and rules made
thereunder.

(i) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount prescribed in
rules made under sub-section (6) of section 40 of the Act.

(iii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly
paid shares or partly in the one way and partly in the other.

0] The Company shall have power to issue any part of its capital, original or increased, with or
without any preferential rights, privileges, conditions or advantages over or as compared
with any shares/securities previously issued or to be thereafter issued, whether in respect
of dividend or repayment of capital or both and whether with any special rights of votingor
without any right of voting and generally on such terms as the Company may, from timeto
time determine, nevertheless that in the event of the share capital of the Company
(including the original capital) being or becoming divided into shares/securities of different
classes, the rights or privileges attached to any class, may be affected, altered, modified or
dealt with only in accordance with the provisions in that behalf contained in these Articles, the
Act and other applicable laws.

(i) The Company shall have the power to increase or reduce the capital in accordance with
these Articles and legislative provisions for the time being in force in that behalf with the
powers to divide the share capital, whether original, increased or decreased into several
classes of shares/securities and attach thereto respectively such ordinary, preferential or
special rights and conditions in such a manner as are provided in these Articles.
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The provisions of sections 43 and 47 of the Act shall not be applicable to the Company. The
Company would, therefore, be free to determine the nature, class, characteristics, rights and
privileges of the shares and securities it proposes to offer, issue and allet, including
shares/securities with differential rights as to voting, dividend, repayment or otherwise.

The Company may issue redeemable preference shares ("RPS") to the Founders on the terms
set out in Article 11 below, subject to the approval of the members by way of a special resolution.

The Class A1 Equity Shares shall have the same rights as, and shall rank pari passu with, the
Equity Shares of the Company.

Terms of RPS

The rights attached to such RPS are as follows:

(®

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(")

(9)

Face Value

Rs. 10 (Rupees Ten only) each.

Form

Each RPS shall be a redeemable preference share denominated in Rupees. A RPS certificate will
be issued to each RPS shareholder in respect of its registered holdings of RPS. Each RPS will be
serially numbered with an identifying number which will be recorded on the relevant certificate and
in the register of shareholders which the Company will keep at its registered office.

Transferability

The transferability of the RPS shall be subject to the prior approval from the Investor and the
Company.

Amendments

Subject to the Act, the rights, privileges and conditions attached to a RPS may not be varied,
modified or abrogated in any manner whatsoever without the prior written consent of the Investor
and the holders of the RPS.

Term

The term of the RPS shall be 20 (twenty) years from the date of their issuance unless redeemed
as per Article 11(h) below.

Voting and General Meetings
The RPS shareholder(s) shall, by virtue of, or in respect of their holdings of the RPS, have the right
to receive notice of all general meetings of the Company but shall not have the right to attend,

speak and vote at any general meeting of the Company. The RPS are deemed to be non-voting
shares.

Dividend

The Company shall pay dividend on the RPS, on a cumulative basis, at the rate of 0.001% (zero
point zero zero one percent) per annum on the face value of the RPS (“Preferred Dividend”).
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In the event that the Company does not possess cash balances which are sufficient io pay the
Preferred Dividend, such amount that remains unpaid shall be carried forward until the year in
which the Company generates sufficient cash balances. Accordingly, such Preferred Dividend shall
accrue but shall not become due or payable. The Company'’s obligations with respect to payment
of Preferred Dividend shall be on a ‘payable as able’ basis and non-payment of Preferred Dividend
shall not amount to a default.

The accrued Preferred Dividend shall be paid as and when approved by the Board and as agreed
in writing between the holders of the RPS and the Investor. In addition to the Preferred Dividend,
the Company may, with the consent of the Investor, pay a higher amount of dividend on the RPS
at any time.

Redemption

The RPS may be redeemed, in the manner provided below, at the face value of the RPS or along
with such amount of premium as may be approved by the Board, along with the consent of the
Investor.

The right of the Company to redeem any RPS is hereinafter called the Redemption Right. Subject
to and upon compliance with the provisions of this condition, the Redemption Right attaching to
any RPS may be exercised, at the option of the Company.

The Company shall give at least 5 (five) days’ notice in writing to the RPS shareholder(s), prior to
exercising the Redemption Right specifying the RPS to be redeemed (the “Relevant Shares") and
naming the place at which the certificates for the Relevant Shares are to be presented for
redemption and the place at which the redemption monies are to be paid. A notice served under
this clause shall, once served, not be capable of being revoked unless both the Company and the
holders of the RPS agree to such revocation.

On the exercise of the Redemption Right, the holders of the RPS shall be bound to redeem the
Relevant Shares and the holders of the Relevant Shares shall, in the event the Relevant Shares
are in physical form, be bound to deliver to the Company at the place named in the notice, the
certificate (or an indemnity in lieu thereof in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Company) for
their Relevant Shares and, upon such delivery the Company shall pay to the holder of the Relevant
Shares the redemption monies payable to him calculated in accordance with the last paragraph of
this Article 11(h) below in respect of such redemption.

The Company shall cancel the RPS shareholder’s certificate relating to the Relevant Shares.

If any RPS shareholder of Relevant Shares shall fail or refuse, to deliver up the certificate for his
Relevant Shares the Company may retain the redemption monies until delivery of such certificate.
There shall be paid on each Relevant Share the face value of the RPS.

It is hereby clarified that the provisions of Section 43 of the Act and the rules thereunder
shall not be applicable to the Company.

Lien

(i) The Company shall have a first and paramount lien —

a. on every share/security (not being fully paid), for all monies (whether presently
payable or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share; and
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b. on all shares/securities (not being fully paid) standing registered in the name of a
single person, for all monies presently payable by him or his estate to the Company:

Provided that the Board may at any time declare any share/security to be whaolly or in part
exempt from the provisions of this clause.

(i) The Company's lien, if any, on a share/security shall extend to all dividends payable
and bonuses declared from time to time in respect of such shares/securities.

The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks fit, the shares/securities on which the
Company has a lien:

Provided that no sale shall be made —
a. unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or

b. until the expiration of fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of
such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, has been
given to the registered holder for the time being of the share/security or the person entitled
thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.

Subject to the terms of these Articles (including the Reserved Matters):

(i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some person to transfer the
shares/securities sold to the purchaser thereof;

(i) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares/securities comprised in any
such transfer; and

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor
shall his title to the shares/securities be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the
proceedings in reference to the sale.

(i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and applied in payment of such
part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.

(i) The residue, if any, shall, subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed
upon the shares/securities before the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the
shares/securities at the date of the sale.
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(i)

(iii

Calls on shares

The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members in respect of any monies
unpaid on their shares (whether on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way
of premium) and not by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed times:

Provided that no call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal value of the share or be
payable at less than one month from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding
call.

Each member shall, subject to receiving at least fourteen days’ notice specifying the time
or times and place of payment, pay to the Company, at the time or times and place so
specified, the amount called on his shares.

A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board.

17. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board authorizing the
call was passed and may be required to be paid by instalments.

18. The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respectthereof.

19. 0]

(i)
20. (i)

(ii)

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for payment
thereof, the person from whom the sum is due shall pay interest thereon from the day
appointed for payment thereof to the time of actual payment at ten per cent per annum or
at such lower rate, if any, as the Board may determine.

The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such interest wholly or in part.

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share becomes payable on allotment or at any
fixed date, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium,
shall, for the purposes of these Articles, be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on
the date on which by the terms of issue such sum becomes payable.

In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these Articles as fo
payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had
become payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

21. The Board —

a.

may, if it thinks fit, receive from any member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the
monies uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and

upon all or any of the monies so advanced, may (until the same would, but for such advance,
become presently payable) pay interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the Company in
general meeting shall otherwise direct, twelve per cent per annum, as may be agreed upon
between the Board and the member paying the sum in advance.

(35
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Transfer of shares

22, None of the shares/securities held by the Founders shall be Transferred (either directly or
indirectly) without the consent of the Investor and such transfer shall be at nil/nominal
consideration/ fair market value, as the case may be, subject to the applicable law. Any
Transfer in breach of these Atrticles shall be null and void, and shall not be binding on the
Company. Without prejudice to the aforesaid, the Shareholders of the Company agree and
undertake that they will not in any manner whatsoever circumvent, attempt to circumvent,
avoid or by-pass the provisions of this Article 22. For the purpose of these Articles,
"Transfer" shall mean to part with possession, transfer, sell, assign, pledge, hypothecate,
create a security interest in or lien on, place in trust (voting or otherwise), transfer by
operation of law or in any other way subject to any encumbrance or dispose of, whether or
not voluntarily and shall include executing any agreements or entering into any
arrangements for any of the aforesaid.

23. () The instrument of transfer of any share or other security in the Company shall be executed
by or on behalf of both the transferor and transferee.

(i) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share/security until the name of the
transferee is entered in the register of members/ register of other security holders in respect
thereof.

24. The Board may, subject to the right of appeal conferred by section 58 decline to register --

a. the transfer of a share/security, not being a fully paid share/security, to a person of whom they
do not approve; or

b. any transfer of shares/securities on which the Company has a lien.

25, The Board may decline to recognise any instrument of transfer unless --

a. the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of
section 56;
b. the instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the shares/securities to which it

relates, and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the
transferor to make the transfer; and

c. the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of shares/securities.

26. On giving not less than seven days' previous notice in accordance with section 91 of the Act and rules
made thereunder, the registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods
as the Board may from time to time determine:

Provided that such registration shall not be suspended for more than thirty days at any one time or
for more than forty-five days in the aggregate in any year.

27. The Investor shall be entitled to deal with, dispose of and/or Transfer the Equity Share(s) and/or Class
A1 Equity Shares held by it, together with its rights under these Articles. Such Transfer shall be
undertaken by the Investor in its sole and absolute discretion and the Investor shall be entitled to assign
any or all of rights pertaining to any securities held by it, along with a transfer of the securities held by it
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in terms of this Article 27, without the prior consent of the other shareholders.
Transmission of shares

28. (i) On the death of a member or holder, the survivor or survivors where the member was a
joint holder, and his nominee or nominees or legal representatives where he was a sole
holder, shall be the only persons recognised by the Company as having any title to his
interest in the shares/securities.

(i) Nothing in clause (i) shall release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in
respect of any share/security which had been jointly held by him with other persons.

20. () Any person becoming entitled to a share/security in consequence of the death or
insolvency of a member may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to
time properly be required by the Board and subject as hereinafter provided, elect, either --

a. to be registered himself as holder of the share/security; or

b. to make such transfer of the share/security as the deceased or insolvent member
could have made.

(i) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration as it
would have had, if the deceased or insolvent member or holder had transferred the
share/security before his death or insolvency.

30. (i) If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered as holder of the share/security
himself, he shall deliver or send to the Company a notice in writing signed by him stating
that he so elects.

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the share/security, he shall testify his election
by executing a transfer of the share/security.

(ii) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right to transfer
and the registration of transfers of shares/securities shall be applicable to any such notice
or transfer as aforesaid as if the death or insolvency of the member had not occurred and
the notice or transfer were a transfer signed by that member.

31. A person becoming entitled to a share/security by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder shall
be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the
registered holder of the share/security, except that he shall not, before being registered as a member
or holder in respect of the share/security, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred in
relation to meetings of the Company:

Provided that the Board may, at any time, give notice requiring any such person to elect either to be
registered himself or to transfer the share/security, and if the notice is not complied with within ninety
days, the Board may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in
respect of the share/security, until the requirements of the notice have been complied with.

Page 10 of 23

Afnaan sjgdigui (Ad\locate)

Certified True Copy



32

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Forfejture of shares

If a member or holder of securities fails to pay any call, or instalment of a call, on the day appointed for
payment thereof, the Board may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or
instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment
as is unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued.

The notice aforesaid shall --

a. name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of fourteen days from the date of service
of the notice) on or before which the payment required by the notice is to be made; and

b. state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares/securities in
respect of which the call was made shall be liable to be forfeited.

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share/security in respect
of which the notice has been given may, at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice
has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect.

(i) A forfeited share/security may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such
manner as the Board thinks fit.

(i) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on
such terms as it thinks fit.

(i) A person whose shares/securities have been forfeited shall cease to be a member or holder
in respect of the forfeited shares/securities, but shall, notwithstanding the forfeiture, remain
liable to pay to the Company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture, were presently
payable by him to the Company in respect of the shares/securities.

(i) The liability of such person shall cease if and when the Company shall have received
payment in full of all such monies in respect of the shares/securities.

(0 A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a director, the manager or the
secretary, of the Company, and that a share/security in the Company has been duly
forfeited on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein
stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share/security;

(i) The Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share/security on any
sale or disposal thereof and may execute a transfer of the share/security in favour of the
person to whom the share/security is sold or disposed of;

(iii) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the share/security; and

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any,
nor shall his title to the share/security be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the
proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale or dispasal of the share/security.
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38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

The provisions of these Articles as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of non-payment of any sum
which, by the terms of issue of a share/security, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account
of the nominal value of the share/security or by way of premium, as if the same had been payable by
virtue of a call duly made and notified.

Alteration of capital

The Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital by such sum,
to be divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution.

Subject to the provisions of section 61, the Company may, by ordinary resolution and subject to Article
88 (Reserved Matters), --

a. consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing
shares;
b. convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-

up shares of any denomination;

C. sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixedby the
memorandum; and

d. cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not beentaken or
agreed to be taken by any person.

Where shares are converted into stock, --

a. the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and
subject to the same regulations under which, the shares from which the stock arose might
before the conversion have been transferred, or as near thereto as circumstances admit:

Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock
transferable, so, however, that such minimum shall not exceed the nominal amount of the
shares from which the stock arose,

b. the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights,
privileges and advantages as regards dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and other
matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock arose; but no such privilege or
advantage (except participation in the dividends and profits of the Company and in the assets
on winding up) shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing in shares,
have conferred that privilege or advantage; and

c. such of the regulations of the Company as are applicable to paid-up shares shall apply to stock
and the words “share” and "shareholder” in those regulations shall include “stock” and "stock-
holder” respectively.

Subject to the Reserved Matters, the Company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and
with, and subject to, any incident authorised and consent required by law, --
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43.

44,

a.
b.

C.

()

(ii)

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

its share capital;
any capital redemption reserve account; or

any share premium account.

Capitalisation of profits

The Company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board and subject
to Article 88 (Reserved Matters), resolve --

a. that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing
to the credit of any of the Company's reserve accounts, or to the credit of the, profit
and loss account, or otherwise available for distribution; and

b. that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in
clause (i) amongst the members who would have been entifled thereto, if
distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions.

The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision
contained in clause (iii), either in or towards —

(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on shares/securities held by such
members respectively;

(b) paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to be allotted and distributed,
credited as fully paid-up, to and amongst such members in the proportions
aforesaid;

{c) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (a) and partly in that specified in sub-
clause (b);

(d) a securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for
the purposes of this Article, be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be
issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares;

The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the Company in pursuance of this
Article.

Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Board shall --

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be
capitalised thereby, and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares if any; and

(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto.

The Board shall have, and subject to Article 88 (Reserved Maiters), power --
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45.

46.

47.

48.

49,

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in
cash or otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of shares becoming distributable in
fractions;

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into
an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them respectively,
credited as fully paid-up, of any further shares to which they may be entitled upon
such capitalisation, or as the case may require, for the payment by the Company
on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of profits
resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining
unpaid on their existing shares; and

(iii) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on such members.
Buy-back of shares

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles but subject to the provisions of sections 68 to
70 and any other applicable provision of the Act or any other law for the time being in force, the
Company may purchase its own shares (including but not limited to the Class A1 Equity Shares)
or other specified securities at a nominal price determined by the Board, with the consent of the
Investor.

General meetings

All general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called extraordinary general
meetings.

i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting.

(i) If at any time directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not
within India, any director or any two members of the Company may call an extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which such a meeting
may be called by the Board.

Proceedings at general meetings

(i) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is
present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business.

(i) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as
provided in section 103.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Investor shall have the right to
convene a general meeting to transact any Reserved Matter by issuing a written notice to
the other members.

Quorum for all general meetings, subject to meeting the minimum quorum requirement prescribed
under applicable law, shall require the presence of at least 1 (one) representative of the Investor.
No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless there
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50.

51.

52.

53.

54,

55.

is a valid quorum, both at the time when the meeting is called to order and throughout the meeting.
If the quorum is not present within 80 (ninety) minutes of the scheduled time of the meeting dueto
the absence of the representative(s) of the Investor, or if during the meeting there is no longer a
quorum due to the absence of the representative of the Investor, the meeting shall stand adjourned
by 7 (seven) days at the same venue and time (“Adjourned Shareholder Meeting"). At the
Adjourned Shareholder Meeting, subject to applicable Law, the members present shall constitute
quorum for the meeting and shall be entitled to vote on all matters covered in the notice for the original
meeting and all matters passed at such Adjourned Shareholder Meetings shall bind the Company,
in the same manner as if the resolutions were passed at the original general meeting; provided that
no matter in relation to a Reserved Matter (even if included in the agenda or notice convening the
original meeting) shall be discussed or passed or decided upon unless approved in accordance
with Article 88 (Reserved Matters).

If applicable law requires the Company to issue a fresh notice and agenda for the Adjourned
Shareholder Meeting, the shareholders shall cause the Company and the Company shall issue a
fresh notice including the identical items as set out in the agenda for the original meeting.

The chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as Chairperson at every general meeting ofthe
Company.

If there is no such Chairperson, or if he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed
for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the directors present
shall elect one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

If at any meeting no director is willing to act as Chairperson or if no director is present within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose one
of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

Adjournment of meeting

(i) The Chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall,
if so directed by the meeting, adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place to place.

(i) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left
unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment took place.

(iii) When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall
be given as in the case of an original meeting.

(iv) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be necessary to
give any notice of an adjournment or of the business to be transacted at an adjourned
meeting.

Voting rights
Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of shares, -

(@) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one vote; and
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56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

1473

(b) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up
equity share capital of the Company.

A member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108
of the Act and shall vote only once.

(iy Inthe case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

(i) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in
the register of members.

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having
jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or other
legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy.

Any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be proceeded with,
pending the taking of the poll.

No member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other sums presently
payable by him in respect of shares in the Company have been paid.

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed
at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes.

(i) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the Chairperson of the meeting,
whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

Proxy

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under which
it is signed or a notarised copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting
at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less
than 24 hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument of
proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under section
105 of the Act.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding
the previous death or insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under
which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of which the proxy isgiven:
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65.

66.

68.

60.

70.

71.

Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have been
received by the Company at its office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the proxy is used.

Board of Directors

The Board shall consist of a minimum of 2 (two) Directors, which shall at all imes be nominated by
the Investor (the “Investor Director(s)"). Committees of the Board and the board of directors of any
Subsidiary (including committees thereof) shall be constituted in the same manner such that
nominees of the Investor are appointed, as set out in this Article, in relation to the Board.

The following are the first directors of the Company:-

(a) Suniti Kumar Bhat; and
(b) Abhishek Prabhasha Pati.

(i The remuneration of the directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be
deemed to accrue from day-to-day.

(i) In addition to the remuneration payable fo them in pursuance of the Act, the directors may
be paid all reasonable travelling, hotel and other expenses properly incurred by them —

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board or any committee thereofor
general meetings of the Company; or

(b) in connection with the business of the Company.

The Board may pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registering the Company.

The Company may exercise the powers conferred on it by section 88 of the Act, with regard tothe
keeping of a foreign register; and the Board may (subject to the provisions of that section) make
and vary such regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any such register.

The Investor shall be entitled, by notice in writing to the Company, atits registered office to appoint,
remove or replace its nominee Directors. In the event of a casual vacancy arising on account of the
resignation of an Investor Director, or the office of the Director becoming vacant for any reason,
the Investor shall be entitled to fill such vacancy. The shareholders shall exercise all their rights
and powers in support of the appointment or removal or replacement of such person forthwith (and
in any event within 7 (seven) Business Days of such nomination or at the next Board meeting,
whichever is earlier) as a Director and unless the Investor changes or withdraws such nomination,
such person shall be elected as a Director at the next general meeting of the Company.
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72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

The Investor (through its nominee Directors) shall be entitled, in accordance with the Act, to
nominate an alternate in its place, and the Board shall, on receipt of a notice in this regard, appoint
such nominated person as an alternate Director. The Directors shall also be entitled to remove and
replace their nominated alternate Director and nominate another in his place.

An alternate Director shall be entitled to receive notice of all meetings of the Board, to attend and
vote at any such meeting at which the Director for whom he acts as an alternate is not personally
present, to exercise and discharge all the functions, powers and duties of his appointer as a
Director.

An alternate Director shall, in addition to any ground under the Act on which he vacates his office,
automatically vacate his office as an alternate Director if the Director who appointed him ceases to
be a Director.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments,
and all receipts for monies paid to the Company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or
otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person and in such manner as the Board shall
from time to time by resolution determine.

Every director present at any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof shall sign his name
in a book to be kept for that purpose.

(i) Subject to the provisions of section 149 of the Act and Article 88 (Reserved Matters), the
Board shall have power at any time, and from time to time, to appoint a person as an
additional director, provided the number of the directors and additional directors together
shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the Board by the Act.

(i) Such person shall hold office only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the
Company but shall be eligible for appointment by the Company as a director at that meeting
subject to the provisions of the Act.

Proceedings of the Board

(i) The Board of Directors may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise
regulate its meetings, as it thinks fit.

(i) A director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a director shall, at any
time, summon a meeting of the Board.

(i) Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of the
Board shall be decided by a majority of votes other than matters relating to Reserved
Matters, which shall be decided upon only in accordance with Article 88 (Reserved
Matters).

(i) In case of an equality of voies in respect of any resolution not being a Reserved Matter,
the Chairperson of the Board, if any, shall not have a second or casting vote.
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83.

84.

85.

86.

87.
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The presence of the at least 1 (one) Investor Director shall be required to constitute quorum for any
meeting of the Board or any committee thereof, unless waived by the concerned Directors. The
continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if and so long as their
number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing
directors or director may act for the purpose of increasing the number of directors to that fixed for
the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the Company, but for no other purpose.

(i) The Board may elect a Chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he
is to hold office.

(i) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within
five minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the directors present may
choose one of their number to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to
committees consisting of such member or members of its body as it thinks fit.

(i) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any
regulations that may be imposed on it by the Board.

(i A committee may elect a Chairperson of its meetings.

(i) If no such Chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the Chairperson is not present within
five minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present may
choase one of their members to be Chairperson of the meeting.

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit.

(i) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee (other than Reserved Matters which shall
be decided in the manner set out in Article 88 (Reserved Matters)) shall be determined by
a majority of votes of the members present, and in case of an equality of votes, the
Chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

All acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person acting as a
director, shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in
the appointment of any one or more of such directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that
they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such director or such person had been
duly appointed and was qualified to be a director.

Save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed by all the members
of the Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of
the Board or committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the
Board or committee, duly convened and held.

It is clarified that even in case of a circular resolution, the requirements of Article 88 (Reserved
Matters) shall be applicable.

Reserved Matters
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No action or decision with respect to a Reserved Matter, and no Reserved Matter shall be included
in the agenda item of any meeting of the Board or its committee or any meeting of the shareholders
of the Company and no resolution, shall be passed or decided upon at a meeting of the any meeting
of the Board or its committee or shareholders of the Company, and no action or decision shall be
taken with respect to any Reserved Matter, unless, an affirmative written consent of the Investor is
first obtained with respect to such Reserved Matter, or unless such Reserved Matterhas already
been approved by the board of directors, investment committee and/or shareholders (as applicable)
of the Investor. It is hereby clarified that any Reserved Matter which has been duly approved by the
board or directors, investment committee and/or shareholders (as applicable) of the Investor, shall
not require any additional written consent of the Investor under this Article 88 (Reserved Matters).

The Company shall take all necessary steps (including by causing the relevant Subsidiary to
convene a meeting of its directors or shareholders, as the case may be) to cause the board of
directors of a Subsidiary or the shareholders of a Subsidiary (as the case may be) to approve and
adopt, within a reasonable time, any and all matters in relation to such Subsidiary that have been
approved by the Board or the shareholders of the Company (including Reserved Matters which
have been approved in accordance with Article 88 (Reserved Matters)) and in compliance with the
terms of these Articles. The shareholders shall render necessary co-operation for enabling the
Company to perform its obligations under this Article 89.

Any action taken by the Board or its committee or any shareholder in relation to a Reserved Matter
which has not been first approved in accordance with the above shall be in violation of these
Articles.

With respect to the Reserved Matters, the Investor may, upon receipt of a written request seeking
its consent with respect to any Reserved Matter, be entitled to seek all information, documents and
clarifications from the Company, as may be relevant to such matter.

Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer

Subject to the provisions of the Act, --

(@) A chief executive officer, manager, Company secretary or chief financial officer may be
appointed by the Board, subject to Article 88 (Reserved Matters), for such term, at such
remuneration and upon such conditions as it may think fit; and any chief executive officer,
manager, company secretary or chief financial officer so appointed may be removed by
means of a resolution of the Board;

(i) A director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or
chief financial officer.

A provision of the Act or these Articles requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a director
and chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer shall not be
satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both as director and as, or in place of,
chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer.

The Seal

(i) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the seal.
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(i) The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a
resolution of the Board or of a committee of the Board authorised by it in that behalf, and
except in the presence of at least two directors and of the secretary or such other person
as the Board may appoint for the purpose; and those two directors and the secretary or
other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the seal of the Company is so
affixed in their presence.

Dividends and Reserve

The Company, subject to Article 88 (Reserved Matters), in general meeting may declare dividends,
but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

Subject to the provisions of section 123 of the Act and these Atrticles, the Board may from time to
time pay to the members such interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the

Company.

() The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the
Company such sums as it thinks fit as a reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion
of the Board, be applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may be
properly applied, including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalizing dividends;
and pending such application, may, at the like discretion, either be employed in the
business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other than shares of the
Company) as the Board may, from time to time, thinks fit.

(i) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide,
without setting them aside as a reserve.

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends,
all dividends shall be declared and paid according to the amounts paid or credited as paid
on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nathing is paid
upon any of the shares in the Company, dividends may be declared and paid accordingto
the amounts of the shares.

(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the
purposes of this Article as paid on the share.

iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited
as paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the period in respect of which the
dividend is paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for dividend
as from a particular date such share shall rank for dividend accordingly.

The Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, if any,
presently payable by such member to the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to
the shares of the Company.

(i) Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by
cheque or warrant sent through the post directed to the registered address of the holder or,
in the case of joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint holders whois
first named on the register of members, or to such person and to such address as the
holder or joint holders may in writing direct.
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(i) Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whomit
is sent.

Any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any dividends,
bonuses or other monies payable in respect of such share.

Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share
therein in the manner mentioned in the Act.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.
Accounts

0] The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times
and places and under what conditions or regulations, the accounts and books of the
Company, or any of them, shall be open to the inspection of members not being directors.

(i) No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or bookor
document of the Company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the
Company in general meeting.

Indemnity

Every officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any
liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment
is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by the court or
the Tribunal.

Others

Borrowing & Other Powers

Subiject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to Article 88 (Reserved Matters),
the Board of Directors be entitled and are hereby empowered at their discretion to borrow or raise
money to any extent in such manner as they may deem fit and in particular by the issue of
debenture or debentures, perpetual or otherwise including debentures or debenture stock

convertible into shares of this or any other Company in security of any such money so borrowed,
raised or received, to mortgage, pledge or charge the whole or any part of the properties, assets
or revenues of the Company present or future including its uncalled capital.

To guarantee or join in guaranteeing either alone or jointly or jointly and severally the payment of
money secured by, or payable under, or in respect of any bill of exchange, promissory note,
debenture, debenture bond, debenture stock, contract, mortgage, charge, obligation or security
executed, entered into or given by the Company, group companies, subsidiaries, or joint venture
or otherwise to guarantee or become sureties for the performance of any contracts or obligations
of such persons;

Use of Proceeds

The Company shall use proceeds from the subscription of shares or securities only in accordance
with the Annual Budget or Business Plan of the Company approved by the Investor.

(49
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S.R Barusoi & Co. LLP secor 44, Gurugam - 122 003

Chartered Accountants
Tel: +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Antelopus Energy Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Antelopus Energy Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP !dentity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B', 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* TIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure [” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal financial controls’),
since in our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the said report
on internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company basis the exemption available to
the Company under MCA notification no. G.S.R. 583(E) dated June 13,2017, read with
corrigendum dated July 13, 2017 on reporting on internal financial controls with reference to Ind
AS financial statements;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

\
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ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software (Tally) for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 33 to the financial statements). Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Digitally signed "YA';m N aman

ON: cn=Naman Agarwa), c=IN,
o=Personal,

email=naman.agarwal@srb.in A I
Data: 2024 07.17 16:11°58 +05'30" a rWa

per Naman Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 502405
UDIN: 24502405BKEYYA2128
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: July 17, 2024
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“the Company”)

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
during the year ended March 31, 2024. The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the
books of the Company.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

\—
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(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules
made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013, for the products of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The provisions relating to excise duty, sales tax, value added tax, service tax and employees’
state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, income tax, customs duty, cess, and
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. The provisions relating
to excise duty, sales tax, value added tax, service tax and employees’ state insurance are not applicable
to the Company.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report on clause
(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e), 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)  (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

\—
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(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to
the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as
it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 10,080 thousand in the current year and
amounting to Rs. 40,486 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

—

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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Chartered Accountants

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, ageing and expected

(xx)

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Digitally signed byAP;aam N a m a n

DN: en=Naman Agamwal, c=IN,

o=Personal,

e Agarwal
per Naman Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 502405
UDIN: 24502405BKEYYA2128
Place: Gurugram

Date: July 17, 2024

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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Balance Shect as at 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR'000, unless otherwise stated)
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Notes Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I. Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4a 190 447
(b) Capital work in progress 4c 9,83,883 9,19,611
Total non-current assets 9,84,073 9,20,058
(2) Current Assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 5 27,358 644
(ii) Other bank balances 6 2,795 2,662
(iii) Other financial assets 7 2,138 5,595
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 8 13 64
(c) Other Current assets 9 889 975
Total current assets 33,193 9,940
Total assets 10,17,266 9,29,998
11, Equity and liabilities
(1) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 4,65,587 4,62,067
(b) Other equity 3,83,564 2,90,577
Total Equity 8,49,151 752,644
(2)  Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11 82,253 4,506
{b) Other Non-Current liabilities 13 8,123 8,689
Total non-current liabilities 90,376 13,195
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 14
(a) Micro and small enterprises 233 -
(b) Others than Micro and small enterprise 2,436 4,569
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 73,995 1,58,761
(b) Other Current liabilities 13 1,075 829
Total Current liabilities 71,739 1,64,159
Total liabilities 1,68,115 1,77,354
Total cquity and liabilitics 10,17,266 9,29,998
Summary of significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 301003E/E300005

Digitally signed by Naman
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DN: en=Naman Agarwal, c=IN,
o=Personal,

email=naman.agarwal@stb.in A I
Date: 2024.07.17 16:07:03 +05'30 a rwa

per Naman Agarwal
Partner
Membership no: 502405

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 17, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Antclopus Energy Private Limited
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Director
DIN: 02773152
Place: Gurugram
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(Sanjay Kumar)
Company Secretary
Membership no.: A43804

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 17, 2024
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Amount in INR'000, unless otherwise stated)
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Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
L Income
Other ITncome 16 977 15,835
Total Income 977 15,835
II. Expenses
Employee benefits expense 17 186 34,308
Finance Cost 18 4,792 675
Depreciation 19 257 2,878
Other expenses 20 5.852 21,037
Total expense 11,087 58,898
I, (Loss) before tax (10,110) (43,063)
v. Tax Expense:
(1) Current tax - -
(2) Deferred tax - -
V. (Loss) for the year (III - IV) (10,110) (43,063)
VL Other comprehensive gain/(loss)
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent years:
Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax - -
VII.  Total comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (10,110) (43,063)
(Loss) per share in INR. (Nominal Value per equity share INR 10/-) 29
Basic (0.22) (0.93)
Diluted (0.22) (093)
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Antelopus Energy Private Limited
Firm Registration Number : 301003E/E300005
Digitally signed SIVA E'i'i&'ﬂ"é&“&i:
Digitally signed by Naman N SAMARENDR bygSAMAHgNDHA KUMAR  romera
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- . Date:2024.07.17 LLI 15:29:01 +0530°
Dater 205407 17 1607 58 S Ag a rwal URY 153337 +0530° *

per Naman Agarwal

Partner
Membership no: 502405

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 17,2024
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Director
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Place: Gurugram
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CIN : U74999HR2018PTC076012
Staternent of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Operating activities
(Loss) before tax (10,110) (43.063)
Adjustments to reconcile (loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Interest on bank deposits (175) (529)
Amortisation of deferred income on Redeemable preference shares (RPS) (566) (564)
Liabilities no longer payable - balance Written Back (13) (33)
Gain on termination of lease (refer note 4b) - (771
Unrealised foreign exchange loss - 7,564
Interest expense on financial liabilities (lease liability) measured at amortised cost - 361
Interest expense on financial liabilities (RPS) measured at amortised cost 340 314
Interest expense on borrowings from related party 4452 -
Depreciation 257 2,878
Opcrating (Loss) before working capital changes (5,815) (33,843)
Working capital adjustments:
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (2,187) (3,594)
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions - (13,819)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets 3,500 4,153)
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets 86 6,169
1,399 (15,397)
Income tax paid (net of refund) 51 998
Net cash flows (used in) operating activities (A) (4,365) (48,242)
Investing activities
Payment for Capital work in progress/Intangible assets under development (1,48,771) (51,486)
(Purchase) / Praceeds of short term bank deposits (net) (133) 18,738
Interest received 132 1,351
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities B) (1,48,772) (31,397)
Financing Activities
Issue of Equity Shares 3,520 382
Securities premium on the issue of Equity Shares 1,03,097 12,593
Borrowings taken from Related Party 73,400 -
Interest paid on loan taken from Related Party (166) -
Payment of lease liability - (2,572)
Net cash flows from financing activities (8] 1,79,851 10,403
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 26,714 (69,236)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 644 69,880
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5 27,358 644
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of
(a) Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 5 27,358 644
27,358 644
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
For S.R, Batliboi & Co. LLP Antelopus Energy Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
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ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74999HR2018PTC076012

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended as at 31 March 2024

Amount in INR'000, unless otherwise stated)
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Other Equity - Reserve & surplus
Particulars Share Capital . . . . . Total equity
Retained earnings Sccuritics premium* Total- Other Equity
(A) (B) (C) (D)=(B+C) (AtD)

At 31 March 2022 4,61,685 (4,06,213) 7,27,260 3,21,047 7,82,732
Shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2023 382 - 12,593 12,593 12,975
(Loss) for the year ended 31 March 2023 (43,063) (43,063) (43,063)
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
During the year ended 31 March 2023 382 (43,063) 12,593 (30,470) (30,088)
At 31 March 2023 4,62,067 (4,49,276) 7,39,853 2,90,577 7,52,644
Shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2024 3,520 - 1,03,097 1,03,097 1,06,617
(Loss) for the year ended 31 March 2024 - (10,110) - (10,110) (10,110)
Other comprehensive income - - - - -
During the year ended 31 March 2024 3,520 (10,110) 1,03,097 92,987 96,507
At 31 March 2024 4,65,587 (4,59,386) 8,42,950 3,83,564 8,49,151

* Sceurities premium can be used for specified purposes as contained in the Companies Act 2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
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ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN:

UJ74999HR2018PTC076012

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in INR '000, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2,
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

25

3.1

Corporate information
Antelopus Energy Private Limited (“the Company” or "Antelopus") was incorporated on 25 September 2018 under the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The
Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered office in Gurugram, Haryana, India.

Antelopus is a subsidiary of Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Parent Company"), an exempted limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

The Company is principally engaged in Exploration and Production of Oil and Gas and focussed on discovered small fields with proven reserves - onshore and
shallow water.

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on November 22, 2023, had considered and approved the amalgamation of the Company into and with
the Selan Exploration Technology Limited ("Selan") pursuant to a composite scheme of arrangement ("Scheme") in accordance with the provisions of section 230 to
232 rcad with scction 52 and 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rulcs made thercunder.

The Scheme is, inter alta, subject to the receipt of requisite approvals from statutory and regulatory authorities, including from the National Company Law Tribunal,
the shareholders and creditors of the Company. The Scheme has been approved by stock exchanges vide observation letter dated June 27, 2024. As a subsequent
step, the Company will now file the Scheme before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench for the necessary directions.

Basis of preparation and basis of measurement of financial statements

Basis of preparation

‘These financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS") notitied under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") and the guidance notes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and division Il of schedule Il of the
Companies Act 2013. Further, for the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statement of profit and loss and balance sheet. Nonetheless, these items
are dis-aggregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on July 17, 2024

Functional & Presentation Currency
These special financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) and have been rounded ofT to the nearest thousand.

Basis of measurement
These special financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for
certain financial assets and liabilitics which arc measured at fair valuc as explained in the accounting policics below.

Business combinations

Business Combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103 *Business Combination’. Business Combinations arising from transfer of interests in entities that are
controlled by the company or ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not transitory, are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method as follows:

i) Asscts and liabilitics of the combining entitics are reflected at their carrying value.

if) No adjustment is made to reflect fair values, or recognize any new assets or liabilities other than those required to harmonise accounting policies

iii) The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

iv)The balance of the retained eamings appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance appearing in the financial
statements of the transferee or is adjusted against general reserve

v) The identity of the reserves is preserved and appears in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial
statements of the transferor

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

There are no other significant accounting judgements or estimates applied in the preparation of these financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

Material Accounting Policies
The Company has applied following accounting policies for all the periods presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

naan siddiqui (Advocate)
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in INR '000, unless otherwise stated)

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

-1t is duc to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve
months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation/impairment losses if any. Cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating (o an item of the asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance. All other related expenses, including day to day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

3.3 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual value using straight line method over the useful lives of
assets at the rate derived with reference to the useful life as specified under Part *C’ of Schedule II of the Companies Act’ 2013 and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. The Company has estimated useful lives of its PPE as follows:

Catcgory of asscts Estimated useful lives
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Buildings (Right to use assets) 3-6 years
Computers (including server & networks) 3-6 years

Residual value of the PPE are estimated as nil of the gross amount on individual asset basis. Assets whose cost less than INR 5 thousand are fully depreciated in the
year of acquisition.

3.4 Income Taxes
Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income ar loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect
of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afier considering the uncertainty, if any
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Recognition and Initial measurement
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes as the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Further, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
Deferred tax asscts arc recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in the OCI or in the equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Subscquent Mcasurements

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Presentation and disclosures

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes related to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

/
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(Amount in INR '000, unless otherwise stated)

3.5

3.6

3.7

Financial asset and liabilities

Recognition and initial measurement

The Company initially recognises financial asscts and financial liabilitics when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial asscts
and liabilities are measured at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.

Classification and subsequent Measurement

The financial assets are classified in the following categories :

1) financial assets measured at amortised cost.

2) financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3) financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss.

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flow.

At initial recognition, the financial assets (measured at amortized costs) are measured at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets (carried at fair value through profit or loss) are expensed in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in
the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI financial
assets 1s reported as interest income using the effective interest rate method.

Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Financial instruments included within fair value through profit and loss category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rate of two days prior to the date of transaction available at FBIL website (https:/fbil.org.in/) to avoid
practical difficulty in obtaining RBI exchange rate on the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising due to the differences in the exchange rates between the
transaction date and the date of settlement of any monetary items, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are translated into Indian Rupees at the closing exchange rate of that date.
The resultant exchange difference are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Oil and gas assets

Company follows the accounting guidance as suggested by Ind-As -106 “Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources* and as set out in ICAI Guidance note
on “Accounting for Oil and Gas producing activities”. Company follows the “successful efforts method” of accounting and the success or failure of each exploration
cffort is assessed for each well.

i. Pre-License Costs

Pre license costs incurred prior to obtaining the right to explore are expensed immediately in statement of profit and loss.

ii. License and Property Acquisition costs

Expenditure incurred on the acquisition of license interests, leasehold properties and right to explore (such as Mining lease fees (including administrative cost or
related professional fee), or any other acquisition related cost) is initially capitalised on a license-by-license basis. These costs are held, un-depleted, within
intangibles assets under development as License cost until such time as the exploration phase on the License area is complete or when a well is ready to commence
commercial production. A well is assumed to be ready for commercial production on establishment of proved developed Oil and Gas reserves. Upon such
recognition, the relevant expenditure of acquisition cost in Intangibles assets under development is transferred to Oil and Gas assets under Property Plant and
Equipment.

Annual license costs and rentals incurred to explore in the license area are capitalised as part of license and property acquisition costs.

Acquisition costs which are incurred as part of farm in transactions are also recorded in the similar manner discussed above, depending on the stage of operation of
the farmed-in assets.

iii. Exploration and Evaluation Cost

Exploration and cvaluation cost : It covers the prospecting activities conducted in the search for oil and gas after an entity has obtained legal right to explore a
specific area, as well as activities towards determination of the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the oil and gas.

Exploration expenditure incurred for search of potential oil and gas prospects such as survey or studies (including associated manpower cost) and cost in the process
of determining oil and gas exploration targets is capitalised within “Exploration and evaluation assets” -intangible assets and subsequently allocated to drilling
activities.

Drilling: All direct and assaciated costs relating to exploratory or appraisal drilling are initially capitalised on a well-by-well basis and kept under “Exploration and
evaluation cost” under intangible class of asset (tangible, if nature suggests). Exploratory well costs are written off in the statement of profit or loss on completion of

the well if the outcome is a dry well.
Appraisal : Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to determine the size, characteristics and commercial potential of a reservoir following the
initial discovery of extractable hydrocarbons, including the cost of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found, are initially capitalised as an intangible asset.
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Following the appraisal, or if otherwise commercial reserves are established and the project is internally sanctioned by management, the relevant capitalised
expenditure is first assessed for impairment and (if required) impairment losses recognised, then the remaining balances are reclassified and transferred to Intangtble
assets under development or Capital work in progress (CWIP), depending on the nature of cost. Where the resuits of appraisal indicate the presence of hydrocarbons
which are ultimately not considered commercially viable, all related costs are written off to the statement of profit or loss.

When a reservoir is ready to be commercially produced, capitalized cost corresponding to proved developed oil and gas reserves is transferred from Intangible asscts
under development/CWIP to Oil and Gas Assets under Property Plant and Equipment.

iv. Development cost

It covers the cost on activities / operations conducted after determination of technical feasibility and commercial viability. It includes all directly attributable cost,
cost of studies related to development, allocated manpower cost and a reasonable allocation of G&A cost.

Development costs are initially booked under Development work in progress and when the well is ready to commence commercial production, they are transferred to
Oil and Gas Assets under Property Plant and Equipment, {ield by field basis.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only where it either enhances the economic benefits of the such oil and gas asset or replaces a part of it.

3.8 TImpairment of assets
Exploration and evaluation assets & License and property acquisition cost
Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for indicators of impairment 1n accordance with the Company’s accounting policy under Ind-As 106. Exploration and
evaluation assets and Acquisition costs are only assessed for impairment where the facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed
its recoverable amount. Indications that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable amount may include:
a) Substantive expenditure on further exploration and evaluation activities on the asset or Company of assets is neither budgeted nor planned;
b) The Company has decided to discontinue activitics on the asset or Company of assets as a result of failing to find commercially viable quantitics of hydracarbons;
and
c) The Company has sufficient data indicating that the carrying amount of the asset or Company of assets is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

However where the exploration efforts are ongoing and outcome determination process is not yet completed, due consideration is given before assessing an indicator
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are Companied together into the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Companys of assets (the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU™). The impairment loss for a CGU is recognised to
the extent carrymg amount exceeds the recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's or CGU’s fair value (less costs of disposal) and value in use.

Development expenditure
Company assesses at end of each reporting period carrying amount of Development expenditure / CWIP in line with impairment indicators suggested under Ind-As
36.

3.9 Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cheques in hand, cash at bank & in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits, as defined above.
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents include bank deposits with original maturity of more than threc months but less than 12 months Bank deposit
having maturity period of more than 12 months from reporting date is to be classified under Other Financial Assets.

3.10 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from regular
revenue generating (operating aclivities), investing and [inancing activities ol the Company are segregated.

3.11 Interest Income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expected credit losses.

3.12 Employee Benefits
Short Term Obligation
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post-employment obligations

The entity operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) Defined benefit plans of gratuity and

(b) Defined contribution plans of provident fund.

(a) Defined benefit plan
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly
n other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

_——
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past
service cost.

{b) Defined contribution plans

The entity pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benelit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(¢) Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s compensated absences constitute other long term employee benefit.

Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated taking into account the pattern of
availment of leave. In respect of encashment of leave, the defined benefit is calculated taking into account all types of decrements and qualifying salary projected up
to the assumed date of encashment. The present value of obligations under such long-term benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at period cnd.

3.13 Share based payments
Eligible employees of the Company (Company, its Parent or Subsidiary) receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payments.
This share based payment includes both the equity-settled transaction, being preference shares of Parent Company of Antelopus and cash settled transaction {rom the
Antelopus pursuant to Management Incentive Plan (“MIP”) scheme 2020 of Company related to cash settled transactions i.e. Phantom options for Antelopus
employees.
The cost of equity-settled transactions for options granted by Parent company is measured at fair value of share at the date of grant (if fair value is NIL, Par value is
considered) and is recognised as an employee benefit expense, with a corresponding increase in other equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards.
Additionally, for the cash settled share based payment of the Company, as per the term of the plan, value will be realized by employees when eventually there is a
strategic sale to an investor or listing through an initial Public Offering (IPO).This event is called an “Exit” event. All the cash payouts will be made on occurring of
exit event only. In circumstances other than the exit events, management has discretion to pay cash based payment and it is not unconditional right of the option
holder to receive any cash value.
Company's policy for Cash settled transaction is in line with Ind-AS 102. At initial recognition, hability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled transactions
and equivalent amount charged as employee benefits expense. The fair value is re-measured at each reporting date up to and including the settlement date, with
changes in fair value recognised in employee benefits expense. The fair value is determined by applying an option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions on which the rights were granted, and the extent to which the employees have rendered service to date.

3.14 Lease (Company as lessee)

A contract or parts of contracts that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for payments to be made to the owners
(lessors) are accounted for as leases. Contracts are assessed to determine whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at the inception of a contract or when the terms
and conditions of a contract are significantly changed. The lease term is the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with contractual options to extend or to
terminate the lease early, where it is reasonably certain that an extension option will be exercised or a termination option will not be exercised. Ind As 116 requires a
lessee to recognize a 'right of use asset’ (ROU) and a corresponding ‘lease liability’ for all leases. Lease costs will be recognised in the income statement over the lease
term in the form of depreciation on the ROU asset and finance charges representing the unwinding of the discount on the lease liability. Lease liability is measured at
an amount equal to the present value of the lease payments during the lease term that are not paid at that date. Lease hability includes contingent rentals and variable
lease payments that depend on an index, rate, or where they are fixed payments in substance. The lease liability is remeasured when the contractual cash flows of
variable lease payments change due to a change in an index or rate when the lease term changes following a reassessment.

Lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate is not readily available, the incremental borrowing rate is applied. The
incremental borrowing rate reflects the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, with a similar security, the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of a similar nature and value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

In general, a corresponding right-of-use asset is recognised at cost, which comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee adjusted for accumulated depreciation,
impairment losses and any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The depreciation on right-of-use assets is recognised as expense unless capitalised when the right-of-
use asset is used to construct another asset. Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lesser of the assessed useful lives of the asset, or the
lease period.

The Company acts as a lessee in lease arrangements mainly involving office premises. The Company has elected to apply the modified retrospective approach on
transition, and accordingly the comparative figures have not been restated. Further, as permitted by Ind AS 116, the Company does not bring leases of low value
assets or short-term leases with 12 or fewer months remaining on to balance sheel.

3.15 Redeemable preference shares (RPS)
Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as financial liabilities and measured at fair value on initial recognition. After
initial measurement, Redeemable Preference Shares (RPS) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the efTective interest rate methed. The difference
between the amount of cash received on issuance of such RPS and their fair value is treated as a deferred income or expense as the case may be and is amortised over
the period of the loan on a systematic basis. The interest expense measured at amortised cost on these preference shares are taken to the statement of profit and loss
as finance expense.

3.16 Earnings per share
Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference
dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of
an cquity share to the extent that they arc entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity share outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, share split, and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity share outstanding, without corresponding changes in resources.
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3.17 Provisions
A provision is recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources

embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions arc generally not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the halance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

3.18 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. The Company does neither recognise
nor disclose contingent assets.

3.19 Application of new Standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind
AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments. The implementation of new
standard or amendments did not have any material impact on the Company.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their

‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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169

4 (n) Property, plant and equipment

Computer

Particulars Hardware/ Fu:.mmre and Office equipment T otal
. ixtures Tangible Assets

Equipment
Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 4,353 81 1,123 5,557
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4,353 81 1,123 5,557
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,353 81 1,123 5,557
Al lated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,939 23 589 4,551
Depreciation charge during the year ended 31 March 2023 330 8 221 559
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4,269 31 810 5110
Depreciation charge during the year ended 31 March 2024 438 8 201 257
Balance as at 31 March 2024 4,317 39 1,011 5,367
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2023 84 S0 313 447
Balance as at 31 March 2024 36 42 112 190
(b) Right to use assets
Particulars ] Buildings
Gross block
Balance as at 31 March 2022 19,376
Disposal / Transfer during the year ended 31 March 2023* (19,376)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -
A lated depr
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10,570
Depreciation charge during the year ended 31 March 2023 2,318
Disposal / Transfer during the year ended 31 March 2023* (12,888)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 -
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2023 | P
Balance as at 31 March 2024 [ -

* Due to pre mature termination of the lease, the right to usc of assets is completely reversed and has become NIL during the previous year. Accordingly, corresponding adjustments are donc in

lease linbilities in the previous year.

{c) Capital work in progress

Particulars Development Assets Total
in Progress

Cost or valuation

Balance as at 31 March 2022 8,57,746 8,57,746
Addition : Expenditure incurred during the year 61,865 61,865
Balance as at 31 March 2023 9,19,611 9,19,611
Addition : Expenditure incurred during the year* 64,272 64,272
Balance as at 31 March 2024 9,83,883 9,83,883

*Addition indicate cost incurred by the Company on various O&G blocks in development phase for Dead rent, Bank Guarantee Charges, Feasibility and costing Studies, Geophysical and
Topography Survey, Forest Clearances & Land afforestation etc. pertaining to these blocks. Company intends to start the drilling of well in Duarmara field in Q3 of FY 2024-25 post receipt of

environmental and forest clearances.

Capital work in progress (CWIP) Ageing Schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Project in progress

Total

As at 31 March 2023

Project in progress

Total

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Total
64,272 61,865 2,87,810 5,69,936 9,83,883
64,272 61,865 2,87,810 5,69,936 9,83,883
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 vears Tatal
61,865 2,387,810 3,53,882 2,16,054 9,19,611
61,365 2,87,810 3,53,882 2,16,054 9,19,611

Duc to the covid outbreak in 2020 and its cascading impact in 2021, major projects have exceeded their initial planned completion date for which extension has been sought and granted by the

Government. These projects are expected to be completed as under :

n-11
D-31
Daurmara
Total

Less then 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More then 3 Years Total
- 1,30,277 - - 1,30,277
- 5,67,115 - - 5,67,115
- 2.85,371 - - 2,85371
- 9,82,763 - - 9,82,763
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Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Balances with banks
« In current accounts

Other bank balances

Bank deposits having original matunity of morc than 3 but upto 12 months*

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months*

*Fixed depaosits are under lien with bank for overdraft facilities & for Bid security purposes.

Others financial assets

Current

(Unsecured, considered good)
Accrued Interest on Bank Deposits
Earnest Money Deposits*

*Eamest Money Deposit are given as security deposits for Bid purposes

Current tax assets (net)
TDS recoverable

Other assels
Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Advances :

Advance to suppliers
Sub-total Advances (A)
Others :

Prepard Expenses
Sub-total Others (B)

Total (A+B)

(Tlus space has been mientionally left blank)
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As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

27,358 644
27,358 644
2,572 513
223 2,149
2,795 2,662
138 95
2,000 5,500
2,138 5,595
13 64

13 64

- 594

- 594
889 381
889 381
889 975
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Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
10 Share capital
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of INR 10/ each 5,01,32,889 5,01,329 5,01,32,889 5,01,329
Class Al equity shares of INR 10/~ each 8,67,111 8,671 8,67,111 8,671
0 001% redeemable cumulative preference shares of INR 10/- each 15,00,000 15,000 15,00,000 15,000
5,25,00,000 5,25,000 5,25,00,000 5,25,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of INR 10 each 4,56,91,563 4,56,916 4,53,39,612 4,53,396
Class Al equity shares of INR 10/- ecach 8,67,111 8,671 8,67,111 8,671
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital 4,65,58,674 4,65,587 4,62,06,723 4,62,067
a) Reconciliation of the equity fing at the beginning and at the end of reporting period/year
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
(i) Equity shares
At the beginning of the year 4,53,39,612 4,53,39 4,53,01,406 4,53,014
Add Shares issued during the year 3,51,951 3,520 38,206 382
Balance at the end of the period 4,56,91,563 4,56,916 4,53,39,612 4,53,396
{ii) Class A1 equity shares
At the beginning of the year 867,111 8,671 867,111 8,671
Balance at the end of the period 867111 8.671 8,67.111 8.671
b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares and preference shares
The Company has two classes of equity share having the par value of INR 10 per share. Rights, preferences and restnctions of each class of share are given hereunder,
(i) Equity shares
Each sharcholder is eligible for one vote per share held and dividend as and when declared by the Company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which 1s pard as and when declared by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will
be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding
(ii) Class Al equity shares
Each sharehiolder is cligible for anc vote per share held and dividend as and when declared by the Company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareliolders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of intenm dividend which 1s paid as and when declared by the Board of Directors In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will
be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.
{iii) 0.001% Redeemable cumulative preference shares
0001% red bl lative prefi shares of INR 10/~ each fully paid up had been 1ssued during the year ended March 2020 and were classified as financial hability. These are non-convertible,
redeemable within 20 years from date of 1ssuance and do not carry any voting nights. Redeemable preference shares (RPS) shall be entitled for payment of dividend on a cumulative basis, @ 0.001% per annum
on the par value RPS shall be non-participating in the surplus and profits which remains afler the entire capital has been repaid, on winding up of the Company The Company shall have right to redecm any
RPS during their tenure. This right may be exercised at the option of the Company 1n the manner prescribed in the terms.
¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company and equity shares held by the holding Company and its
Name of shareholder Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number % of holding Number % of holding
{i) Equity shares
Blackbuck Energy I Limited, the Holding Company 4,56,91,563 100% 4,53,39,612 100%
(ii) Class A1 equity shares
Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited, the Holding Company 8,67,111 100% 867,111 100%
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/ bers and other decl received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and
beneficial ownership of shares
d) The Company had made offer for right issue to its existing shareholders which were exercised by the holding company. Accordingly, 3,51,951 equity shares of INR 10/« each (31 March 2023: 38,206 equity
shares of INR 10/- each) were 1ssued to the Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited
e) No bonus shares or shares 1ssucd for constderation other than cash or shares bought back since incorporation of the Company till the reporting date

its i )

Details of shares held by Pri tors (including

As at 31 March 2024

No. of shares at the

. o .
Equity Type Promoter Name beginning of the Change during the  No of shares at the end % of Total Shares %o change during the
year of the year year
year
Equity Shares (including - g by, ok Energy Investments Limited 4,62,06,723 351,951 4,65,58,674 100% 076%
Class Al Equity Shares)
4,62,06,723 3,51,951 4,65,58,674 100% 0.76%
As at 31 March 2023
No. of shares at the - N .
Equity Type Promoter Name beginning of the Change duringthe  No of shares at the end % of Total Shares %o change dunng the
year year of the year year
Equity Shares (meluding gy by, Ererpy 1 Limited 4,61,68,517 38,206 4,62,06,123 100% 008%
Class Al Equity Shares)
4,61,68517 38,206 4,62,06,723 100% 008%
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As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

11

13

14

15

Non-current borrowing

Unsecured

0001% Red, bl lative preft shares
Borrowings from Related Party #

Interest accrued on borrowings from related party

4,846

73,400
4,007

4,506

82,253

4,506

Movement in borrowing during the year is provided here below:

Opening Balance

Borrowings taken during the year
Interest accrued during the year
Other non cash changes*

4,506
73,400
4,007
340

4,192

314

Closing Balance

82,253

4,506

ble preference

* Other non cash changes comprises deferred Income on Redeemable Preference Shares, amortisation of deferred income on Red
shares (RPS) and Interest expense on financial labilities (RPS) measured at amortised cost

# Duning the year, the Company has entered into an agreement with Sclan Exploration Technology Limited to obtan a loan of upto an aggregate amount
not exceeding Rs 100 Crores, 1n one or more tranches, for the purpose of principal business activity of the Company The loan is taken for a period of
51 months from the first disbursement date with an agreement that fixed yield to matunty to be charged by Lender to the horrower for the Loan is
14 25% per annum 1.¢. Risk Free Rate (RFR) plus a spread of 6.86 % per annum. Currently, the said yield translates m to an effective mterest rate of
15 06% per annum, to be reset based on actual drawdown and repayment (1f any). This loan ts repayable in fixed quarterly mstalments from the 18th
month of dishursement Further as per agreement, in case of default of any terms of loan agreement, then at the option of the lender, the outstanding
amount as on the default date shall stand i diately payable by the Comg to the lender; or shall be converted into Equity Shares, at the prevailing
fair market value of the Equity shares as may be determined by a regsstered valuer at such time, in accordance with the prowisions of The Companies
Act, 2013

Leasc linbilities

Details of movement in lease labilities

Opening balance

Non-cash adjustments made during the periodfyear (refer note 4h)
Interest acerued during the period/year

Payments made duning the periodfyear

Closing balance

Note Due to pre-mature termination of the lease, the [ease liability has been reversed during the previous year and there are no leases outstanding at the
end of year and previous year.
Other Liabilities

(i) Non Current
Deferred I on Red ile Pr Shares

9,322
(7,111)
361

(2,572)

8,123

8,689

8,123

8,689

(ii) Current
Deferred Income on Redeemable Preference Shares
Payable to statutory / Government authonties

564
E10]

1,075

Trade payables

Micro and small enterprises
Other than micro and small enterprises

233
2436

4,560

2,669

4,569

Trade paynbles Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2024

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3 years

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

Total & undisputed: Micro and small enterprises 233 - -
Total & undisputed: Other than micro
and small enterprises 2,436 - -

Total

233

2,436

Total 2,669 - .

2,669

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
More than 3 years

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

Total & undisputed: Micro and small enterprises - - -
Total & undisputed: Other than micro
and small enterprises 4475 94 -

Total

4,569

Total 4475 94 -

4,569

Other financial liabilities
(i) Current
Capital creditors

Other payables
Employee related payables

73,261
734

61,478
97,016
267

73,995

1,58,761

-

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

18

19

20

Other Income

Interest on financial assets {(Security Deposit) carmied at amortised cost

Amortisation of deferred income on Redeemable preference shares (RPS) carried at amortised cost
Interest on bank deposits carried at amortised cost

Tnterest on Income Tax Refund

Liabilities no longter payablc - balance Written Back

Net pain on foreign cusrency transactions

Gain on termination of lease (refer note 4b)

Reversal of Provision for employee benefits

Employee benefits expense

Salary, wages and bonus*

Contribution ta provident and other fund
Staff welfare

Less

Cost allocation to Oil and Gas Blocks**

* Previous year expense includes Gratuity and compensated absence provision.
**It rep: Manp cost bemng app d by the Company to Oil and Gas blocks owned by it

Finance Cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities (lease liability) measured at amortised cost
Interest expi on ial liabil (Red! ble Prefe Shares) 1 at
Interest expense on borrowings from related party

cost

Depreciation
Depreciation (refer note 4)

Other expenses
Legal & Professional fees
Rent
Oftice Expenses
IT Expenses
Travelling & Conveyance
Rates & Taxes
Repair & Maintenance
Insurance
Bank Charges
Net loss on foreign currency transactions
Payment to auditors’
- For Audit
- For Reimbursement of expenses
« For other services
Miscellanzous Expenses

Less
Cost allocation to Ol and Gas Blocks**

Total

** [t represents various costs attributable to Oil and Gas blocks owned by the Company and allocated to respective Blocks

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Afnaan siddigui (Advocate)
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- 51
566 564
175 529

3 68

13 33

220 .

- m
13.819

977 15,838
186 59,051

- 43815

- 3.275
186 67.141
- (32.833)
186 34,308

- 361
340 314

4452 -

4,792 675
257 2878
257 2,878
2,056 6.846
319 357

5 652
206 594
19 3.159
470 834

- 803
370 292
25 30

- 7564
2,100 1.600
78 55
120 29
84 1426
5.852 24,241
- (3.204)
5852 21,037
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22

23

(0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

[\]

Oil and Gas Blocks
The brief details about the oil & gas blocks which are held by company at the year end are as follows
Blacks Participating Interest as Participating Interest as
at at

3t March 2024 31 March 2023
NEC/0SDSF/D11/2018 Bengal-Pumnea Basin / Mahanad: Offshore 100% 100%
MB/OSDSF/D31/2018 Mumba Offshore 100% 100%
AA/ONDSF/DUARMARA/2016 Assam Onshore 50% 50%
KG/ONDSF/DANGERU/2021* Krnishna Godavari Basin 100°% 100%

*Company had participated in DSF bidding round (If1) and was awarded block KG/ONDSF/DANGERU/2021 ("Dangeru”) pursuant to Reveue sharing contract dated September 09, 2022, Tt holds 100% participating mierest in
the block Company had filed an appli for grant of Perroleum Mining Lease (PML) on November 01, 2022.

Management does an yearly evaluation of its reserves and based on the last evaluations, the Company has estimated its total Proved (1P) reserve as 2.95 MMBLS (31 March 2023: 2.95 MMBLS) for oil and condensate and Gas
as 163.34 BCF (31 March 2023 163 34 BCF), none of which are yet developed. Further, Proved and Probable (2P) reserves of oil/condensate are 4.54 MMBLS (31 March 2023: 4.54 MMBLS) and Gas are 293.00 BCF (31
March 2023. 293.00 BCF). Tlis is divided into the following block

-Block MB/OSDSF/D31/2018 has Proved (!P) reserves of 1.96 MMBLS (31 March 2023: 1 96 MMBLS ) of Oil/condensate and Gas reserves of 48 62 BCF (31 March 2023 48.62 BCF) For the same block 2P reserves
(Proved and Probable) are 2 40 MMBLS (31 March 2023- 2 40 MMBLS) of Oil/condensate and Gas of 60 75 BCF (31 March 2023- 60 75BCF)

-Block NEC/OSDSF/D11/2018 has Proved (1P) reserves of 0 28 MMBLS (31 March 2023: 0.28 MMBLS) of Oil/condensate and Gas reserves of 91 17 BCF (31 March 2023 91.17 BCF) For the same block 2P reserves
(Proved and Probable) are 0 49 MMBLS (31 March 2023 0 49 MMBLS) of Oil/condensate and Gas of 175.95 BCF (31 March 2023: 175.95 BCF).

-Block AA/ONDSF/DUARMARA/2016 for 50° PI has Proved (1P) reserves of 0.71 MMBLS (31 March 2023: 0.71 MMBLS) of Otl/condensate and Gas reserves of 23 55 BCF (31 March 2023: 23 55 BCF). For the same
block 2P reserves (Proved and Probable) for 50% P1 are 1 65 MMBLS (31 March 2023, 1.65 MMBLS) of Oil/condensate and Gas of 55 3 BCF (31 March 2023 55 3 BCF)

mmbb} millions barrels

bef billion cubic feet

1 mullion metric tonnes = 7 4 mmbbl
1 cubic meter =35.315 cubic feet

Segment information

Busmess segment
The Company's business activity falls within a single busi i e exploration, d and production of Qil and Gas. Therefore, segment reporung in terms of Ind AS - 108 on Operating Segmental Reporting is not

applicable

Geographical segment
‘The Company operates within India and does not have op in with different risks and retumns. Hence, it is perating i single geograpt

Related party disclosures
*“Related Party Disclosures™ as required by Ind AS - 24 of C (Indian A

Rules. 2015 are given below

A. Name of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted during the year)

(i) Key managerial personnel {2) Sumti Kumar Bhat, Director
{b) Stva Kumar Pothepalli, Director
(c) Shivani Sharma, Company Secretary {ccased w.¢.f. 31 October 2022)
{d) Alok Padhi, Director {appomted w.e.f September 3 2022)
{e) S dra Roychaudhury, Director ( d w.e.f Aupust 31 2022)
(f} Sanjay Kumar, Company Secretary (appointed w e f March 15 2023)

(ii) Holding Company Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited

(iii) Companies in which the Holding Selan Exploration Techuology Limted
Company has significant influence

B. Transactions with related parties during the year and balances in respect theveof in the ordinary course of business;

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Transactions during the year:

Issuance of Equity Shares

Holding Company

Blackbuck Energy Investments Limited*® 1.06.617 12,975
*Including secunties premium

Loan Taken

Selan Exploration Technology Limited (refer note no. 11) 73.400 -

Interest expense
Selan Explaration Technology Limited (refer note no 18) 4452 -

Remuneration*
Short term employees benefits

Sunitt Kumar Bhat - 24,208
Siva Kumar Pothepalli - 11,662
Shivani Sharma - 1.084
Samay Kumar 186 9
Rent

142 58

Selan Exploration Technology Limited

*The remuneration to the KMP does not include the provisions made for gratuity, comp d at as these are d d on an actuarial basss for the Company as a whole.

Afnaan siddiqui (Advocate)
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(vi} Pursuant to award of Oif and Gas Blocks. the Company was required to submit performance bank 0 G 10 the i Bid Work P

The said bank guarantees are provided by Cttibank

N A.. India based on the counter guarantees provided by funds and accounts managed by Oaktree Capital Management, L P, which have currently snvested through their
(Parent Company of Antelopus Encrgy Private Limited)

™

n Blackbuck Encrgy I Lirted

Blocks

Tenure of some of the BG's have been extended during the year by the company, commensurate with the validity of Bid work p

Equivalent INR : 12
lh‘lusnnd amount Validity
2.15.175 May 16, 2025
16497 May 16,2025
56.895 Dec1,2024
20,000 Dec 1.2024

USD BG amouut

$ 3Mn

S 023 Mn
$ 075Mn
$ 025Mn

Block Name

NEC/OSDSF/D11/2018
MB/OSDSF/D31/2018
AA/ONDSF/DUARMARA/2016
AA/ONDSF/DUARMARA2016

b) Outstanding balance with related partics are as follow:

atyear end for

P

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

(1) Financial and Performance Guarantee (vefer note 23(B)(a)(vi))

Eligible employees of the Company
(a) Suniti Kumar Bhat
(b) Siva Kumar Pothepalli

)

Borrowings from Related Party & Interest (Refer Note 11)
Selan Exploration Technology Limited

{m)

Others

() Suniti Kumar Bhat

{b) Siva Kumar Pothepalli

{c) Sanjay Kumar

(d) Selan Exploration Technology Limited

(w}

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

3.08.567 3.08.567

8.479
4.207

8.622
4.277

73.400

133
133

4.207 58

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year:
Prncipal amount due to micro and small entemnses®
Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appomnted day dunng each accounting year

‘The amount of interest due and payable for the penod of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

“The amount of mterest accrued and remainng unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further mterest rematning due and payable even 1n the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as ahove are actually
pad to the small enterprise for the purpose of disall as a deductibl di under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Dues to micro and small enterpnises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the management of the Company

25 Contingent liabilities and commitments (not provided for)

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat
3t March 2024

(i) Contingent liabilities:

(i) Commitments:

{a) Capital Commitments:
1) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be exceuted on Capital Account and not provided for

(b) Other Commitments:
1) Company's share of o1l and Gas Blocks Ct
USD 4 23 million)). refer note 23(B)(a){vi}

tobe d as per K Sharing Contracts (USD 4 23 mullion (31 March 2023

{ Bid work f

2

o

Tax expenses

Deferred tax:

the

of def

Nit Nil

550
3,08.567

Nil
3.08.567

d tax assets, the Company considers the

Duning the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has incurred loss amounting to INR 10.110 thousand (31 March 2023: INR 43.063 t d). In
extent to which, 1t is probable that the deferred tax asset will be realized The ulti i of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the g

of future taxable profits duning the periods in which those temporary

dilferences and tax loss carry-forward become deducuble. The Company considers the expected reversal of deferred 1ax liabilines and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. Accordingly. the Company has not

Lenthpad d

P

loses and

recogmsd deferred tax assets on the camed forward t

Total loss as an 31 March 2024 is 4,16,771 thousand (3] March 2023: 4.11.308 th
no deferred tax asset has been recognised. The details of unused tax tosses expiry have been given here below

tenrhad

P

Tated b

d) and

As at 31 March 2024

is INR 50,164 thousand {31 March 2023: INR 35,146 thousand) on which

Greater than
Unused tax losses Within one year  one year, Jess  Greater than five years No expiry date Total
than five years
Unutlised business losses - 3.19213 97.558 - 4,16,7M
Unabsorbed depreciation - - - 50,164 50,164
Total - 3,19.213 97,558 50,164 4,66,935

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
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As at 31 March 2023

Greater than
Unuscd tax losses Within one year  onc year,less  Greater than five years No expiry date Total
than five years
Unutifised business losses - 2.67.968 1.43.340 - 4,011,308
Unabsorbed depreciation - - - 35,146 35.146
Total - 2,67,968 1,43,340 35,146 4,46,454
A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the Indian statutory income tax rate to recognise income tax expense for the year is as follows
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accounting profit before tax (10.110) {43.063)
Indian statutory incame tax rate 26% 26%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (2.629) (11.196)
Deferred tax assets not recognised dunng the year 2.629 11196
‘Total Deferred tax liability - -
1 Capital Management
The Company manages its caputal to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concemn while maxtmizing the return to the shareholders through the of debt and equity balance.

As at the end of the year, the Company has an outstanding balance of 0.001%

shares of INR 4,846 thousand valued at amortised cost to fund it's normal business operations

The company’s Board reviews the capital structure of the company on need basis. As part of this rcvn:w the Board evaluates the leverage in Company and assessment of cost of capital.

2 Fancial risk management

The Company’s financial risk management is an integra! part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's nisk management policy ts set by the Managing Board. The Company's actuvities may expose ittoa
vanety of risks such as credit risk. liquidity risk and market nsk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markels and seek 10 minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. A

summary of the nsks have been gtven below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a
given. Credit risk anses from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit

fails to meet uts

the financial assets The obj of

expenence and other factors The Company doesn't see any

(b) Liquidity risk

ar to a fi

! credit risk

fudi

p to clients, i

d wth us fi

] assets A

no

and arises p

pally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans
receivables. The maximum exposure to eredit risk is equal to the carrying value of
crcdﬂ nisk 15 to prevent losses in fi nancm] assets The Company assesses the credit qualny of the counterparties. taking mto account their financial position, past
d credit loss has been provided on these financial assets

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company will nnl be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages 1ts hiquidity nsk by ensuring, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liahilities

when due. The Company’s finance & ible for liquidity, funding as well as In addition, p and policies related to such risks are overseen by the senior management
Maturities of financial liabilities
The following are the | maturities of fi at the reporting date. The | cash flow amount are gross and undiscounted.
31 March 2024
Contractual Cash Outflow

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Carrying amount { 3months or | 3-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years >5 years Tatal

less
0.001% Redeemable cumulative preference shares 4.846 - - 14,759 14,759
Trade payables 2,669 432 2237 - 2,669
Capital creditors 73.261 73261 - - 73.261
Other payables 734 734 - - 734
‘Total 81,510 74,427 2,237 14,759 91,423
31 March 2023

Contractual Cash OQutflow

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities Carrying amount | 3monthsor | 3-12 months 1-2 Years 2-5 Years >5 years Total

less
0 001% Redeemable cumulative preference shares 4.506 - - 14,759 14,759
Tradg payables 4.569 4,569 - - 4,569
Capital creditors 61,478 61478 - - 61,478
Other payables 97.016 97.016 - - 97,016
Employee related liabilities 267 - 267 - 267
Total 1,67,837 1,63,063 267 14,759 1,78,089 |
(c) Market nsk

Market risk 1s the risk or uncertainty arising from possible market price movements and their impact on the future performance of a business. The primary commodity price risks that the Company is exposed to mclude oil and

natural gas prices that could adversely affect the value of the Company's fi

(d) Interest rate risk

] assets,

or

d future cash flow. Market nsk comprises the nsk of interest rate, currency risk and the other commodity price

This nsk causes the fair value or future cash flows of a financral instrument will fluctunte because of changes in market interest rates The Company has not availed any interest beaning borrowings, hence is not exposed to interest

rate nsk.

(e) Foreign Currency nisk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign excliange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates
primarily to the Company's operating activities and operational contracts with the rates payable in foreign currencies. The Company undertakes measures such as timing the mflow of money matching with outflow of money to

manage the foreign currency risk.

Details of Foreign Currency Exposure at the end of the year are as under

Asat31 March 2024

Particulars
Other Payables

As at 31 March 2023

I
| USD 11,80,000 ] INR 97.016 thousands |

Nil
Foreign Currency Sensitivity
The following table d the ty to & reasonable possible change in USD cxchange rate with all other variable held constant
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Creditors (USD) (5% movement) (4.851) 4,851

Afnaan Siddigui (Advocate)
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28 Financial Instruments
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides addinonal information on the balance sheet. Details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recogninon,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised. in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 2 and Note 3

Financial assets and liabilities
The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments and their carrying amounts are set out below:

As at 31 March 2024

Carrying amount
Particulars Fair Value Through Fair Value Thm“.gh .
other comprehensive Amortised Cost
praofit & Loss N
income
Financial Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents - - 27358
Other bank balance - - 2,795
Eamest Money Deposils 2,000
Accrued Interest on Bank Deposits - - 138
Total - - 32,291
Financial Liabilities
Non-Current
0001% Red bl If prefe shares - - 4.846
Borrowings from Related Party - - 73.400
Interest acerued on borrowings from related party - - 4.007
Current
Capital creditors - - 73.261
Other payable - - 734
Trade bl - - 2.669
'Total - - 1,58,917

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying amount
Particulars Fair Value Through Fair Value Through

profit & Loss other c?mprehensive Amortised Cost
mecome

Financial Assets
Current
Cash and eash equivalents - - 644
Other bank balance - - 2,662
Eamest Money Deposits - - 5,500
Accrued Interest on Bank Deposits - - 95
Total - - 8,901
Financial Linbilities
Non-Current
0 001% Red, hl lative pref shares - - 4,506
Current
Capital creditors - - 61,478
Other payable - - 97,016
Employee related payment - - 267
Trade payabl - - 4,569
Total - - 1,67,836 |

Fair values techniques
The carrying value of fi | instruments dat ised cost is not ially different from their fair values. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities 15 included at the amount at which the instrument could be

} d in a current : willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
‘The Company deterrmines fair values of financial assets and fi | habilitres by d contractual cash iflows / outflows using prevailing iterest rates of financial mstruments with stmular terms  The imiual measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities is at fair value. Further, the subsequent measurement of all financial assets and fi ! hiabilities 15 at ised cost. using the effective interest method ("EIR")

Discount rates used in determining fair value
‘The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where npplicable, are based on the average market rate of similar credit rated instrument in case of financial assets

Fair value hierarchy
All financial instruments for which fair valus is d or disclosed are d wathin the fair value hierarchy, described as follows based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as whole:

Level 1- quated (unadjusted) prices in active market for identcal assets and habilities
Level 2. valuation teclmiques for which the lowest level of mput that has a significant effect on the fuir value measurement ate observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: valuation techniques for which the lowest level of input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not based on observable market data.

Afnaan siddigui (Advocate)
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29

30

Earning/ (Loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit / (loss) for the period attributable to equity ho!ders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding dunny the period/year

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit / (Loss) auributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pentod plus the weighted average number of equity shares

that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares, 1f any, into Equity shares
The following reflects the profit/{loss) and share data used in the basic end diluted EPS computations:

{Loss) attributable to Equity Sharcholders/A1 Equity Sharehold,

Weighted average number of Equity Shares/Al Equity Shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS
Nonunaf value per Equity Share/A1 Equity Shares (in INR)

Basic and diluted (loss) per share (in INR)

Ratio Analysis and its elements

For the year ended
31 March 2023

143.063)

4,61.86,030
1000
(0.93)

Ratio Numerator Denominator

31 March
2024

Reason

Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities

Debi- Equity Ratio Total Debt Sharcholder’s Equity

Debt Service Coverage ratio Profit before imterest and tax Fmance Cost

Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes — Prefe Dividend Average Shareholder’s Equity

Average Capital Employed =

Eamings before interest and taxes Tangble Net Worth + Total Debt

Return on Capital Employed

Retum on Investment Interest {Finance Income) Investment

Afnaan siddiqui (Advocate)
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605 13%
an

77 50% dums

There is increase in
current  assets  duc to
unused funds from loans
d share camtal
remaming in the bank
account

There is increase in total
debt due to borrowing
taken from related party
during  the year and
tncrease M equity  basc
dunng the year.

There 15 reduction m the
losses duning the year and
There was  decrease in
Total Debt in prevoius

98 23% year due to termination of

lease
Overall impact of above
has resulted in increase in
rauo.

There is decrease in losses
the  year
Accordingly,. ROE  has
mcreased.

There 1s decrease in losses
during the year during the
year Accordingly, ROE
has increased.

There is increase in ratio
due to decrease in average
mvestments  dunng  the
year
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31 Noteon S of Ar the C y and Selan l-‘r loration Technology Limited
The Board nfDnre:mrs of the Company, at tts meeting held on N ber 22, 2023, had idered and ap; d the amal of the Company into and with the Selan Exploration Technology Limited (*Selan") pursuant to a
ite scheme of ("Scheme”) between the Company. Selan Exploraton Technology lem:d and their respi hareholders and cred n d with the p of section 230 to 232 read with

secuon 52 and 66 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder.
This Scheme, inter alia, pravides for :(a) reduction of capital of the Company and (b) the amalgamation of the Company with and into Selan Exploration Technology Limited, and the ccnscquem dissolution of the Company without

being wound up, and the issunance of equity shares of the Selan Exploration Technology Limited to the shareholders of equity shares (including Class A 1 equity shares) and red ble p hareholders of the Company as
on the record date defined in the scheme in accordance with the below mentioned share exchange ratio:-

For Equity Shareholders and Class A1 Equity Shareholders of the Company:

“Far every 10,000 equity shares and Class Al equity shares of face and paid-up value of Rs 10/- (Ten) held in the Company 4287 equity shares of face and pard-up value of Rs 10/~ (Ten) in Selan”™

For Preference Sharcholders of the Compnny.

“For every 10,000 0.001%redeemabl prefe shares of face and paid-up value of Rs. 10/- (Ten) held int the Company 18 Equity shares of face and paid-up value of Rs. 10/- (Ten) in Selan”

The Scheme is, inter alia, subject to reccipt of requi: pprovals from y and regulatory authorities, including from the National Company Law Tnbunal. the sharcholders and creditors of the Company. The Scheme has

been approved by stack exchanges vide observation letter dated June 27, 2024, As a subsequent step, the Company will now file the Scheme before the Hon'ble Natronal Company Law Tribunal. Chandigath Bench for the
necessary directions

32 The Company has not taken any denvative instruments during the year ended 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 Nif)

33 The Company has used i (Tally) for mai 18 1ts books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further there are no mstance of audit trail feature betng tampered with.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accottntants Antelopus Energy Private Limited
Fum Reglslmunn Number . 301003E/E300005 SIVA Digitally signed
Digtaly sgned by Haman SAMARENDRA Dty sgneasy Py
Agarwat y SIVA KUMAR
on m-umumgri Nama n KAMALESH  souisn gg'rIY‘I-IIAEF;ALL A
ROYCHAUDHU RarcHAuHugy Date:2024.07.17
e 2074 817 :gi%‘ Ag arwa I RY Bute 20240747 1 153052 +05'30°
per Naman Agarwal dra Kamalesh Roychaudhury) (Siva Kumar Pothepalli)
Partner Durector Director
Membership no: 502405 DIN 02773152 DIN 08368463
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
SANJAY Digltally signed by
SANJAY KUMAR
KU M AR Date: 2024.07.17
15:52:19 +05'30"
(Samgay Kumar)
Company Secretary
Membershup no.. A43804
Place: Gurugram Place’ Gurupram
Date: July 17. 2024 Date. July 17. 2024

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEFTING OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED (“*COMPANY™) HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, THE 22%? DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2023 AT THE QUORUM, TWO HORIZON
CENTER, GOLF COURSE ROAD, DLF PHASE-V, SECTOR-43, GURGAON, HARYANA-122002
FROM 04: 30 P.M. TO 07:00 P.M.

APPROVAL TO THE DRAFT COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN
ANTELOPUS ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED AND SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREFHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and Section
52 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 (“Act™), the applicable provisions of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment or anmendment thereof), the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956, the
Sceurities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (~“SEBI Listing Regulations”), SEBI Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFLY/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June
20, 2023 (SEBI Circular™) and circulars and notifications issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
india (“SEBI"). enabling provisions of the Memoranduin of Association and Articles of Association of the
t ompany and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, subject to necessary approvals / consents /
sanctions and permissions of the members. creditors. debenture holders (as applicable) and other classes of
persons, if any. sanction of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT™) or
such other competent authority, as may be applicable, SEBI, BSE Limited ("BSE”) and National Siock
Lxchange of India [.imited (“NSE”), Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas of the government of India
(*MoPNG™) and other statutory / regulatory authorities, as may be required, (collectively referred to as
“Regulatory Authorities”) and such other approvals / consents / sanctions / permissions / exemplions, as
may be required under applicable laws, regulations, listing regulations and guidelines issued by the
Regulatory Authorities and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed
by the NCLT or by the Regulatory Authorities, while granting such approvals / consents / sanctions .
perriissions / exemptions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”),
which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by
the Board or any person(s) which the Board may nominate to cxercise its powers including the powers
conferred by this resolution and pursuant to recommendation received from the Audil Committee and the
Committee of Independent Directors, consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the draft
Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Antelopus LEnergy Private Limited ("Anielopus™ or
~Transferor Company”) and Selan Exploration Technology Limited ("Selan" or “Company™ or
"Transferec Company") and their respective shareholders and creditors ("Scheme™). providing for. inter
alia, the reduction of the capital of the Transferor Company and amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with and into the Transferee Company in the manner set out in the Scheme, a copy of which was placed
before the Board and initialled by the Chairman for the purpose of identification.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Appointed Date for the Scheme shall be April 1, 2023 or such other
date as may be fixed by the NCLT or any other Regulatory Authority and accepted by the Board of
Directors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report dated November 22, 2023 issued by Bansi S. Mehta Valuers
L.I.P, Registered Valuer having IBBI Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2022/172 (“Amalgamation Sharc

Registered Office: S \ Corporate Office:

Limit No. 455-457, 4% Floor, IMD . C \'o 8™ floor, Imperia Mindspace
Mecgapolis. Sector-48. Sohna Road. ' ‘ ‘ Golf Course Extension Road.
Giurgaon, Haryana-122018 b Sector 62, Gurgaon 122 107
CIN No.: 1 74899HRI985PLCEHI3196 : Haryana,

Lmail: admin i selanoil.com LI

~Tm s

Website: www.selanoil.com
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Entitlement Report™), recommending the share exchange ratio for the Scheme placed before the Board, be
and is hereby taken on record, adopted and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report dated November 22, 2023 issued by IIFL. Securities l.imited.
SEBI registered Category I Merchant Banker, having SEBI Registration No. INM000010940 (“Fairness
Opinion Report”), on the fairness of share exchange ratio as recommended in the Amalgamation Share
Entitlement Report [or the Scheme placed before the Board, be and is hereby taken on record, adopted and
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certificatec dated November 22, 2023 issued by V. Sankar Aivar &
Co. Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 109208W). Statutory Auditors of the Company.
confirming that the accounting treatment contained in the proposed Scheme is in compliance with the
accounting standards prescribed under the provisions of Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other generally accepted accounting principles in India, be and is hereby taken on
record, adopted and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in terms of Para A(10) of Part I of the SEBI Circular, the Scheme is
required to be approved by the public shareholders of the Transferee Company and shall be acted upon only
if votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of the Scheme are more than the number of votes cast
against if.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of Audit Committee recommending the Scheme, as placed
before the Board, duly signed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee, be and is herebv adopted and taken
on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of Committee of Independent Directors recommending the
Scheme, as placed before the Board, duly signed by the Chairman of the Committee of Independent
Directors, be and is herehy adopted and taken on record.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the disclosure to be submitted to the stock exchanges in connection with
the proposed Scheme, for and on behalf of the Company, under Regulation 30 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations, a capy of which was tabled before the Board and duly initialled by the Company Sccretary for
the purpose of identification, be and is hercby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby designates 13SE Limited ("BSL™), as the Designated
Stock LExchange (“DSE™) for the purpose of coordinating with SEBI in respect of the Scheme and other
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the report of the Board explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class
ol shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter sharcholders and laying out the
share exchange ratio, as required to be annexed to the notice and explanatory statement as per the
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, placed before the Board, duly initialled by the Chairman for the
purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved and adopted and that all the Directors of the Company
be and are hereby severally authorised to sign the same on behalf of the Board.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all necessary actions be initiated for obtaining the requisite approvals or
consents of the members, creditors, debenture holders (as applicable) and other classes of persons, if any.
sanction of the NCLT, SEBI. BSE. NSE. MoPNG and/or the Regulatory Authorities, whose approval /
consent / sanction / permission / exemption is required under the applicable laws for the Scheme.

SN
Registered Office: v ) .- mé\c\ Corporate Office:

LUinit No. 455-457. 4% Floor, JMD -~ \‘ 8" flour, Imperia Mindspace,
\Megupolis. Sector-48, Sohna Road. : —’ v Golf Course Lxtenston Roud,
Cnrgaon. Harvana-122018 Sector 62, Gurgaon 122 107
CIN No: 1 74899HR1985PL 113196 Harvana.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the above, the consent of the Board be and is hereby
accorded to appoint a legal firm, as authorized representatives to appear, represent and appoint any Counsel
in this respect to represent the Company before the NCLT and other Regulatory Authorities in relation the
aforementioned Scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company, Ms. Yogita (PAN: AMFPY56854)
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. Mr. Raajeev Tirupati (PAN: AMXPR7210L) Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, be and are hereby severally authorised (herein after referred to as “Authorised
Persons™), for and on behalf of the Board and the Company, fo do all things and take such steps as may be
necessary/in connection with or incidental 1o giving effect to the above resolution ur as may be otherwise
required in relation to the Scheme, including the following:

a)

b)

<)

f)

to engage, hire, appoint and remove one or more counsel, advocate, law firm, solicitor, pleader,
merchant banker, advisor and/or valuer for the purpose of the Scheme to represent and act on behalf of
the Company in the proceedings before the NCL'T and/or the Regulatory Authorities and to deal with
the concerned offices of the Regional Director of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Registrar of
Companies, Official Liquidator, Income tax authorities, BSE, NSLE, SEBI and other Regulatory
Authorities in any matter related to the Scheme;

to do all such acts as may be required to be complied with under Section 230 to 232 read with Section
06 and Section 52 and other applicable provisions of the Act and under SEBI Listing Regulations and
SEBI Circular;

to make necessary applications. petitions and appeals for the purpose lor oblaining requisite approvals
and to take all steps necessary in that regard including in-principle approvals as and when required
from SEBI, BSE, NSE or other Regulatory Authoritics, if’ any obtaining dispensation for holding
meeting of credilors of the Company and approvals/ no-objeclion certificates/ consent affidavits [rom
shareholders/ creditors or entities or agencies or any other third parties as may be applicable:

to make. prepare, swear, sign, affirm, declare, execute and {ile applications, petitions, affidavits,
vakalatnamas, declarations, announcements and such other documents with the NCLT and/or other
Regulatory Authorities on behalf of the Company. jointly or severally with the Transferor Company.
as may be necessary, and to obtain directions for convening / dispensing meetings of the shareholders.
creditors. debenture holders (as applicable) and / or any other class of persons for sanction of the
Scheme and to sign and issue public advertisements and notices in connection with the Scheme;

to make such amendment(s), alteration(s) and modification(s) in the Scheme or any part thereof, us
may be desirable, expedient or deem fit by the Board of Directors, and/or for satisfying the
conditions/requirement imposed by the NCLT, and/or any other Regulatory Authorities, as may be
required, provided that prior approval of the Board shall be obtained for making any material changes
in the said Scheme as approved in this meeting;

to give such directions as they may consider necessary to settle any question or difficulty arising under
the Scheme or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of the Scheme or in any manner
whatsoever connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various
conditions of the Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent permissible under law);

Resistered Office: /7 Z\ON 7'50 Corporate Office:
[
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to file requisite forms or replies with the concerned offices of Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar
of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, MoPNG or any Regulatory Authorities in
connection with the Scheme during the process of sanction thereof and during the implementation of
the Scheme;

to approve withdrawal (and where applicable, refiling) of the Scheme and to make changes in the
Scheme at any stage, including but without limitation, in case any changes and/or modifications are
suggested/required to be made in the Scheme or any condition suggested, required or imposed,
whether by any shareholder, creditor, SEBI, BSE,, NSE, NCI.T. MoPNG and/or any other Regulatory
Authority, which are acceptable to the Board, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as he
they may deem necessary and desirable in connection therewith and incidental thereto:

to suitably inform. apply and/or represent to the Central and/or State Government(s) and/or local or
other Regulatory Authorities/ agencies, including but not limited to SEBI, BSE, NSE, MoPNG,
Collector of Stamps, Office of Registrar/Sub-Registrar, Office of the Registrar of Trademarks, Central
Board of Indirect Taxes and Customs, Income Tax Authorities, Provident Fund authorities, and all
other Regulatory Authorities. agencies. etc. (as may be applicable). and/or to represent the Company
before the said authoritics and agencics;

to obtain the certified copy of order passed by the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme, and file the same
with the concerned Registrar of Companies, respective offices of Collector of Stamps for adjudication
of stamp duty at applicable rates in force, and other Regulatory Authorities:

to make. prepare, sign, alfirm, execute and file all agreements. contracts, deeds and such other
documents on hehalf of the Company, jointly or severally with the Transferor Company, in relation to
transfer of assets and properties (movable or immovable) of the ‘Iransferor Company to the Company,
upon the Scheme coming into cffect with cffect from the Appointed Date;

to do all the acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required for seeking approval of the members in
terms of the Act and any other rules or circular(s) issued thereunder. as may he applicable:

to authenticate and repister any document, agreement, instrument. proceeding and record of the
Company;

to incur such expenses as may be necessary with regard to the above transaction, including payment of
fees to counsels, advocates, solicitors. merchant bankers, advisors, valuers. registrars and other
agencies and such other expenses that may be incidental to the above, as may be decided by them; and

to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient in
connection with or incidental to giving effect to this resofution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Persons of the Company be and arc hereby severally
authorised to affix the common seal of the Company in terms of its Articles of Association if so required,
on any document including applications, petitions, affidavits, agreements, undertakings, deeds, documents.
writings, etc. in connection with this resolution, that may be required to be executed under the common seal
of the Company and for this purpose the common seal of the Company be and is hereby permitted to be
taken out from its registered office.

Registered Oftiee:
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certified copy of this resolution be issued under the signature of any
one of the Directors of the Company or any of the Authorised Persons of the Company to the concerned
appropriate authorities or entities as and when necessary.”

For SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Yogii(a
Company Sceretary

Date: 2')’" ’13
Place: wa’nqh,

Registered Office: Corporate Office;

Uit No. 455-457, 4™ Floor, JIMD 8" floor, [mperia Mindspace.
Mecgapolis, Scctor-48, Sohna Road, Golf Course Extension Road.
tiurgeon, Haryana-122018 Sector 62 Gurgaon 122 102
CIN No.: L74899HR1985PL.C 113196 Haryana
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Ministry Of Corporate Affairs - MCA Services

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs

Company Information

Date : 07-06-2024 2:28:28 pm

CIN

Company Name
ROC Name
Registration Number
Date of Incorporation

Email Id
Registered Address

Adadress at which the books of account are to be
maintained

Listed in Stock Exchange(s) (Y/N)
Category of Company

Subcategory of the Company

L74899HR 1985PLC113196

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
ROC Dclhi

113196

05/07/1985

cs@selanoil.com

Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor, JMD Mecgapolis, Scctor -48, Sohna Road, Gurgaon, Gurgaon,
Gurgaon, Haryana, India, 122018

Yes
Company limited by shares

Non-government company

Class of Company Public
ACTIVE compliance -
Authorised Capital (Rs) 30,00,00,000
Paid up Capital (Rs) 15,20,00,000
Date of last AGM 29/09/2023
Date of Balance Sheet 31/03/2023
Company Status Active
Jurisdiction
ROC (name and office) ROC Delhi
RD (name and Region) RD, Northern Region
Index of Charges
Whether
harge Asset
Sr. Charge Holder Date of Date of Date of N
No SRN Charge Id Name Creation  Modification  Satisfaction Amount Address registered  Holder
by other Name
enlity
DAIMLER Unit 202, 2nd Floor, Campus
FINANCIAL . , .

SERVICES 3B,RMZ Millennia,Business
1 R72076060 100210936 INDIA 26/09/2018 - 04/11/2020 29,33,445 Park, No.143, Dr. No -

PRIVATE M.G.R.Road,Perungudi,Chennai,

India, 600096
LIMITED e
DAIMLER Unit 202, 2nd Floor, Campus
FINANCIAL . . -

SERVICES 3B,RMZ Millcnnia,Business

2 R57359473 100126833 INDIA 31/082017 - 16/09/2020 49,37,079 Park, No.143, Dr. No -
M.G.R.Road,Perungudi,Chennai,
PRIVATE Tamil Nadu, India, 600096
LIMITED amil Nadu, India,
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Whether
harge Asset
Sr. Charge Holder Date of Date of Date of e
No SRN Charge Id Name Creation  Modification  Satisfaction ~ ™ount Address registered  Holder
by other Name
entity
9TH FLOOR, NEHRU
VES BANK CENTRE, DISCOVERY OF
3 R36215333 10269494 LIMITED 23/02/2011 04/05/2012 19/03/2020 3,00,00,000 INDIA, DR. ANNIE BESANT No -
ROAD, WORLI, MUMBAI,
Maharashtra, India, 400018
9TH FLOOR, NEHRU
YES BANK CENTRE, DISCOVERY OF
4  GA47146048 10134693 LIMITED 04/12/2008 - 21/06/2017  15,00,00,000 INDIA, DR. ANNIE BESANT No -
ROAD, WORLI, MUMBAI,
Maharashtra, India, 400018
INDUSTRIAL FINANCE
BRANCH, JAWAHAR
STATE BANK VYAPAR BHAWAN,1,
5 B73833584 10082135 OF INDIA 18/12/2007 25/01/2012 30/03/2013  20,00,00,000 TOLSTOY MARG, 14th No -
FLOOR, STC BUILDING,NEW
DELHI, Delhi, India, 110001
9TH FLOOR, NEHRU
YES BANK CENTRE, DISCOVERY OF
6  B72830599 10077233 LIMITED 29/11/2007 29/08/2008 02/04/2013 12,00,00,000 INDIA, DR. ANNIE BESANT No -
ROAD, WORLI, MUMBALI,
Maharashtra, India, 400018
ING VYSYA Narain Manzil,23, Barakhamba
7 A95037602 10060089 BANK ITD 02/07/2007 - 21/09/2010 6,00,00,000 Road,Connaught Place,New No -
‘ Delhi, Delhi, India, 110001
9TH FLOOR NEHRU
YES BANK CENTREDISCOVERY OF
8  AB5559334 10027373 LIMITED 27/11/2006 - 22/04/2010 6,00,00,000 INDIA,DR ANNIE BESANT No -
i ROAD WORLIMUMBAI,
Maharashtra, India, 400018
Yes Bank Dr. AB Road,Mumbai,
9  A41772195 80000047 Limited 15/12/2005 - 18/07/2008 8,00,00,000 Maharashtra, India, 400018 No -
INDUSTRIAL FINANCE
STATE BANK BRANCH; VIJAYA,17;
10 A39416334 90040851 OF INDIA 31/07/1991 24/12/1991 17/05/2008 40,00,000 BARAKHAMBA ROADNEW No -
DELHI, Delhi, India, 110001
INDUSTRIAL
CREDIT & 163.,BACKBAY
11 A00123364 90040790 INVESTMENT  01/01/1991 - 30/03/2006 0 RECLAMATION,BOMBAY, No -
CORPORATION Maharashtra, India, 400020
OF INDIA LTD.
Industrial
Finance Sansad Marg,New Delhi, Delhi
n R f ' N _
12 A00123588 80000044 Corporation of 01/01/1991 28/03/2006 0 India, 110001 No
India
Industrial
Finance Sansad Marg,New Delhi, Delhi,
13 A00123638 80000045 Corporation of 01/01/1991 - 28/03/2006 15,00,000 India, 110001 No -
India
ICICI Bank Backbay Reclamation,Mumbai,
14 A00123299 80000046 Limited 01/01/1991 - 30/03/2006 [4} Maharashtra, India, 400020 No -
Director/Signatory Details
Sr. No DIN/PAN Name Designation Date of Appointment Cessation Date Signatory
1 00121906 RAMAN SINGH SIDHU Director 18/08/2017 - Yes
2 01926119 BAIKUNTHA NATH TALUKDAR Director 30/06/2022 - Yes
3 08237399 SUNITI KUMAR BHAT Managing Director 30/06/2022 - Yes
4 08368463 SIVA KUMAR POTHEPALLI Whole-time dircctor 30/06/2022 - Yes
5 REX5685A YOGITA Company Secretary 01/07/2022 - Yes



6/7/24, 2:28 PM
Sr. No

6

7

DIN/PAN
07585638

09652393

*kXx%7) 0

Name

MANIIT SINGH

VISHRUTA KAUL

TIRUPATT RAAJEEV

Ministry Of Corporate Affairs - MCA Services

Designation Date of Appointment Cessation Date
Director 10/08/2016 -
Director 30/06/2022 -

CFO 23/12/2022 -

Signatory
Yes

Yes

Yes
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GOVERNMENT OF INDIA
MINISTRY OF CORPORATE AFFAIRS

Registrar of Companies

4, New Delhi,4th Floor |IFCI Tower, 61,Dethi,110019,India

Corporate Identity Number:L74899HR1985PLC113196
SECTION 13(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Certificate of Registration of Regional Director order for Change of State

M/s SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED having by special resolution altered the provisions of its
Memorandum of Association with respect to the place of the Registered Office by changing it from the state of Delhi to the

Haryana and such alteration having been confirmed by an order of Regional Director bearing the date 09/01/2023
| hereby certify that a certified copy of the said order has this day been registered.
Given under my hand at New Delhi this TENTH day of JULY TWO THOUSAND TWENTY THREE

Document cerlified by DS DS MINISTRY OF CORPORATE
AFFAIRS (GOVT OF INDIA) 1 <sum| /45};- n1982@gmall.com>.

Mangal Meena

Assistant Registrar of Companies/ Deputy Registrar of Companies/ Registrar of Companies Registrar of Companies
Registrar of Companies

ROC Delhi

Mailing Address as per record available in Registrar of Companies office:

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
Unit No. 455-457, 4th Floor,JMD Megapolis, Sector -48, Sohna Road,Gurgaon,Gurgaon,Gurgaon-122018,Haryana,India
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MEMORANDUM
&
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY
LIMITED
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1.

2.

3.

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

(PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES)

"Memorandum of Association
of
Selan Exploration Technology Limited

The name of the Company is Selan Exploration Technology Limited.

The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the State of Haryana.?

(a) The objects to be pursued by the Company on its incorporation are:

0]

(if)

W)

To carry on in India and any other part of the world the business or businesses of surveying,
prospecting, drilling and exploring for, acquiring, developing, producing, maintaining, refining,
storing, trading, supplying, transporting, marketing, distributing, importing, exporting and
generally dealing in minerals and other natural oils, petroleum and all other forms of solid, liquid
and gaseous hydrocarbons and other minerals and their products and by-products and all their
branches.

To search for, purchase, take on lease or licence, obtain concessions over or otherwise acquire,
any estate or interest in, develop the resources of, work, dispose of, or otherwise turn to account,
land or sea or any other place in India or in any other part of the world containing, or thought
likely to contain, oil, petroleum, petroleum resource or all sources of energy, including but not
limited to alternate sources of energy or other oils in any form, asphalt, bitumen or similar
substances or natural gas, chemicals or any substances used, or which is thought likely to be useful
for any purpose for which petroleum or other oils in any form, asphalt, ‘bitumen or similar
substances, or natural gas is, or could be used and to that end to organise, equip and employ
expeditions, commissions, experts and other agents and to sink wells, to make borings and
otherwise to search for, obtain, exploit, develop, render suitable for trade, petroleum, other
mineral oils, natural gas, asphalt, or other similar substances or products thereof,

To carry on and or invest in the business of manufacturing, producing, processing, generating,
accumulating, distributing, transferring, preserving, mixing, supplying contracting, as
consultants, importers, exporters, buyers, sellers, assemblers, hirers, repairers, dealers,
distributors, stockists, wholesalers, retailers, jobbers, traders, agents, brokers, representatives,
collaborators, of merchandising, marketing, managing, leasing, renting, utilising of electricity,
steam, power, solar energy, wind energy, biomass energy, geothermal energy, hydel energy, tidal
and wave energy, and other conventional, non-conventional and renewable energy sources, waste
treatment plants of all kinds, and equipments thereof in India and outside India.

' This Memorandum of Association was adopted in substitution of the existing Memorandum of Association by way of
resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 15, 2022.

3 The registered office address of the Company was shifted from the National Capital Territory of Delhi to the state of Haryana
with the approval of the members in their meeting held on September 13, 2022

Page 1 of 45

\——

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy

112



(vi)

(vii)

(ix)

To plan, promote, organise, execute, implement, invest and or manage an integrated and efficient
development of Thermal, Hydel, Nuclear power and power through Non-
Conventional/Renewable Energy Sources including generation from municipal or other waste
materials in India and abroad including planning, investigation, research, design and preparation
of preliminary, feasibility and definite project reports, construction, generation, operation &
maintenance, Renovation & Modernisation of power stations and projects, transmission,
distribution, sale of power generated at Stations in India and any other part of the world in
accordance with the national economic policies and objectives laid down by the Central
Government from time to time, the management of front and back-end of nuclear fuel cycle and
ensure safe and efficient disposal of waste.

To carry on the business of consultants and operators of technology in all its aspects and in
particular geological and geophysical exploration, computer technology, electronics,
oceanography, mining, chemical and pharmaceutical line and to exploit technical know-how or
other knowledge from India or and any other part of the world" for setting up industries for own

use or others.

To establish working relationship between business entities of advanced and developing
countries; to provide the specialised services required to move a project through preliminary,
economic evaluations, feasibility studies, technical studies and evaluation and to satisfy all
government regulations relating to the project under consideration, to act as engineers and to
carry on the business of design engineers.

(b). Matters which are necessary for furtherance of the objects specified in Clause 3 (A) are:-

(M)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

To purchase, exchange or otherwise any movable or immovable property and any rights or
privileges which the Company may deem necessary or convenient for the purpose of its main
business.

To enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing profits, union of interest, joint
venture, reciprocal concession or co-operation with persons or companies carrying on or engaged
in the main business or transaction of this Company.

To import, buy, exchange, alter, improve and manipulate in all kinds of plants, machinery,
apparatus, tools and things necessary or convenient for carrying on the main business of the
Company.

To vest any movable or immovable property, rights or interests required by or received or
belonging to the Company in any person or company on behalf of or for the benefit of the
Company and with or without any declared trust in favour of the Company.

To purchase, build, carry out, equip, maintain, alter, improve, develop, manage, work, control and
superintend any plants, warehouse, sheds, offices, shops, stores, buildings, machinery, apparatus,
labour lines, and houses, warehouses, and such other works and conveniences necessary for
carrying on the main business of the Company.

To carry on in India or elsewhere the business of laying, repairing or servicing of onshore and
offshore pipelines and oil well control equipment, seabed mining and other allied activities and for
this purpose to enter into technical collaborations for obtaining technology in relation to the same.

To carry on in India or elsewhere either independently or in collaboration with any body corporate,
the business of buying, selling, letting on hire or hire purchase on easy payment system,
exploration vessels, survey ships, under water exploration equipment, oil drilling rigs, offshore
platforms, ships, tankers, offshore floating production and storage and sub-sea pipe lines and
vessels of all kinds and description, motors, machinery, mechanical and other parts, tools, plants,

Page 2 of 45
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(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

appliances, apparatus, requisites and accessories, employed and used for the purpose of drilling,
exploration transportation and commercial production of hydrocarbons, oil, gas, ores and minerals.

To enter into any arrangements with any Government or Authorities or any persons or companies
that may seem conducive to the main objects of the Company or any of them and to obtain from
any such Government, authority, person or company any rights, charters, contracts, licenses and
concessions which the Company may think desirable to obtain and to carry out, exercise and
comply therewith.

To apply for, tender, purchase or otherwise acquire any contracts, sub-contracts, licenses and
concessions for or in relation to the objects or business herein mentioned or any of them and to
undertake, carry out, execute, dispose of or otherwise turn to account the same.

To acquire and undertake, manage or maintain the whole or any part of the business, property and
liabilities of any person, firm or Company carrying on any business which the Company is
authorised to carry on or be possessed of property suitable for the purposes of the Company.

To establish and maintain agencies, branches, places and procure the Company to be registered,
or recognised and to carry on business in any part of the world.

To be interested in promoting and undertaking the formation and establishment of such
institutions, business or companies (industrial, trading, manufacturing or other) as may be
considered to be conducive to the business of the Company.

To promote any Company or companies for the purpose of acquiring all or any of the property,
rights and liabilities of this Company.

To enter into, make and perform contracts and arrangements of every kind and description for any
lawful purpose with any person, firm, association, corporate body, municipality, body politic,
territory, province, state, government or colony or dependency thereof, without limit as to amount,
and to obtain from any government or authority any rights, privileges, contracts and concessions
which the Company may deem desirable to obtain, and to carry out, exercise or comply with any
such arrangements, rights, privileges, contracts and concessions.

Subject to Section 179 of the Act, to borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such
manner and on such terms and with such rights, powers and privileges as may be thought fit, and
in particular, by the issue of or upon bonds, debentures, bills of exchange, promissory notes or
other obligations or securities of the Company and with a view thereto to mortgage the
undertaking and, all or any immovable property, present or future, and charge all or any of the
uncalled capital for the time being of the Company and to purchase, redeem or pay off any such
securities.

To draw, make, accept, discount, execute and issue bills of exchange, promissory notes bills of
lading, warrants, debentures and such other negotiable or transferable instruments, of all types or
securities and to open Bank Accounts of any type and to operate the same in the ordinary course
of the Company.

To lend money or property on mortgage of immovable property or on hypothecation or pledge of
movable property or without securities to such person and on such terms as may seem expedient
and to guarantee the performance of contracts by such persons or companies, but not amounting
to banking business as defined under the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 as amended from time
to time,
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(xviii) Subject to Section 73 of the Act, to receive money on deposit or loan upon such terms as may be

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

(xxvii)

thought fit, provided however, that the Company shall not do any business as defined under the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as amended from time to time.

To issue as fully paid or partly paid up any shares or securities of the Company in consideration
of any property transferred or services rendered to the Company and to accept as consideration
for any property sold or disposed of by the Company, fully or partly paid-up shares or securities
of any other company having objects similar to those of the Company.

Subject to Section 182 of the Act, to make donations to such persons or institutions and in such
cases and either of cash or any other assets as may be thought, directly or indirectly, conducive to
any of the Company’s, objects or otherwise expedient, and in particular to remunerate any person
or corporations introducing business to this Company and to subscribe or guarantee money for
charitable or benevolent or useful objects and to establish and support or aid in the establishment
and support of associations and institutions, funds, trusts and conveniences for the benefit of the
employees or ex-employees or of persons having dealings with the company or the dependants or
relatives or connections of such persons and in particular, friendly, other benefit societies and to
grant pensions, allowances, gratuity, bonus either by way of annual payments or a lump sum to
make payments towards insurance and to form and contribute to provident benefit funds, to or
such persons.

Subject to the provisions of Section 179 to 183 of the Act, to subscribe contribute, gift or money,
rights or assets for any national educational, religious, charitable, scientific, public, general or
usual objects or to make gifts or such other assets to any institutions, clubs, societies, associations,
trusts, scientific research associations, funds, universities, college or any individual, body of
individuals or bodies corporate.

To grant aid, scholarships, subsidy, loans etc. for advance studies in connection with the objects
of this company in or outside India to deserving persons where the Company is assured of good
returns for the attainment of the objectives of the Company

To act as technical and financial consultants, management consultants, marketing, production and
personnel consultants, engineering consultants, material management, productivity,
rationalisation and industrial relation consultants and consultancy in all its aspects, undertake
technical mechanical studies, project appreciation, process selection and process engineering,
project co-ordination & management, architectural, civil engineering services, plant engineering,
procurement services, construction services, supervision services, start up services, turn key
services and other additional services for setting up of technological industries.

To purchase or take on lease or acquire by licence, concession, grant or otherwise any buildings,
easements, rights, and privilege, machinery, plant and all other effects which the Company may
from time to time think proper to be acquired for any of its purposes.

To construct, maintain and improve or subscribe towards the construction, maintenance and
improvement of roads, waterworks and canals and also of tramways, railways, and other roads
and ways and quays and wharves, for the purposes of the Company and for access to the lands,
works and properties of the Company or to connect the same with other lines of communication

To establish well equipped laboratories and to bring any analytical, experimental and other work
or undertaking in relation to general objects of the business

To adopt such means of making known the business and products of the Company or dealt with
by the Company as may seem expedient and in particular by advertising in press, by circular, by
purchase and exhibitions of works of art or interest, by publication of books and periodicals and
by granting prizes, rewards and donations.
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(xxviii)

(xxix)

(xxx)

(xxxi)

(xxxii)

(xxxiii)

(xxxiv)

(xxxv)

(xxxvi)

To undertake or promote scientific research relating to the main business or class of business of
the Company.

To takeover the whole or any part of the business, goodwill, trade-marks properties and liabilities
of any person or persons, firm, companies or undertakings either existing or new, engaged in or
carrying on or proposing to carry on business this Company is authorised to carry on, possession
of any propetty or rights suitable for the purpose of the Company and to pay for the same either
in cash or in shares or partly in cash and partly in shares or otherwise.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, to amalgamate with any other company of which all or any
of their objects companies having similar to the objects of the Company in any manner whether
with or without the liquidation.

Subject to any law for the time being in force, to undertake or take part in the formation,
supervision or control of the business or operations of any person, firm, body corporate,
association undertaking carrying on the main business of the Company.

To apply for, obtain, purchase or otherwise and prolong and renew any patents, patent-rights,
brevets, inventions, processes, scientific technical or other assistance, manufacturing processes
know-how and other information, patterns, copyrights, trade-marks, licenses concessions and the
like rights or benefits, conferring an exclusive or non-exclusive or limited or unlimited right of
use thereof, which may seem capable of being used for or in connection with the main objects of
the Company or the acquisition or use of which may seem calculated directly or indirectly to
benefit the Company on payment of any fee royalty or other consideration and to use, exercise or
develop the same under or grant licenses in respect thereof or otherwise deal with same and to
spend money in experimenting upon testing or improving any such patents, inventions, right or
concessions.

To negotiate and enter into agreements and contracts with Indian and foreign individuals,
companies, corporations and such other organizations for technical, or any other such assistance
for carrying out all or any the main objects of the Company or for the purpose of activity research
and development of manufacturing projects on the basis of know-how, or technical collaboration
and necessary formulas and patent rights for furthering the main objects of the Company.

To apply for and obtain any order under any Act or Legislature, charter, privilege concession,
license or authorisation of any Government, State or other Authority for enabling the Company
to carry on any of its main objects into effect or for extending any of the powers of the Company
or for effecting and modification of the constitution of the Company or for any other such purpose
which may seem expedient and to oppose any proceedings or applications which may seem
expedient or calculated directly or indirectly to prejudice the interest of the Company.

To procure the Company to be registered or recognised in or under the laws of any place outside
India and to do all act necessary for carrying on in any foreign country for the business or
profession of the Company.

To advance, lend, money either with or without security, and to such persons and upon such terms
and conditions as the Company may deem fit and also to deal with the money of the Company not
immediately required.

(xxxvii) To undertake and execute any trusts, the undertaking of which may seem to the Company

desirable, either gratuitously or otherwise.

(xxxviii)To establish, or promote or concur in establishing or promote any company for the purpose of

dealing all or any of the properties, rights and liabilities of the Company.
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(xxxix) To sell, mortgage, exchange, grant licenses and other rights improve, manage, develop and

(D)

xli)

(xlii)

(xliii)

(xliv)

xlv)

(xlvi)

(xlvii)

(xlviii)

dispose of undertakings, properties, assets and effects of the company or any part thereof for such
consideration as may be expedient and in particular for any shares, stocks, debentures or other
securities of any other such company having main objects altogether or in part similar to those of
the Company.

Subject to the provisions of Act, to distribute among the members in specie or otherwise any
property of the Company or any proceeds of sale or disposal of any property of the Company in
the event of winding up.

To distribute as dividend or bonus among the member or to place to reserve or otherwise to apply,
as the Company may, from time to time, determine any money received by way of premium on
debentures issued at a premium by the Company and any money received in respect of forfeited
shares, money arising from the sale by the Company of forfeited shares subject to the provisions
of Sec. 52 of the Act.

To employ agents or experts to investigate and examine into the conditions, prospects value,
character and circumstances of any business concerns and undertakings and generalty of any
assets properties or rights which the Company purpose to acquire.

To create any reserve fund, sinking fund, or any other such special funds whether for depreciation,
repairing, improving, research, extending or maintaining any of the properties of the Company or
for any other such purpose conducive to the interest of the Company.

To establish and maintain or procure the establishment and maintenance of any contributory or
non-contributory pension or superannuation, provident or gratuity funds for the benefit of and
give of procure the giving of the gratuities pensions, allowances, bonuses or emoluments of any
persons who are or were at any time in the employment or service of the company or any company
which is a subsidiary of the Company or is allied to or associated with the Company or with any
such subsidiary company or who are or were at any time Directors or officers of the Company or
any other company as aforesaid and the wives, widows, families and dependents of any such
persons and also to establish and subsidise and subscribe to any institutions, associations, club or
funds calculated to be for the benefit of or advance aforesaid and make payments to any such
persons as aforesaid and to do any of the matters aforesaid, either alone or in conjunction with
any such other company as aforesaid.

To establish, for any of the main objects of the Company, branches or to establish any firm or
firms at places in or outside India as the Company may deem expedient.

To pay for any property or rights acquired by or for any services rendered to the Company and in
particular to remunerate any person, firm or company introducing business to the company either
in cash or fully or partly-paid up shares with or without preferred or deferred rights in respect of
dividend or repayment of capital or otherwise or by any securities which the company has power
to issue or by the grant of any rights or options or partly in one mode and partly in another and
generally on such terms as the company may determine.

To pay out of the funds of the company all costs, charges and expenses of and incidental to the
formation and registration of the company and any company promoted by the company and also
all costs, charges, duties, impositions and expenses of and incidental to the acquisition by the
company of any property or assets.

To send out to foreign countries, its director, employees or any other person or persons for
investigation possibilities of main business or trade procuring and buying any machinery or
establishing trade and business connections or for promoting the interests of the company and to
pay all expenses incurred in the connection.
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(xlix) To compensate for loss of office of any Managing Director or Directors or other officers of the
Company within the limitations prescribed under the Companies Actor such other statute or rule
having the force of law and to make payments to any person whose office of employment or duties
may be determined by virtue of any transaction in which the Company is engaged. -

()] To agree to refer to arbitration any dispute, present or future between the Company and any other
company, firm, individual or any other body and to submit the same to arbitration in India or
abroad either in accordance with Indian or any foreign system of law.

(1i) To appoint agents, sub-agents, dealers, managers canvassers, sales, representatives or salesmen
for transacting all or any kind of the main business of which this Company is authorised to carry
on and to constitute agencies of the Company in India or in any other country and establish depots
and agencies in different parts of the world.

(lii) To invest and deal with the money of the Company not immediately required in any manner and
in particular to accumulate funds or to acquire or take by subscription, purchase or otherwise
howsoever or to hold shares or stock in or the security of the company, association or undertaking
in India or abroad.

(liii)  To do all such other things as incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above objects.

The Liability of the member(s) is limited, and this liability is limited to the amount unpaid, if any,
on the shares held by them.

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Crores Only)
divided into 2,90,00,000 (Two Hundred and Ninety Lakhs Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupee
Ten) each; 1,00,000 (One Lakh Only) Preference shares of Rs. 100 (Rupees One Hundred Only)
each.”
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We the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed, are desirous of being formed into a Company
in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the
Capital of the Company set opposite to our respective names:

Names, addresses, | No. of Shares taken by | Signature of subscriber Signature, names,
descriptions and | each subscriber addresses, descriptions
occupations of subscribers and occupations of

withesses
Sd/ One Hundred (100) | Sd/- Sd/-
Amalendu Gupta shares Kathy Hubbard,
S/o Late Shri Atul Ranjan D/o Mr. Richard
Gupta Hubbard,
3211 Laverne, Houston, 8701, Town Park 3220,
Texas 77080 Houston, Texas 77036,
U.S.A. US.A
Exploration Consultant Consultant
Sd/- One Hundred (100) | Sd/- Sd/-
Anubha Gupta shares Kathy Hubbard,
W/o Mr. Amalendu Gupta D/o Mr, Richard
3211 Laverne, Houston, Hubbard,
Texas 77080 8701, Town Park 3220,
U.S.A. Houston, Texas 77036,
Teacher US.A

Consultant
Sd/- One Hundred (100) | Sd/- Sd/-
Rajinder Nath Kapur shares A. Venkateshwaran
S/o Late Shri Niranjan Das S/o R. Appasawamy Iyer
Kapur 8, Lady Harding Road,
D-2, West End, New New Delhi-110001

Delhi-110021
Chartered Accountant

Chartered Accountant
M. No. 2144

TOTAL

Three Hundred (300)
shares

New Delhi dated this 19% day of June 1985

e

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
2ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF

SELAN EXPLORATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(The “Company” incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

1. Applicability of Table F

a. The regulations contained in Table “F” in the Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013,
shall apply to the Company only in so far as the same are not provided for or are not
inconsistent with these Articles.

b. The regulations for the management of the Company and for the observance of the
members thereof and their representatives shall be such as are contained in these
Articles subject however to the exercise of the statutory powers of the Company in
respect of repeal, additions, alterations, substitution, modifications and variations
thereto by special resolution as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Definitions and Interpretation

A. Definitions

In the interpretation of these Articles the following words and expressions shall have the
following meanings unless repugnant to the subject or context.

a. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 along with the relevant Rules made there under,
in force and any statutory amendment thereto or replacement thereof and including any
circulars, notifications and clarifications issued by the relevant authority under the
Companies Act, 2013 Reference to Act shall also include the Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India constituted under the Company
Secretaries Act, 1980.

b. “Annual General Meeting” shall mean a General Meeting of the holders of Shares held
annually in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

c. “Articles” shall mean these articles of association as adopted or as from time to time
altered in accordance with the provisions of these Articles, Companies Act, 19560r this
Act.

d. “Auditors” shall mean and include those persons appointed as such by the Company.

e. “Board” or “Board of Directors” shall mean the collective board of directors of the
Comipany, as duly called and constituted from time to time, in accordance with Law
and the provisions of these Articles.

f. “Board Meeting” shall mean any meeting of the Board, as convened from time to time
and any adjournment thereof, in accordance with law and the provisions of these
Articles.

2 This Articles of Association was adopted in substitution of the existing Articles of Association by way of resolution passed
at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 15, 2022.
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. “Business Day” shall mean a day on which scheduled commercial banks are open for
normal banking business;

. “Capital” or “Share Capital” shall mean the authorized share capital of the Company.

“Chairman” shall mean such person as is nominated or appointed in accordance with
Article 28 herein below.

“Companies Act, 1956 shall mean the Companies Act, 1956 (Act I of 1956), to the
extent that such provisions have not been repealed or superseded by the Companies Act,
2013 or de-notified.

. “Company” or “this Company” shall mean Selan Exploration Technology Limited.
“Committees” shall mean committee of the Board of Directors.

. “Depositories Act” shall mean The Depositories Act, 1996 and shall include any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof.

. “Director” shall mean any director of the Company, including alternate directors,
independent directors and nominee directors appointed in accordance with the Law and
the provisions of these Articles.

. “Dividend” shall include interim and final dividends.

. “Equity Share Capital” shall mean the total issued and paid-up equity share capital of
the Company, calculated on a fully diluted basis.

. “Equity Shares” shall mean fully paid-up equity shares of the Company having a par
value of INR 10 (Rupees Ten) per equity share of the Company, or any other issued
Share Capital of the Company that is reclassified, reorganized, reconstituted or
converted into equity shares of the Company

“Executor” or “Administrator” shall mean a person who has obtained probate or letters
of administration, as the case may be, from a court of competent jurisdiction and shall
include the holder of a succession certificate authorizing the holder thereof to negotiate
or transfer the Shares or other Securities of the deceased Shareholder and shall also
include the holder of a certificate granted by the Administrator-General appointed under
the Administrator Generals Act, 1963.

. “Employee Stock Option” shall have the same meaning as provided under Section 2(37)
of the Act.

“Extraordinary General Meeting” shall mean an extraordinary general meeting of the
holders of Equity Shares duly called and constituted in accordance with the provisions
of the Act.

. “Financial Year” shall mean any fiscal year of the Company, beginning on April [ of
each calendar year and ending on March 31 of the following calendar year
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v. “Independent Director” means an independent director referred to in sub-section(6) of
section 149 of the Act.

w. “Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)” shall mean the persons as defined in Section 2(51)
of the Act.

x. “Law/Laws” shall mean all applicable provisions of all (i} constitutions, treaties,
statutes, laws (including the common law), codes, rules, regulations, circulars,
ordinances or orders of any governmental authority and SEBI, (ii) governmental
approvals, (iif) orders, decisions, injunctions, judgments, awards and decrees of or
agreements with any governmental authority, (iv) rules or guidelines for compliance,
of any stock exchanges, (v) international treaties, conventions and protocols, and (vi)
Indian GAAP or Ind-AS or any other generally accepted accounting principles.

y. “Memorandum” shall mean the Memorandum of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time.

z. “Office” shall mean the Registered Office of the Company.
aa. “Paid-up” shall include the amount credited as paid up.

bb. “Person” shall mean any natural person, sole proprietorship, partnership, company,
body corporate, governmental authority, joint venture, trust, association or other entity
(whether registered or not and whether or not having separate legal personality).

cc. “Postal Ballot” means voting by post or through any electronic mode as per the
provisions of section 2 (65) of the Act.

dd. “Register of Members™ shall mean the register of Shareholders to be kept pursuant to
Section 88 of the Act.

ee. “Registrar” shall mean the Registrar of Companies, from time to time having
jurisdiction over the Company.

ff. “Rules” shall mean the rules made under the Act and as notified from time to time.
gg. “Seal” shall mean the common seal(s) of the Company, if any.

hh. “SEBI” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.

ii. “SEBI Listing Regulations™ shall mean the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, any statutory amendment thereto and any listing
agreement entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges.

ji- “Securities” or “securities” shall mean any Share (including Equity Shares), scrips,
stocks, bonds, debentures, warrants or options whether or not, directly or indirectly
convertible into, or exercisable or exchangeable into or for Equity Shares, and any other

marketable securities.

kk. “Shares” or “shares” shall mean any share issued in the Share Capital of the Company,
including Equity Shares and preference shares.

1. “Shareholder” or “shareholder” or “member” shall mean any shareholder of the

b

Afnaan Siddiqui (Advocate)
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Company, from time to time.

”Shareholders™ Meeting” shall mean any meeting of the Shareholders of the Company,

including Annual General Meetings as well as Extraordinary General Meetings,
convened from time to time in accordance with the Act, applicable Laws and the
provisions of these Articles.

“Stock Exchanges™ shall mean BSE Ltd., the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited and any other recognised stock exchange in India where the Securities of the
Company are listed.

“Depository” means a depository as defined in clause (e) of sub-section (1) of section
2 of the Depositories Act, 1996.

“Working Days” shall mean all days in a week except Sunday, Saturdays and other
public holidays

Interpretation

In these Articles (unless the context requires otherwise):

a.

b.

References to a person shall, where the context permits, include such person’s respective
successors, legal heirs and permitted assigns.

The descriptive headings of Articles are inserted solely for convenience of reference and
are not intended as complete or accurate descriptions of content thereof and shall not be
used to interpret the provisions of these Articles and shall not affect the construction of
these Articles.

References to articles and sub-articles are references to Articles and sub-articles of and
to these Articles unless otherwise stated and references to these Articles include
references to the articles and sub-articles herein.

Words importing the singular include the plural and vice versa, pronouns importing a
gender include each of the masculine, feminine and neuter genders, and where a word or
phrase is defined, other parts of speech and grammatical forms of that word or phrase
shall have the corresponding meanings.

Wherever the words “include,” “includes,” or “including” is used in these Articles, such
words shall be deemed to be followed by the words “without limitation”.

The terms “hereof™, “herein”, “hereto”, “hereunder” or similar expressions used in these
Articles mean and refer to these Articles and not to any particular Article of these Articles,
unless expressly stated otherwise

Reference to statutory provisions shall be construed as meaning and including references
also to any amendment or re-enactment for the time being in force and to all statutory
instruments or orders made pursuant to such statutory provisions.

In the event any of the provisions of the Articles are contrary to the provisions of the Act
and the Rules, the provisions of the Act and Rules will prevail.

Expressions in the Act and these Articles

Save as aforesaid, any words or expressions defined in the Act or the Depositories Act or the
SEBI Listing Regulations, shall, as the case may be, if not inconsistent with the subject or
context, bear the same meaning in these Articles.

A. Share capital and variation of rights

a.

The authorised Share Capital of the Company shall be such amount and be divided into
such shares as may be defined from time to time, be provided in Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company as altered from time to time, with such
rights, privileges and conditions respectively attached thereto as may be from time to time
and the Company may reclassify, subdivide, consolidate and increase the Share Capital
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from time to time, as may be thought fit, and upon the subdivision of Shares, apportion
the right to participate in profits in any manner as between the Shares resulting from the
subdivision.

The Company has the power, from time to time, to increase or reduce its subscribed,
authorised, issued and paid-up Share Capital, in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, applicable Laws and these Articles.

The Share Capital of the Company may be classified into Shares with differential rights
as to dividend, voting or otherwise in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Act, Rules, and Law, from time to time.

The Board may, subject to the relevant provisions of the Act and these Articles, allot and
issue Shares as payment or part payment for any property purchased by the Company or
in respect of goods sold or transferred or machinery or appliances supplied or for services
rendered to the Company in or about the formation of the Company or in respect of an
acquisition and/or in the conduct of its business or for any goodwill provided to the
Company; and any Shares which may be so allotted may be issued as fully/partly Paid-
up Shares and if so issued shall be deemed as fully/partly Paid-up Shares.

Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue or by these Articles, any
Share Capital raised by the creation of new Shares, shall be considered as part of the
existing Share Capital and shall be subject to the provisions herein contained with
reference to the payment of calls and instalments, forfeiture, lien, surrender, transfer and
transmission, voting and otherwise.

Any application signed by or on behalf of an applicant for Shares in the Company shall
be an offer to subscribe to the Shares in the Company. An allotment of any Shares therein,
shall be an acceptance of the offer to subscribe to Shares within the meaning of these
Articles and every such allotment shall be at the discretion of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Every person whose offer to subscribe shares in the Company is accepted
by allotment and whose name is entered in the Register of Members, shall for the
purposes of these Articles, be a Shareholder.

The money, (if any), which the Board shall, on the allotment of any Shares being made
by them, require or direct to be paid by way of deposit, call or otherwise, in respect of
any Shares allotted by them, shall immediately on the insertion of the name of the allottee,
in the Register of Members as the name of the holder of such Shares, become a debt due
to and recoverable by the Company from the allottee thereof, and shall be paid by him
accordingly.

Share at the disposal of the Directors

Subject to the provisions of Section 62 and other applicable provisions of the Act, and
these Articles, the shares in the Capital of the Company for the time being (including
any shares forming part of any increased Capital of the Company) shall be under the
control of the Board who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of
them to Persons in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either at a
premium or at par at such time as they may, from time to time, think fit.

Subject to applicable Law, the Directors are hereby authorised to issue Equity Shares
or Debentures (whether or not convertible into Equity Shares) or other securities for
offer and allotment to such of the officers, employees and workers of the Company as
the Directors may decide or the trustees of such trust as may be set up for the benefit of
the officers, employees and workers in accordance with the terms and conditions of
such scheme, plan or proposal as the Directors may formulate. Subject to the consent
of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI, the Directors may impose the condition that the
shares in or debentures of the Company so allotted shall not be transferable for a
specified period.

If, by the conditions of allotment of any share, the whole or part of the amount thereof
shall be payable by instalments, every such instalment shall, when due, be paid to the
Company by the person who, for the time being, shall be the registered holder of the
shares or by his executor or administrator.

Every Shareholder, or his heirs, Executors, or Administrators shall pay to the Company,
the portion of the Capital represented by his share or shares which may for the time
being remain unpaid thereon in such amounts at such time or times and in such manner
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as the Board shall from time to time in accordance with the Articles require or fix for
the payment thereof.

C. Further issue of Share Capital

a. Where at any time, the Company proposes to increase its subscribed capital by the issue
of further shares, such shares shall be offered

i.  to persons who, at the date of the offer, are holders of Equity Shares of the
Company in proportion, as nearly as circumstances admit, to the Paid-up Share
Capital on those shares by sending a letter of offer subject to the following
conditions, namely:

1. the offer shall be made by notice specifying the number of shares offered and
limiting a time not being less than 15 (fifteen) days and not exceeding 30 (thirty)
days or such other time as allowed by the law, from the date of the offer within
which the offer, if not accepted, shall be deemed to have been declined;

2. the offer aforesaid shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by the Person
concerned to renounce the shares offered to him or any of them in favour of any
other Person; and the notice referred to in Article 4(C)(i)1 above shall contain a
statement of this right;

3. after the expiry of the time specified in the notice aforesaid, or on receipt of earlier
intimation from the Person to whom such notice is given that he declines to accept
the shares offered, the Board may dispose of them in such manner which is not
disadvantageous to the Shareholders and the Company

ii.  to employees under a scheme of employees’ stock option, subject to
Special Resolution passed by the Company and subject to the Rules and
such other conditions, as may be prescribed under Law; or

ili.  to any persons, if it is authorised by a Special Resolution, whether or not
those Persons include the Persons referred to in sub-articles (i) or Article
(ii) above, either for cash or for a consideration other than cash at a price
determined in the manner provided under the regulations issued by SEBI
in this regard.

Preference Shares

The Company, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, shall have the power to issue
on a cumulative or noncumulative basis, preference shares in any manner permissible under
the Act and the Directors may, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, exercise such
power in any manner as they deem fit.

Brokerage & Underwriting

a. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company may at any time pay a
commission to any person in connection with the subscription or procurement of
subscription to its securities, whether absolute or conditional, for any shares or
Debentures in the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014,

b. The Company may also, on any issue of shares or Debentures, pay such reasonable
brokerage as may be lawful.

A. Company’s Lien on shares

a. The Company shall have a first and paramount lien:

i. on every share (not being a fully paid share), for all money (whether presently payable
or not) called, or payable at a fixed time, in respect of that share;

ii. on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single
person, for all money presently payable by him or his estate to the Company;

Provided that the Board may, at any time, declare any shares wholly or in part to be exempt
from the provisions of this Article.
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b. The Company’s lien, if any, on the shares, (not being a fully paid share), shall extend
to all Dividends payable and bonuses declared from time to time in respect of such
shares.

c. For the purposes of enforcing such a lien, the Board may sell such partly Paid-up shares,
subject thereto in such manner as the Board shall think fit, and for that purpose may cause
to be issued, a duplicate certificate in respect of such shares and may authorise one of
their Shareholders to execute and register the transfer thereof on behalf of and in the name
of any purchaser. The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase money, nor shall his title to said shares be affected by any irregularity or
invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale of such shares;

Provided that no sale of such shares shall be made:
i. unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or
ii. until the expiration of 14 (fourteen) days after a notice in writing stating and
demanding payment of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as
is presently payable, has been given to the registered holder for the time being of the
share or the person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency.
The net proceeds of any such sale shall be received by the Company and applied in payment
of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. The
residue, if any, shall (subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon
the shares before the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale.

d. No Shareholder shall exercise any voting right in respect of any shares or Debentures
registered in his name on which any calls or other sums presently payable by him have
not been paid, or in regard to which the Company has exercised any right of lien.

e. Subject to the Act and these Articles, the right of lien under this Article 7 shall extend to
other Securities.

Calls

a. Subject to the provisions of Section 49 of the Act, the terms on which any shares may
have been issued and allotted, the Board may, from time to time, by a resolution passed
at a meeting of the Board, make such call as it thinks fit upon the Shareholders in respect
of all money unpaid on the shares held by them respectively and each Shareholder shall
pay the amount of every call so made on him to the Person or Persons and Shareholders
and at the times and places appointed by the Board. A call may be made payable by
instalments. Provided that the Board shall not give the option or right to call on shares
to any person except with the sanction of the Company in the General Meeting.

b. 14 (fourteen) days’ notice in writing at the least of every call (otherwise than on
allotment) shall be given by the Company specifying the time and place of payment,
provided that before the time for payment of such call, the Board may revoke or postpone
the same.

C. The call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Board
authorising such call was passed and may be made payable by the Shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members on such date as shall be fixed by the Board.

d. The joint holder of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all instalments and
calls due in respect thereof.

€. The Board may, from time to time at its discretion, extend the time fixed for the payment
of any call and may extend such time as to all or any of the Shareholders who, from
residence at a distance or other cause the Board may deem fairly entitled to such
extension; but no Shareholders shall be entitled to such extension save as a matter of
grace and favour.

f. Ifany Shareholder or allottee fails to pay the whole or any part of any call or instalment,
due from him on the day appointed for payment t hereof, or any such extension thereof,
he shall be liable to pay interest on the same from the day appointed for the payment to
the time of actual payment at 10 (ten) per cent per annum or such lower rate as shall
from time to time be fixed by the Board but nothing in this Article shall render it
obligatory for the Board to demand or recover any interest from any such Shareholder
and the Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of such interest either wholly or in
part.
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g. Any sum, which by the terms of issue of a share or otherwise, becomes payable on
allotment or at any fixed date or by instalments at a fixed time whether on account of the
nominal value of the share or by way of premium shall for the purposes of these Articles
be deemed to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue
or otherwise the same became payable, and in case of non-payment, all the relevant
provisions of these Articles as to payment of call, interest, expenses, forfeiture or
otherwise shall apply as if such sum became payable by virtue of a call duly made and
notified.

h. On the trial or hearing of any action or suit brought by the Company against any
Shareholder or his legal representatives for the recovery of any money claimed to be due
to the Company in respect of his shares, it shall be sufficient to prove that the name of
the Shareholder in respect of whose shares the money is sought to be recovered appears
entered on the Register of Members as the holder, or one of the holders at or subsequent
to the date at which the money sought to be recovered is alleged to have become due on
the shares; that the resolution making the call is duly recorded in the minute book, and
that notice of such call was duly given to the Shareholder or his representatives so sued
in pursuance of these Articles; and it shall not be necessary to prove the appointment of
the Directors who made such call nor that a quorum of Directors was present at the Board
at which any call was made, nor that the meeting at which any call was made was duly
convened or constituted nor any other matters whatsoever; but the proof of the matters
aforesaid shall be conclusive evidence of the debt and the same shall be recovered by
the Company against the Shareholder or his representative from whom it is ought to be
recovered, unless it shall be proved, on behalf of such Shareholder or his representatives
against the Company that the name of such Shareholder was improperly inserted in the
Register of Members or that the money sought to be recovered has actually been paid.

i. The Company may enforce a forfeiture of shares under Article 11 below notwithstanding
the following : (i) a judgment or a decree in favour of the Company for calls or other
money due in respect of any share; (ii) part payment or satisfaction of any calls or money
due in respect of any such judgement or decree; (iii) the receipt by the Company of a
portion of any money which shall be due from any Shareholder to the Company in
respect of his shares; and (iv) any indulgence granted by the Company in respect of the
payment of any such money.

j. The Board may, if it thinks fit (subject to the provisions of Section 50 of the Act) agree
to and receive from any Shareholder willing to advance the same, the whole or any part
of the money due upon the shares held by him beyond the sums actually called up, and
upon the amount so paid or satisfied in advance or so much thereof as from time to time
and at any time thereafter as exceeds the amount of the calls then made upon and due in
respect of the shares in respect of which such advance has been made, the Company may
pay interest, as the Shareholder paying such sum in advance and the Board may agree
upon; provided that the money paid in advance of calls shall not confer a right to
participate in profits or dividend. Provided always that if at any time after the payment
of any such money the rate of interest so agreed to be paid to any such Member appears
to the Board to be excessive, it shall be lawful for the Board from time to time to repay
to such Member so much of such money as shall then exceed the amount of the calls
made upon such shares in the manner determined by the Board. Provided also that if at
any time after the payment of any money so paid in advance, the Company shall go into
liquidation, either voluntary or otherwise, before the full amount of the money so
advanced shall have become due by the members to the Company, on instalments or
calls, or in any other manner, the maker of such advance shall be entitled (as between
himself and the other Members) to receive back from the Company the full balance of
such moneys rightly due to him by the Company in priority to any payment to members
on account of capital, in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Act.

k. No Shareholder shall be entitled to voting rights in respect of the money (ies) so paid by
him until the same would but for such payment, become presently payable.
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Transfer and Transmission of shares

a.

i

The Company shall record in the Register of Members fairly and distinctly
particulars of every transfer or transmission of any share, Debenture or other
Security held in a material form.

Subject to provisions of the Act, Depositories Act and other applicable laws,
transfer or transmission, as the case may be, of Shares in the Company shall only
be allowed in dematerialized form.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a person entitled to a share by transmission
shall, subject to the right of the Board to retain such Dividends as hereinafter
provided in Article 72(g) be entitled to receive and may give a discharge for any
dividends or other moneys payable in respect of the shares.

The Board shall have power on giving not less than 7 (seven) days prior notice or
such lesser as may be specified by SEBI, by advertisement in a vernacular
newspaper and in an English newspaper in the city, town or village in which the
Office of the Company is situated and by publishing a notice on the website of the
Company, to close the transfer books, the Register of Members and/or Register of
Debenture-holders at such time or times and for such period or periods, not
exceeding 30 (thirty) days at a time and not exceeding in the aggregate 45 (forty-
five) days in each year, as it may deem expedient.

Subject to the provisions of Sections 58 of the Act, these Articles and other
applicable provisions of the Act or any other Law for the time being in force, the
Board may, refuse to issue the letter of confirmation in case of transmission by
operation of law of the right to, any Securities or interest of a Shareholder in the
Company. The Company shall, within 30 (thirty) days from the date on which the
intimation of such transmission, was delivered to the Company, send a notice of
refusal to the person giving notice of such transmission, giving reasons for such
refusal.

In case of the death of any one or more Shareholders named in the Register of
Members as the joint-holders of any shares, the survivors shall be the only
Shareholder(s) recognized by the Company as having any title to or interest in such
shares, but nothing therein contained shall be taken to release the estate of a
deceased joint-holder from any liability on shares held by him jointly with any other
Person.

Subject to applicable Laws, the Executors or Administrators or holder of the succession
certificate or the legal representatives of a deceased Shareholder, (not being one of two
or more joint- holders) or his nominee(s), shall be the only Shareholders recognized
by the Company as having any title to the shares registered in the name of such
Shareholder, and the Company shall not be bound to recognize such Executors or
Administrators or the legal representatives unless such Executors or Administrators
or legal representatives shall have first obtained probate or letters of administration
or succession certificate, as the case may be, from a duly constituted court in India.

Subject to the provisions of Articles, the Act and other applicable Laws, any Person
becoming entitled to shares in consequence of the death, lunacy, bankruptcy of any
Shareholder or Shareholders, or by any lawful means other than by a transfer in
accordance with these Articles, may with the consent of the Board, (which it shall
not be under any obligation to give), upon producing such evidence that he sustains
the character in respect of which he proposes to act under this Article, or of his title,
as the Board thinks sufficient, r be registered himself as the holder of the shares
after obtaining necessary letter of confirmation.

A Person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of a
Shareholder shall be entitled to the same Dividends and other advantages to which
he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the shares, except that he
shall not, before being registered as a Shareholder in respect of the shares, be
entitled to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of
the Company.

The provision of these Articles shall be subject to the applicable provisions of the
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10.

Act, the Rules and any requirements of Law. Such provisions shall mutatis mutandis
apply to the transfer or transmission by operation of Law to other Securities of the
Company.

Dematerialisation of Securities

a.

ii.

iii.

Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Company shall be entitled to
dematerialize its existing Securities, rematerialize its Securities held in the Depositories
and/or to offer its fresh Securities in a dematerialized form pursuant to the Depositories
Act, and the rules framed thereunder, if any.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company may exercise an option to
issue, dematerialize, hold the securities (including shares) with a Depository in
electronic form and the certificates in respect thereof shall be dematerialized, in
which event the rights and obligations of the parties concerned and matters connected
therewith or incidental thereto shall be governed by the provisions of the Depositories
Act,

If a Person opts to hold his Securities with a Depository, the Company shall intimate such
Depository the details of allotment of the Securities and on receipt of the information,
the Depository shall enter in its record the name of the allottee as the Beneficial
Owner of the Securities.

Securities in Depositories to be in fungible form:

All Securities held by a Depository shall be dematerialized and be held in fungible
form. Nothing contained in Sections 88, 89 and 186 of the Act shall apply to a
Depository in respect of the Securities held by it on behalf of the Beneficial Owners

Rights of Depositories & Beneficial Owners:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act or these Articles, a
Depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner for the purposes of
effecting transfer of ownership of Securities on behalf of the Beneficial Owner.

Save as otherwise provided in (i) above, the Depository as the Registered Owner
of the Securities shall not have any voting rights or any other rights in respect of
the Securities held by it.

Every person holding shares of the Company and whose name is entered as the
Beneficial Owner in the records of the Depository shall be deemed to be a
Shareholder of the Company.

The Beneficial Owner of Securities shall, in accordance with the provisions of these
Articles and the Act, be entitled to all the rights and subject to all the liabilities
in respect of his Securities, which are held by a Depository.

Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as may be required by Law
required and subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company shall be
entitled to treat the person whose name appears on the Register as the holder of any
share or whose name appears as the Beneficial Owner of any share in the records of
the Depository as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to
recognize any benami trust or equity, equitable contingent, future, partial interest, other
claim to or interest in respect of such shares or (except only as by these Articles otherwise
expressly provided) any right in respect of a share other than an absolute right thereto in
accordance with these Articles, on the part of any other person whether or not it has
expressed or implied notice thereof but the Board shall at their sole discretion register
any share in the joint names of any two or more persons or the survivor or survivors of
them, subject to these Atrticles.

Register and Index of Beneficial Owners:

The Company shall cause to be kept a register and index of members with details of
shares and debentures and securities held in materialized and dematerialized forms in
any media as may be permitted by Law including any form of electronic media.

The register and index of Beneficial Owners maintained by a Depository under the
Depositories Act shall be deemed to be a register and index of members for the
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purposes of this Act. The Company shall have the power to keep in any state or country
outside India a register resident in that state or country.

Cancellation of Certificates upon surrender by Person

Upon receipt of certificate of securities on surrender by a person who has entered into
an agreement with the Depository through a participant, the Company shall cancel such
certificates and shall substitute in its record, the name of the Depository as the
registered owner in respect of the said Securities and shall also inform the Depository
accordingly.

Service of Documents:

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where
Securities are held in a Depository, the records of the beneficial ownership may be
served by such Depository on the Company by means of electronic mode or by delivery
of floppies or discs.

Allotment of Securities dealt with in a Depository: Notwithstanding anything in the Act
or these Articles, where Securities are dealt with by a Depository, the Company shall

intimate the details of allotment of relevant Securities thereof to the Depository

immediately on allotment of such Securities.

Certificate Number and other details of Securities in Depository: Nothing contained in
the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having certificate number/distinctive
numbers for Securities issued by the Company shall apply to Securities held with a
Depository.

Provisions of Articles to apply to securities held in Depository: Except as specifically
provided in these Articles, the provisions relating to joint holders of shares, calls, lien on
shares, forfeiture of shares and transfer and transmission of shares shall be applicable to
shares held in Depository so far as they apply to shares held in physical form subject to
the provisions of the Depositories Act.

. Depository to furnish information: Every Depository shall furnish to the Company
information about the transfer of securities in the name of the Beneficial Owner at such
intervals and in such manner as may be specified by Law and the Company in that behalf.

Option to opt out in respect of any such Security:

Subject to compliance with applicable Law, if a Beneficial Owner seeks to opt out of a
Depository in respect of any Security, he shall inform the Depository accordingly. The
Depository shall on receipt of such information make appropriate entries in its records
and shall inform the Company. The Company shall within 30 (thirty) days of the receipt
of intimation from a Depository and on fulfilment of such conditions and on payment of
such fees as may be specified by the regulations, issue the certificate of securities to the
Beneficial Owner or the transferee as the case may be.

. Overriding effect of this Article:

Provisions of this Article will have full effect and force not withstanding anything to the
contrary or inconsistent contained in any other Articles.
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. Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Company shall be entitled
to dematerialize its existing Securities, rematerialize its Securities held in the
Depositories and/or to offer its fresh Securities in a dematerialized form pursuant to
the Depositories Act, and the rules framed thereunder, if any.

. Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company may exercise an option to
issue, dematerialize, hold the securities (including shares) with a Depository in
electronic form and the certificates in respect thereof shall be dematerialized, in
which event the rights and obligations of the parties concerned and maiters connected
therewith or incidental thereto shall be governed by the provisions of the Depositories
Act.

If a Person opts to hold his Securities with a Depository, the Company shall intimate such
Depository the details of allotment of the Securities and on receipt of the information,
the Depository shall enter in its record the name of the allottee as the Beneficial
Owner of the Securities.

Securities in Depositories to be in fungible form:

All Securities held by a Depository shall be dematerialized and be held in fungible
form. Nothing contained in Sections 88, 89 and 186 of the Act shall apply to a
Depository in respect of the Securities held by it on behalf of the Beneficial Owners

Rights of Depositories & Beneficial Owners:

i.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Act or these Articles,
a Depository shall be deemed to be the Registered Owner for the purposes of
effecting transfer of ownership of Securities on behalf of the Beneficial
Owner.

ii.  Save as otherwise provided in (i) above, the Depository as the Registered
Owner of the Securities shall not have any voting rights or any other rights
in respect of the Securities held by it.

ii. Every person holding shares of the Company and whose name is entered as
the Beneficial Owner in the records of the Depository shall be deemed to be
a Shareholder of the Company.

iv.  The Beneficial Owner of Securities shall, in accordance with the provisions
of these Articles and the Act, be entitled to all the rights and subject to all
the liabilities in respect of his Securities, which are held by a Depository.

Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as may be required by Law
required and subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, the Company shall be
entitled to treat the person whose name appears on the Register as the holder of any
share or whose name appears as the Beneficial Owner of any share in the records of
the Depository as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to
recoghize any benami trust or equity, equitable contingent, future, partial interest, other
claim to or interest in respect of such shares or (except only as by these Articles otherwise
expressly provided) any right in respect of a share other than an absolute right thereto in
accordance with these Articles, on the part of any other person whether or not it has
expressed or implied notice thereof but the Board shall at their sole discretion register
any share in the joint names of any two or more persons or the survivor or survivors of
them, subject to these Articles.

Register and Index of Beneficial Owners:

The Company shall cause to be kept a register and index of members with details of
shares and debentures held in materialized and dematerialized forms in any media as
may be permitted by Law including any form of electronic media.

The register and index of Beneficial Owners maintained by a Depository under the
Depositories Act shall be deemed to be a register and index of members for the
purposes of this Act. The Company shall have the power to keep in any state or country
outside India a register resident in that state or country.

. Cancellation of Certificates upon surrender by Person
Upon receipt of certificate of securities on surrender by a person who has entered into

an agreement with the Depository through a participant, the Company shall cance! such
certificates and shall substitute in its record, the name of the Depository as the

—
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aa.

bb.

ccC.

registered owner in respect of the said Securities and shall also inform the Depository
accordingly.

Service of Documents:

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Act or these Articles to the contrary, where
Securities are held in a Depository, the records of the beneficial ownership may be
served by such Depository on the Company by means of electronic mode or by delivery
of floppies or discs.

Allotment of Securities dealt with in a Depository: Notwithstanding anything in the Act
or these Articles, where Securities are dealt with by a Depository, the Company shall
intimate the details of allotment of relevant Securities thereof to the Depository
immediately on allotment of such Securities.

Certificate Number and other details of Securities in Depository: Nothing contained in
the Act or these Articles regarding the necessity of having certificate number/distinctive
numbers for Securities issued by the Company shall apply to Securities held with a
Depository.

Provisions of Articles to apply to Shares held in Depository: Except as specifically
provided in these Articles, the provisions relating to joint holders of shares, calls, lien on
shares, forfeiture of shares and transfer and transmission of shares shall be applicable to
shares held in Depository so far as they apply to shares held in physical form subject to
the provisions of the Depositories Act.

Depository to furnish information: Every Depository shall furnish to the Company
information about the transfer of securities in the name of the Beneficial Owner at such
intervals and in such manner as may be specified by Law and the Company in that behalf.

Option to opt out in respect of any such Security:

Subject to compliance with applicable Law, if a Beneficial Owner seeks to opt out of a
Depository in respect of any Security, he shall inform the Depository accordingly. The
Depository shall on receipt of such information make appropriate entries in its records
and shall inform the Company. The Company shall within 30 (thirty) days of the receipt
of intimation from a Depository and on fulfilment of such conditions and on payment of
such fees as may be specified by the regulations, issue the certificate of securities to the
Beneficial Owner or the transferee as the case may be.

dd. Overriding effect of this Article:

11.

a.

Provisions of this Article will have full effect and force not withstanding anything to the
contrary or inconsistent contained in any other Articles.

Forfeiture of Shares

If any member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call or any part thereof or any
money due in respect of any shares either by way of principal or interest on or before
the day appointed for the payment of the same or any such extension thereof as
aforesaid, the Board may, at any time thereafter, during such time as the call or
instalment or any part thereof or other money remain unpaid or a judgment or decree
in respect thereof remain unsatisfied, give notice to such Shareholder or his legal
representatives requiring him to pay the same together with any interest that may
have accrued and all expenses that may have been incurred by the Company by
reason of such non-payment.

The notice shall name a day, (not being less than 14 (fourteen) days from the date
of service of notice), and a place or places on or before which such call or instalment
or such part or other money as aforesaid and interest thereon, (at such rate as the
Board shall determine and payable from the date on which such call or instalment
ought to have been paid), and expenses as aforesaid are to be paid. The notice shall
also state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time and at the place
appointed, the shares in respect of which the call was made or instalment is payable,
will be liable to be forfeited.

If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not be complied with, any
share in respect of which such notice has been given, may at any time, thereafter
before payment of all calls, instalments, other money due in respect thereof, interest
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and expenses as required by the notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of
the Board to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all Dividends declared or any
other money payable in respect of the forfeited share and not actually paid before
the forfeiture subject to the applicable provisions of the Act.

d. When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be given
to the Shareholder on whose name it stood immediately prior to the forfeiture or if
any of his legal representatives or to any of the Persons entitled to the shares by
transmission, and an entry of the forfeiture with the date thereof, shall forthwith be
made in the Register of Members, but no forfeiture shall be in any manner
invalidated by any omission or neglect to give such notice or to make any such entry
as aforesaid.

€. Any share so forfeited shall be deemed to be the property of the Company and may
be sold; re-allotted, or otherwise disposed of either to the original holder thereof or
to any other Person upon such terms and in such manner as the Board shall think fit.

f.  Any Shareholder whose shares have been forfeited shall, cease to be a shareholder of
the Company and notwithstanding the forfeiture, be liable to pay and shall forthwith
pay to the Company on demand all calls, instalments, interest and expenses and
other money owing upon or in respect of such shares at the time of the forfeiture
together with interest thereon from the time of the forfeiture until payment at such
rate as the Board may determine and the Board may enforce, (if it thinks fit),
payment thereof as if it were a new call made at the date of forfeiture.

d. The forfeiture of a share shall involve extinction at the time of the forfeiture of all
interest in all claims and demands against the Company, in respect of the share and
all other rights incidental to the share, except only such of these rights as by these
Articles are expressly saved.

h. A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director or Secretary of
the Company and that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited in accordance
with these Articles on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence
of the facts therein stated as against all Persons claiming to be entitled to the shares.

i.  Upon any sale after forfeiture or for enforcing a lien in purported exercise of the powers
hereinbefore given, the Board may appoint some Person to execute an instrument of
transfer of the shares sold and cause the purchaser’s name to be entered in the Register
of Members in respect of the shares sold and the purchaser shall not be bound to see to
the regularity of the proceedings, or to the application of the purchase money, and
after his name has been entered in the Register of Members in respect of such shares,
the validity of the sale shall not be impeached by any person and the remedy of
any person aggrieved by the sale shall be in damages only and against the Company
exclusively.

j- Upon any sale, re-allotment or other disposal under the provisions of the preceding
Articles, the certificate or certificates originally issued in respect of the relevant
shares shall, (unless the same shall on demand by the Company have been
previously surrendered to it by the defaulting Shareholder), stand cancelled and
become null and void and of no effect and the Board shall be entitled to issue a new
certificate or certificates in respect of the said shares to the person or persons entitled
thereto.

k. The Board may, at any time, before any share so forfeited shall have been sold, re-
allotted or otherwise disposed of, annul the forfeiture thereof upon such conditions
as it thinks fit.

. The Directors may subject to the provisions of the Act, accept a surrender of any share
certificates from or by any Shareholder desirous of surrendering them on such terms
as the Directors think fit.

Alteration of Share Capital

Subject to these Articles and Section 61 of the Act, the Company may from time to time,
by an Ordinary Resolution in General Meeting from time to time, alter the conditions of
its Memorandum as follows, that is to say, it may:
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13.

14.

15.

increase its Share Capital by such amount as it thinks expedient;

consolidate and divide all or any of its Share Capital into shares of larger amount
than its existing shares:

¢. Provided that no consolidation and division which results in changes in the voting
percentage of Shareholders shall take effect unless it is approved by the Tribunal
on an application made in the prescribed manner;

d. convert all or any of its fully Paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into
fully Paid-up shares of any denomination;

e. subdivide its existing Shares, or any of them, into shares of smaller amount than is
fixed by the Memorandum, so, however, that in the subdivision the proportion
between the amount paid and the amount, if any, unpaid on each reduced share
shall be the same as it was in the case of the share from which the reduced share
is derived; and

f. cancel its Shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution in that behalf,
have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person, and diminish the amount
of its Share Capital by the amount of the shares so cancelled. Cancellation of
shares in pursuance of this Article shall not be deemed to be reduction of Share
Capital within the meaning of the Act.

Reduction of Share Capital

The Company may, subject to the applicable provisions of the Act, from time to time
by a Special Resolution, reduce its Capital, any capital redemption reserve account and
the securities premium account in any manner for the time being authorized by Law.
This Article is not to derogate any power the Company would have under Law, if it
were omitted.

Power of Company to purchase its own securities

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board or a Special Resolution of the Shareholders, as required
under the Act, the Company may purchase its own Equity Shares or other Securities, as may be
specified by the Act read with Rules made there under from time to time, by way of a buy- back
arrangement, in accordance with Sections 68, 69 and 70 of the Act, the Buy Back Rules and
subject to compliance with the applicable Laws out of (i) its free reserves; or (ii) the securities
premium account; or (iii) the proceeds of the issue of any Shares or other specified securities
or (iv) otherwise specified by the law for the time being in force.

Power to modify rights

a.  Where, the Capital, is divided (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the
shares of that class) into different classes of shares, all or any of the rights and
privileges attached to each class may be varied, subject to the provisions of Section
48 of the Act and applicable Laws, and whether or not the Company is being wound
up, be varied provided the same is affected with consent in writing of the holders of
not less than three-fourths of the issued shares of that class or by way of a Special
Resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the issued shares of that
class.

b. To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these Articles relating to general
meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply, but so that the necessary quorum shall be at
least two persons holding at least one-third of the issued shares of the class in
question.

c.  The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred
or other rights shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of
the shares of that class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further
shares ranking pari passu therewith.

Page 23 of 45

/

Afnaan Siddigui (Advocate)
Certified True Copy

214



16.

17.

Registers to be maintained by the Company

a.

The Company shall keep and maintain at its registered office or such other place as may
be allowed under the Act and the Rules, all statutory registers (as and when required)
namely, register of members, register of debenture holders, register of any other security
holders, the register and index of beneficial owners and annual return, register of
contracts and arrangements etc., minutes book of General Meeting , for such duration as
the Board may, unless otherwise prescribed, decide, and in such manner and containing
such particulars as prescribed by the Act and the Rules.

The registers and documents referred to in (i) and copies of annual return shall be open
for inspection during 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all Working Days, other than Saturdays,
at the registered office of the Company or any other place where the register ,documents
or copies of the annual return are kept in the manner as prescribed under the Act and the
Rules, by the persons entitled thereto under the Act and Rules, on payment, where
required, of such fees as may be fixed by the Board but not exceeding the limits prescribed
by the Rules.

Copy or extract of the registers and documents referred to in (i) and copies of annual
return, if allowed under the Act or the Rules, can be obtained from the registered office
of'the Company or any other place where the register ,documents or copies of the annual
return are kept in the manner as prescribed under the Act and the Rules by the persons
entitled thereto , on payment, where required, of such fees as may be fixed by the Board
but not exceeding the limits prescribed by the Rules.

The foreign register (if any) shall be open for inspection and may be closed, and extracts
may be taken there from and copies thereof may be required, in the same manner, mutatis
mutandis, as is applicable to the register of members.

The foreign register shall be open for inspection and may be closed, and extracts may be
taken there from and copies thereof may be required, in the same manner, mutatis
mutandis, as is applicable to the register of members.

No member (not being a director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book
or document of the company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Board.

Shares and Share certificates

a.

The Company shall issue, re-issue and issue share certificate, as the case may be in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and other applicable Laws.

The Company shall be entitled to dematerialise its existing Shares, rematerialise its
Shares held in the depository and/or to offer its fresh shares in a dematerialised form
pursuant to the Depositories Act, and the regulations framed there under, if any.

The provisions of this Article shall mutatis mutandis apply to Debentures and other
Securities of the Company.

When a new share certificate has been issued in pursuance of these Articles, it shall
be in the form and manner stated under the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014,

All blank forms to be used for issue of share certificates shall be printed and the
printing shall be done only on the authority of a resolution of the Board. The blank
forms shall be consecutively machine-numbered and the forms and the blocks,
engravings, facsimiles and hues relating to the printing of such forms shall be kept
in the custody of the Secretary or of such other person as the Board may authorize
for the purpose and the Secretary or the other person aforesaid shall be responsible
for rendering an account of these forms to the Board. Every forfeited or surrendered
share held in material form shall continue to bear the number by which the same
was originally distinguished.

The Secretary of the Company shall be responsible for the maintenance,
preservation and safe custody of all books and documents relating to the issue of
share certificates including the blank forms of the share certificate referred to in sub
article (e) of this Article,
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All books referred to in sub-article (f) of this Article, shall be preserved in the
manner specified in the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

If any Shares stands in the names of 2 (two) or more Persons, the Person first named
in the Register of Members shall as regards receipt of Dividends or bonus, or service
of notices and all or any other matters connected with the Company except voting
at meetings and the transfer of shares, be deemed the sole holder thereof, but the
joint holders of such Shares shall be severally as well as jointly liable for the
payment of all deposits, instalments and calls due in respect of such Shares, and for
all incidents thereof according to these Articles.

Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as may be required by
Law, the Company shall be entitled to treat the Shareholder whose name appears on
the Register of Members as the holder of such Equity Shares or whose name appears
as the beneficial owner of such Equity Shares in the records of the Depository, as
the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not be bound to recognise any
benami, trust or equity or equitable, contingent or other claim to or interest in such
Equity Shares on the part of any other Person whether or not such Shareholder shall
have express or implied notice thereof. The Board shall be entitled at their sole
discretion to register any Equity Shares in the joint names of any 2 (two) or more
Persons or the survivor or survivors of them. The Company shall not be bound to
register more than 3 (three) persons as the joint holders of any share except in the
case of executors or trustees of a deceased member

18. Nomination by securities holders

a.

Every holder of Securities of the Company holding the Securities in physical form
may, at any time, nominate, in the manner prescribed under the Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a Person as his nominee in whom the Securities
of the Company held by him shall vest in the event of his death.

Where the Securities of the Company are held by more than one Person jointly, the
joint holders may together nominate, in the manner prescribed under the Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a Person as their nominee in whom all
the rights in the Securities of the Company shall vest in the event of death of all the
joint holders.

Notwithstanding anything contained in any other Law for the time being in force or
in any disposition, whether testamentary or otherwise, in respect of the Securities of
the Company, where a nomination made in the manner prescribed under the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, purports to confer on any
Person the right to vest the Securities of the Company, the nominee shall, on the death
of the holder of Securities of the Company or, as the case may be, on the death of the
joint holders become entitled to all the rights in Securities of the holder or, as the case
may be, of all the joint holders, in relation to such Securities of the Company to the
exclusion of all other Persons, unless the nomination is varied or cancelled in the
prescribed manner under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

Where the nominee is a minor, the holder of the Securities concerned, can make the
nomination to appoint in prescribed manner under the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014, any Person to become entitled to the Securities of the
Company in the event of his death, during the minority.

The transmission of Securities of the Company by the holders of such Securities and
transfer in case of nomination shall be subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

19. Borrowing Powers

a.

i

Subject to the provisions of Sections 73, 179 and 180, and other applicable provisions
of the Act and these Articles, the Board may, from time to time, at its discretion by
resolution passed at the meeting of a Board the Board shall:

accept or renew deposits from Shareholders;
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20.

a.

borrow money by way of issuance of Debentures;
borrow money otherwise than on Debentures;
accept deposits from Shareholders either in advance of calls or otherwise; and

generally raise or borrow or secure the payment of any sum or sums of money for
the purposes of the Company. Provided, however, that where the money to be
borrowed together with the money already borrowed (apart from temporary loans
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) exceed
the aggregate of the Paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves (not
being reserves set apart for any specific purpose), the Board shall not borrow such
money without the consent of the Company by way of a Special Resolution in a
General Meeting

Subject to the provisions of these Articles, the payment or repayment of money
borrowed as aforesaid may be secured in such manner and upon such terms and
conditions in all respects as the resolution of the Board (not by circular resolution)
shall prescribe including by the issue of bonds, perpetual or redeemable Debentures
or debenture-stock, or any mortgage, charge, hypothecation, pledge, lien or other
security on the undertaking of the whole or any part of the property of the Company
(including its uncalled Capital), both present and future. and Debentures and other
Securities may be assignable free from any equities between the Company and the
Person to whom the same may be issued.

Subject to the applicable provisions of the Act and these Articles, any bonds,
Debentures, debenture-stock or other Securities may if permissible in Law be issued
at a discount, premium or otherwise by the Company and shall with the consent of the
Board be issued upon such terms and conditions and in such manner and for such
consideration as the Board shall consider to be for the benefit of the Company, and
on the condition that they or any part of them may be convertible into Equity Shares
of any denomination, and with any privileges and conditions as to the redemption,
surrender, allotment of shares, appointment of Directors or otherwise. Provided that
Debentures with rights to allotment of or conversion into Equity Shares shall not be
issued except with, the sanction of the Company in General Meeting accorded by a
Special Resolution.

The Board shall cause a proper Register to be kept in accordance with the provisions
of Section 85 of the Act of all mort